
Staff Contact Nick Kimball, City Manager 

CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 

CITY COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA SUMMARY 

TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 5, 2023 – 6:00 PM 

CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
117 MACNEIL STREET 

SAN FERNANDO, CALIFORNIA 91340 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION OPTIONS 

WATCH THE MEETING 

Live stream with audio and video, via YouTube Live, at: 

https://www.youtube.com/c/CityOfSanFernando 

Note:  Comments submitted via YouTube will not be read into the record.  

SUBMIT PUBLIC COMMENT IN PERSON 

Members of the public may provide comments in person in the City Council Chambers during the Public 
Comments section of the Agenda by submitting a comment card to the City Clerk.   

SUBMIT PUBLIC COMMENT VIA EMAIL 

Members of the public may submit comments by email to cityclerk@sfcity.org no later than 
5:00 p.m. the day of the meeting, to ensure distribution to the City Council prior to consideration 
of the agenda.  Comments received via email will be distributed to the City Council, read into the 
record, limited to three minutes, and made part of the official public record of the meeting. 

CALL-IN TO PROVIDE PUBLIC COMMENT LIVE DURING THE MEETING 

Members of the public may call-in between 6:00 p.m. and 6:15 p.m.  Comments will be heard in 
the order received, and limited to three minutes.  If necessary, the call-in period may be extended 
by the Mayor.  Note: This is audio only and no video. 

Call-in Telephone Number: (818) 898-1200 extension 535 

REPORT OUT FROM CLOSED SESSION 

CALL TO ORDER  

ROLL CALL 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 1 of 221

https://www.youtube.com/c/CityOfSanFernando
mailto:cityclerk@sfcity.org


SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL 
Regular Meeting Notice and Agenda – September 5, 2023 
Page 2 of 5

 

 

TELECONFERENCING REQUESTS/DISCLOSURE 
 

Recommend consideration of requests received for remote teleconference meeting participation 
made by members of the City’s legislative bodies, as permitted under the provisions of Assembly 
Bill (AB) 2449, Government Code Section 54953, and the City of San Fernando adopted Resolution  
No. 8215, effective March 1, 2023. 
 
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

Led by City Clerk Julia Fritz  
 
 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
  
Recommend that the City Council approve the agenda as presented and move that all ordinances 
presented tonight be read in title only as authorized under Government Code Section 36934.  
 
 

PRESENTATION 
 

A. PRESENTATION OF A CERTIFICATE OF RECOGNITION HONORING THE MODUGNO FAMILY FOR 
THEIR OUTSTANDING SERVICE, SIGNIFICANT CONTRIBUTION TO THE COMMUNITY, AND 
GENEROUS DONATION OF AN OIL PAINTING OF MISSION SAN FERNANDO, EXHIBITED IN THE 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS AT CITY HALL 
 

B. PRESENTATION OF A CERTIFICATE OF APPRECIATION HONORING VICE CHAIR COMMISSIONER 
YVONNE MEJIA FOR HER SERVICE ON THE PLANNING AND PRESERVATION COMMISSION 
 

C. PRESENTATION OF A CERTIFICATE OF PROCLAMATION DECLARING SEPTEMBER AS NATIONAL 
HISPANIC HERITAGE MONTH  

 
 

DECORUM AND ORDER 
 

The City Council, elected by the public, must be free to discuss issues confronting the City in an 
orderly environment.  Members of the public attending City Council meetings shall observe the 
same rules of order and decorum applicable to the City Council (SF Procedural Manual). Any person 
making impertinent derogatory or slanderous remarks or who becomes boisterous while 
addressing the City Council or while attending the City Council meeting, may be removed from the 
room if the Presiding Officer so directs the sergeant-at-arms and such person may be barred from 
further audience before the City Council. 
 
PUBLIC STATEMENTS 
  
Members of the public may provide comments in person in the City Council Chambers during the 
Public Comments section of the Agenda by submitting a comment card to the City Clerk. 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 2 of 221



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL 
Regular Meeting Notice and Agenda – September 5, 2023 
Page 3 of 5

 

 

Members of the public may submit comments by email to cityclerk@sfcity.org no later than  
5:00 p.m. the day of the meeting to ensure distribution to the City Council and read into the record.  
 
Members of the public may provide a live public comment by calling in between 6:00 p.m. and 
6:15 p.m.  CALL-IN INFORMATION:  Telephone Number: (818) 898-1200 extension 535 
 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
Items on the Consent Calendar are considered routine and may be disposed of by a single motion 
to adopt staff recommendation. If the City Council wishes to discuss any item, it should first be 
removed from the Consent Calendar. 
 
1) CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES FOR: 

 

a. August 21, 2023 – Regular 
 

2) CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE WARRANT REGISTER 
 
Recommend that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 23-091 approving the Warrant 
Register.  

 
3) CONSIDERATION TO DESIGNATE A VOTING DELEGATE AND ALTERNATE(S) FOR THE 2023 

LEAGUE OF CALIFORNIA CITIES ANNUAL CONFERENCE 
 
Recommend that the City Council: 
 
a. Designate City Manager Nick Kimball as voting Delegate for the League of California Cities 

2023 Annual Conference and Expo; 
 

b. Authorize the City Clerk to execute and submit the 2023 Annual Conference Voting 
Delegate/Alternate Form to the League by Monday, August 28, 2023. 

 
4) CONSIDERATION TO AWARD A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT TO A & M CATERING 

FOR CATERING SERVICES FOR THE CITY’S LAS PALMAS PARK SENIOR CITIZENS CLUB DINNER 
DANCES 
 
Recommend that the City Council:  

 
a. Approve a Professional Services Agreement (Contract No. 2195) with A & M Catering, in 

an amount not to exceed $50,000, to provide onsite catering at the Senior Club’s dinner 
dances held in Fiscal Year 2023-2024; and 
 

b. Authorize the City Manager to make non-substantive changes and execute all related 
documents.  

 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 3 of 221

mailto:cityclerk@sfcity.org


SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL 
Regular Meeting Notice and Agenda – September 5, 2023 
Page 4 of 5

 

 

5) CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE A CONTRACT AMENDMENT WITH FS CONTRACTORS, INC. 
FOR RESERVOIR NO. 2A/5 SITE IMPROVEMENT PROJECT, JOB NO. 7611, PLAN NO. P-738 
 
Recommend that the City Council: 

 
a. Approve a contract amendment (Contract No. 2092(b)) and necessary change orders with 

FS Contractors, Inc.; and 
 

b. Authorize the City Manager to execute the contract amendment and the change orders. 
 

 
ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS 
 
6) CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT A RESOLUTION RENAMING THE PACOIMA WASH NATURAL 

PARK TO CINDY MONTAÑEZ NATURAL PARK LOCATED AT 801 EIGHTH STREET, IN HONOR 
OF HER ACHIEVEMENTS, DEDICATION AND CONTRIBUTIONS TO THE COMMUNITY 
 
Recommend that the City Council: 
 
a. Adopt Resolution No. 8259 approving renaming the Pacoima Wash Natural Park to Cindy 

Montañez Natural Park Located at 801 Eighth Street; and 
 

b. Provide additional direction to staff, as appropriate. 
 

7) UPDATE ON THE APPLICATION OF THE CITY’S COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT FRAMEWORK 
 
Recommend that the City Council:  

 
a. Receive an informational update on the Community Engagement Framework; and 

 
b. Provide direction to staff as appropriate. 

 
8) CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE A CONCEPTUAL DESIGN FOR THE LAS PALMAS PARK 

REVITALIZATION PROJECT 
 

Recommend that the City Council: 
 
a. Approve the conceptual design of the Las Palmas Park Revitalization Project and authorize 

RJM Design Group, Inc. to start developing bid documents for the construction of the  
project; and 

 
b. Authorize staff to prepare and release a Notice Inviting Bids and Request for Proposals for 

the construction of the Las Palmas Revitalization Project; and 
 

c. Provide staff with direction as appropriate  
 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 4 of 221



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL 
Regular Meeting Notice and Agenda – September 5, 2023 
Page 5 of 5

 

 

9) CONSIDERATION AND DISCUSSION REGARDING IMPLEMENTATION OF THE HOMELESS 
ACTION PLAN AND THE PROPOSED HOMELESSNESS TOWN HALL 
 
Recommend that the City Council: 
 
a. Receive an update regarding implementation of the Homeless Action Plan; 
 
b. Discuss the proposed Homelessness Town Hall; and 
 
c. Provide direction to staff, as applicable. 

 
10) CONSIDERATION AND DISCUSSION REGARDING THE CITY’S COMMUNITY PRESERVATION 

EFFORTS  
 
Recommend that the City Council: 

 
a. Discuss the City’s Community Preservation efforts; and  

 
b. Provide direction to staff, as applicable.  

 
11) CONSIDERATION TO APPOINT A TRANSPORTATION AND PUBLIC SAFETY COMMISSIONER 

 
This item was agendized by Councilmember Mary Solorio. 

 
 
STAFF COMMUNICATION INCLUDING COMMISSION UPDATES 
 
 
GENERAL CITY COUNCIL/BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS AND LIAISON UPDATES 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT   The meeting will adjourn to its next regular meeting. 
 
I hereby certify under penalty of perjury and the laws of the State of California the foregoing agenda 
was posted on the City Hall bulletin board not less than 72 hours prior to the meeting.  
 
 
___________________________________ 
Julia Fritz, City Clerk 
Signed and Posted:  August 17, 2023 (5:30 p.m.) 

 

The Regular Meetings of the City Council of the City of San Fernando also serves  as concurrent Regular Meeting s of the Successor Agency to the 
San Fernando Redevelopment Agency, and, from time to time, such other bodies of the City composed exclusive of the Members of the City Council.    
 

Agendas and complete Agenda Packets (including staff reports and exhibits related to each item) are posted on the City’s `Internet website 
www.sfcity.org.  These are also available for public reviewing prior to a meeting in the City Clerk Department. Any public writings distributed by 
the City Council to at least a majority of the Councilmembers regarding any item on this regular meeting agenda will also be made available at 
the City Clerk Department at City Hall located at 117 Macneil Street, San Fernando, CA, 91340 during normal business hours.  In addition, the City 
may also post such documents on the City’s website at www.sfcity.org. In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, if you 
require a disability-related modification/accommodation to attend or participate in this meeting, including auxiliary aids or services please call 
the City Clerk Department at (818) 898-1204 or cityclerk@sfcity.org at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. 

 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 5 of 221

https://ci.san-fernando.ca.us/
http://www.sfcity.org/
mailto:cityclerk@sfcity.org


This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 6 of 221



September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 7 of 221



 

This	Page	

Intentionally		

Left	Blank	

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 8 of 221



September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 9 of 221



This	Page	

Intentionally		

Left	Blank	

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 10 of 221



September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 11 of 221



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 12 of 221



CITY OF SAN FERNANDO  
CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 

 
AUGUST 21, 2023 – 6:00 P.M. 

REGULAR MEETING 
 

CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
117 MACNEIL STREET 

SAN FERNANDO, CALIFORNIA 91340  
 
 

CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
 
Mayor Celeste Rodriguez called the meeting to order at 6:01 p.m. 
 

Present:   Council: Mayor Celeste Rodriguez, Vice Mayor Mary Mendoza, and Councilmembers 
Joel Fajardo and Mary Solorio 

 
Staff: City Manager Nick Kimball, Assistant City Attorney Richard Padilla, Police 

Chief Fabian Valdez, Deputy City Manager/Economic Development Kanika 
Kith, Director of Finance Erica Melton, and City Clerk Julia Fritz 

 
Absent: Councilmember Cindy Montañez  
 
 

TELECONFERENCING REQUESTS/DISCLOSURE 
 

No requests considered.  
 
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE   
 

Led by City Clerk Julia Fritz 
 

 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Motion by Councilmember Fajardo, seconded by Councilmember Solorio to approve the agenda. 
The motion carried, unanimously.  
 
 

PUBLIC STATEMENTS    
 
Liana Stepanyan, San Fernando Library Manager submitted updates on the library’s services, 
programs and resources.  
 
 
  

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 13 of 221



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL 
MINUTES – Regular Meeting August 21, 2023 
Page 2 of 3

 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
  
Motion by Councilmember Fajardo, seconded by Councilmember Solorio to approve the Consent 
Calendar: 
 
1) CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES FOR: 

 

a. July 25, 2022 – Special   c.     August 7, 2023 – Special 
b. November 21, 2022 – Regular 

 
2) CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE WARRANT REGISTER 
 
3) CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT A RESOLUTION SETTING THE PROPERTY TAX RATE REQUIRED 

TO MEET THE CITY’S OBLIGATION TO THE CALIFORNIA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT 
SYSTEM FOR FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024 
 

4) CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT A RESOLUTION APPOINTING THE CITY’S ALTERNATE AND 
SUBSTITUTE ALTERNATE REPRESENTATIVES TO THE INDEPENDENT CITIES RISK 
MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY GOVERNING BOARD 
 

5) CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT A RESOLUTION APPROVING FINAL TRACT MAP NO. 84029 
LOCATED AT 12920 FOOTHILL BOULEVARD, ASSESSOR'S PARCEL NO. 2514-001-062 

 
6) CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE AN AMENDMENT TO CONTRACT NO. 2045 WITH WILLDAN 

ENGINEERING FOR NATIONAL POLLUTANT DISCHARGE ELIMINATION SYSTEM CONSULTING 
SERVICES 
 

7) CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE A FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
AGREEMENT WITH 4LEAF, INC. FOR ADDITIONAL ON-CALL COMMUNITY PRESERVATION 
SERVICES AND TRANSFER $75,000 FROM SALARY SAVINGS FROM THE COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT’S VARIOUS VACANT POSITIONS TO FUND THE AGREEMENT 
 

8) CONSIDERATION TO ACCEPT PROJECT COMPLETION AND AUTHORIZE THE RECORDATION 
OF THE NOTICE OF COMPLETION FOR THE PEDESTRIAN FENCING GLENOAKS BOULEVARD 
BRIDGE PROJECT, JOB NO. 7618, PLAN NO. P-740 

 
The motion carried, unanimously.  
 
Mayor Rodriguez stated that the remaining items under Administrative Reports Nos. 9, 10, 11 
and 12 would be heard at a special meeting on Monday, August 28, 2023 at 6:00 p.m.  
 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS 
 
9) UPDATE ON THE APPLICATION OF THE CITY’S COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT FRAMEWORK 

 

Recommend that the City Council:  
 

a. Receive an informational update on the Community Engagement Framework; and 
 

b. Provide direction to staff as appropriate. 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 14 of 221



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL 
MINUTES – Regular Meeting August 21, 2023 
Page 3 of 3

 
10) DISCUSSION REGARDING THE CITY’S COMMUNITY PRESERVATION EFFORTS 

 
Recommend that the City Council: 
 
a. Discuss the Community Preservation efforts and provide direction to staff, if necessary; 

and  

b. Receive and File.  
 
11) CONSIDERATION TO DESIGNATE A VOTING DELEGATE AND ALTERNATE(S) FOR THE 2023 

LEAGUE OF CALIFORNIA CITIES ANNUAL CONFERENCE 
 
Recommend that the City Council: 
 
a. Designate a voting Delegate for the League of California Cities 2023 Annual Conference 

and Expo; 
 

b. Designate up to two Alternate Voting Delegate(s) who may vote in the event that the 
designated Delegate is unable to serve in that capacity; and 
  

c. Authorize the City Clerk to execute and submit the 2023 Annual Conference Voting 
Delegate/Alternate Form to the League by Monday, August 28, 2023. 

 
12) CONSIDERATION TO APPOINT A TRANSPORTATION AND PUBLIC SAFETY COMMISSIONER 

 
This item was agendized by Councilmember Mary Solorio. 
 

 
GENERAL CITY COUNCIL/BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS AND LIAISON UPDATES 
 
Mayor Rodriguez expressed sincere appreciation for the outstanding efforts of city staff in 
effectively managing the impacts of Hurricane Hilary on our community. 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT (6:06) 
 

Mayor Rodriguez adjourned the meeting to an adjourned special meeting to be held on Monday, 
August 28, 2023 at 6:00 p.m.  

 
I do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and 
correct copy of the minutes of the August 21, 2023, 
Regular meeting as approved by the San Fernando 
City Council.  
 

 
_________________________________________ 
Julia Fritz, CMC 
City Clerk 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 15 of 221



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 16 of 221



September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 17 of 221



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 18 of 221



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

FINANCE DEPARTMENT                 117 MACNEIL STREET, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340                 (818) 898-7307                 WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

REVIEW:      ☒ Finance Director        ☒ Deputy City Manager       ☒ City Manager 
 

To: Mayor Celeste T. Rodriguez and Councilmembers 
  
From:  Nick Kimball, City Manager 
 By: Erica D. Melton, Director of Finance/City Treasurer 
    
Date:  September 5, 2023    
 
Subject: Consideration to Adopt a Resolution Approving the Warrant Register 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 23-091 (Attachment “A”) approving 
the Warrant Register. 
 
  
BACKGROUND: 

For each City Council meeting the Finance Department prepares a Warrant Register for Council 
approval.  The Register includes all recommended payments for the City. Checks, other than 
special checks, generally are not released until after the Council approves the Register.  The 
exceptions are for early releases to avoid penalties and interest, excessive delays and in all other 
circumstances favorable to the City to do so.  Special checks are those payments required to be 
issued between Council meetings such as insurance premiums and tax deposits.  Staff reviews 
requests for expenditures for budgetary approval and then prepares a Warrant Register for 
Council approval and or ratification.  Items such as payroll withholding tax deposits do not require 
budget approval. 
 
The Director of Finance/City Treasurer hereby certifies that all requests for expenditures have 
been signed by the department head, or designee, receiving the merchandise or services thereby 
stating that the items or services have been received and that the resulting expenditure is 
appropriate.  The Director of Finance/City Treasurer hereby certifies that each warrant has been 
reviewed for completeness and that sufficient funds are available for payment of the warrant 
register. 
 
 
ATTACHMENT: 

A. Resolution No. 23-091, including: 
Exhibit A: Payment Demands/Voucher List 

ANill 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 19 of 221



ATTACHMENT “A” 
RESOLUTION NO. 23-091 

 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO, 
CALIFORNIA, ALLOWING AND APPROVING FOR PAYMENT DEMANDS 
PRESENTED ON DEMAND / WARRANT REGISTER NO. 23-091 

 
 
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO DOES HEREBY RESOLVE, FIND, DETERMINE 
AND ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1.  That the Payment Demand/Voucher List (EXHIBIT “A”) as presented, having been duly 
audited, for completeness, are hereby allowed and approved for payment in the amounts as 
shown to designated payees and charged to the appropriate funds as indicated. 
 

2.  That the City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this Resolution and deliver it to the 
City Treasurer. 
 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 5th day of September 2023. 
 
  
                 

Celeste T. Rodriguez, Mayor of the           
City of San Fernando, California                                

ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Julia Fritz, City Clerk 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 20 of 221



RES. NO. 23-091 

2 

CERTIFICATION 
 
 
 
I, City Clerk of the City of San Fernando, California, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, 
true, and correct copy of Resolution No. 23-091, which was regularly introduced and adopted by 
the City Council of the City of San Fernando, California, at a regular meeting thereof held on the 
5th day of September, 2023, by the following vote of the City Council: 
 
 

AYES:  
 
NAYS:  
 
ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAINED:  

 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have here unto set my hand and affixed the official seal of the 
City of San Fernando, California, this ______ day of September, 2023. 

 
 
 

  
Julia Fritz, City Clerk 

 
 
 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 21 of 221



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 23-091

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 22 of 221



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 23-091

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 23 of 221



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 23-091

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 24 of 221



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 23-091

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 25 of 221



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 23-091

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 26 of 221



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 23-091

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 27 of 221



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 23-091

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 28 of 221



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 23-091

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 29 of 221



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 23-091

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 30 of 221



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 23-091

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 31 of 221



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 23-091

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 32 of 221



September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 33 of 221



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 34 of 221



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

CITY CLERK DEPARTMENT                 117 MACNEIL STREET, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340                 (818) 898-1204                 WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

REVIEW:      ☒ Finance Director      ☒ Deputy City Manager      ☒ City Manager 
 

To: Mayor Celeste T. Rodriguez and Councilmembers 
  
From:  Nick Kimball, City Manager 
  By:  Julia Fritz, City Clerk 
   
Date:  September 5, 2023 
 
Subject: Consideration to Designate a Voting Delegate and Alternate(s) for the 2023 

League of California Cities Annual Conference  

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the City Council: 
 
a. Designate City Manager Nick Kimball as voting Delegate for the League of California Cities 

(“League”) 2023 Annual Conference and Expo (Attachment “A”); and 
 

b. Authorize the City Clerk to execute and submit the 2023 Annual Conference Voting 
Delegate/Alternate Form to the League (Exhibit “A” of Attachment “A”) by Monday,  
August 28, 2023. 

 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
1. The League of California Cities 2023 Annual Conference is scheduled for September 20-22, 

2023, in Sacramento, California at the Sacramento SAFE Credit Union Convention Center.  An 
important part of the Annual Conference is the Annual Business Meeting (during General 
Assembly) on Friday, September 22, 2023; at this meeting, the League of California Cities 
membership considers and takes action on resolutions that establish League of California 
Cities policy.  In order to vote on behalf of the City of San Fernando at the Annual Business 
Meeting, the City Council must designate a Voting Delegate and may also appoint up to two 
Alternate Voting Delegates, one of whom may vote if the designated voting delegate is unable 
to serve in that capacity.  
 

2. On January 3, 2023, the City Council approved appointments to the San Fernando City Council 
Liaison Assignments, which included appointing Vice Mayor Mary Mendoza as the City 
Council Liaison and Mayor Celeste Rodriguez as the Alternate Liaison to the League of 
California Cities.  The voting delegates for the General Assembly can be different from the 
Liaison Assignments. 

 

ANill 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 35 of 221



Consideration to Designate a Voting Delegate and Alternate(s) for the 2023 League of California Cities 
Annual Conference 
Page 2 of 3 
 
 
3. On July 12, 2023, the City Clerk received a request from the League of California Cities 

(Attachment “A”) for the City Council to take action by August 28, 2023 and designate a 
Voting Delegate and up to two Alternate(s) (Exhibit “A” of Attachment “A”) for the 2023 
Annual Conference and Expo being held at the Sacramento SAFE Credit Union Convention 
Center in Sacramento, on September 20-22, 2023.  

 
 
ANALYSIS: 
 
The League of California Cities is an organization that represents the interests of cities in 
California and provides a platform for collaboration, advocacy, and sharing of best practices 
among its member cities. The annual membership meeting is a crucial event where 
representatives from member cities come together to make decisions, share insights, and 
participate in the democratic processes of the organization.  Member cities voting during the 
League of California Cities' annual membership meeting is a critical mechanism for democratic 
decision-making, representation, and collaboration among cities in the state. It ensures that the 
organization's actions and priorities align with the needs and preferences of its diverse member 
base, ultimately contributing to the well-being and development of cities across California. 
 
Each member city has a right to cast one vote on matters pertaining to League of California Cities 
policy.  In order to vote at the Annual Business Meeting, the City Council must designate a Voting 
Delegate, and may also appoint up to two alternate Voting Delegates, one of whom may vote in 
the event that the designated voting delegate is unable to serve in that capacity. 

 
Consistent with League of California Cities bylaws, the City’s Voting Delegate (and up to two 
Alternate Voting Delegates) must be designated by the City Council via either resolution or by 
City Council action; Voting Delegates may not be appointed by individual action of the Mayor or 
City Manager/Administrator alone.  
 
The Voting Delegate and Alternate(s) are required to register to attend the conference. However, 
they do not need to register for the entire conference; instead, they may register solely for the 
General Assembly Meeting on Friday, September 22, 2023. A Voting Delegate Card will be issued, 
which can be freely transferred between the Voting Delegate and the Alternate(s); however, it 
may not be transferred to another city official. 
 
The Voting Delegate(s) do not need to be an elected official.  An appointed official (i.e. city staff 
member) may serve as a Voting Delegate.  The City Manager is registered and plans to attend the 
2023 League of California Cities Annual Conference. 
 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 36 of 221



Consideration to Designate a Voting Delegate and Alternate(s) for the 2023 League of California Cities 
Annual Conference 
Page 3 of 3 
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
 
The cost to attend the 2023 League of Cities Annual Conference is included in the Fiscal Year 
2023-2024 Adopted Budget.  The act of designating a Voting Delegate and Alternate(s) will not 
impact the budget. 
 
 
CONCLUSION: 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council appoint a Voting Delegate and up to two (2) Alternates 
so that the City may participate in and benefit from the development of League of California 
Cities policy. 
 
 
ATTACHMENT:   
 
A. League of California Cities 2023 Annual Conference Designation of Voting Delegate/Alternates, 

including: 
 Exhibit A:  2023 Annual Conference Voting Delegate/Alternate Form  

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 37 of 221



ATTACHMENT "A"

LEAGUE OF 

CALI FORNIA 
CITIES 

p C: r. C ! V ,-D , \ L. V I:: .__ 

2023 JUL I 2 P 6: 31 

CITY OF SAt~ FERt~ANOO 
,----C-o_u_n_c_il_A_c_t-io_n_A_d-vi-se_d_b_y_A_u_g_u_s_t _2_8,-2-0_2_3~ =--'-; CIT y CLERK 

DATE: Wednesday, June 21, 2023 

TO: Mayors, Council Members, City Clerks, and City Managers 

RE: DESIGNATION OF VOTING DELEGATES AND ALTERNATES 
League of California Cities Annual Conference and Expo, Sept. 20-22, 2023, 
Sacramento SAFE Credit Union Convention Center 

Every year, the League of California Cities convenes a member-driven General Assembly 
at the Cal Cities Annual Conference and Expo. The General Assembly is an important 
opportunity w here city officials can directly participate in the development of Cal Cities 
policy. 

Taking p lace on Sept. 22, the General Assembly is comprised of voting delegates 
appointed by each member city; every city has one voting delegate. Your appointed 
voting delegate plays an important role during the General Assembly by representing 
your city a nd voting on resolutions. 

To cast a vote during the General Assembly, your city must designate a voting 
delegate a nd up to two alternate voting delegates, one of whom may vote if the 
designated voting delegate is unable to serve in that capacity. Voting delegates may 
either be an elected or appointed official. 

Please complete the attached voting delegate form and email it to Cal Cities office 
no later than Monday, August 28. 

New this year, we will host a pre-conference information session for voting delegates to 
explain their role. Submitting your voting delegate form by the deadline will allow us time 
to establish voting delegate/alternate records prior to the conference and provide pre
conference communications with voting delegates. 

Please view Cal Cities' event and meeting policy in advance of the conference. 

Action by Council Required. Consistent with Cal Cities bylaws, a city's voting delegate 
and up to two a lternates must be designated by the city council. When completing the 
attached Voting Delegate form, please attach either a copy of the council resolution 
that reflects the council action taken or have your city clerk or mayor sign the form 
affirming that the names provided are those selected by the city council. 

Please note that designating the voting delegate and alternates must be done by city 
council action and cannot be accomplished by individual action of the mayor or city 
manager alone. 

1400 K Street, Suite 400, Sacramento. CA 958 14 • 9 16.658.8200 • calcilies.org 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 38 of 221



LEAGUE OF 

CALI FORNIA 
CITIES 

Conference Registration Required. The voting delegate and alternates must be 
registered to attend the conference. They need not register for the entire conference; 
they may register for Friday only. Conference registration is open on the Cal Cities 
website. 

For a city to cast a vote, one voter must be present at the General Assembly and in 
possession of the voting delegate card and voting tool. Voting delegates and 
a lternates need to pick up their conference badges before signing in and picking up 
the voting delegate card at the voting delegate desk. This will enable them to receive 
the special sticker on their name badges that will admit the voting delegate into the 
voting area during the General Assembly. 

Transferring Voting Card to Non-Designated Individuals Not Allowed. The voting 
delegate card may be transferred freely between the voting delegate and alternates, 
but only between the voting delegate and alternates. If the voting delegate and 
alternates find themselves unable to attend the General Assembly, they may not 
transfer the voting card to another city official. 

Seating Protocol during General Assembly. At the General Assembly, individuals with a 
voting card will sit in a designated area. Admission to the voting area will be limited to the 
individual in possession of the voting card and with a special sticker on their name badge 
identifying them as a voting delegate. 

The voting delegate desk, located in the conference registration area of the SAFE Credit 
Union Convention Center in Sacramento, will be open at the following times: 
Wednesday, Sept. 20, 8:00 a.m.- 6:00 p.m. and Thursday, Sept. 21, 7:30 a.m.- 4:00 p.m. On 
Friday, Sept. 22, the voting delegate desk will be open at the General Assembly, starting 
at 7:30 a .m., but will be closed during roll calls and voting. 

The voting procedures that will be used at the conference are attached to this memo. 
Please share these procedures and this memo w ith your council and especially with the 
individuals that your council designates as your city's voting delegate and alternates. 

Once again, thank you for completing the voting delegate and alternate form and 
returning it to Cal Cities office by Monday, Aug. 28. If you have questions, please 
contact Zach Seals at zseals@calcities.org. 

Attachments: 
• General Assembly Voting Guidelines 
• Voting Delegate/ Alternate Form 
• Information Sheet: Cal Cities Resolutions and the General Assembly 

1400 K stf eet, Suite 400, Sacramento, CA 95814 • 916.658.8200 • calcities.org 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 39 of 221



LEAGUE OF 

CALIFORNIA 
CITIES 

How it works: Cal Cities 
Resolutions and the General Assembly 

Developing League of California Cities policy is a dynamic process that engages a wide range of members to 
ensure that we are representing California cities with one voice. These policies directly guide Cal Cities advocacy 
to promote local decision-making, and lobby against statewide policy that erodes local control. 

The resolutions process and General Assembly is one way that city officials can directly participate in the 
development of Cal Cities policy. If a resolution is approved at the General Assembly, it becomes official Cal 
Cities policy. Here's how Resolutions and the General Assembly works. 

P.riori to tne Anr.iual Conferenae amd po 

General Resolutions 
Sixty days before the 

~ 
Annual Conference and 
Expo, Col Cities members 
may submit policy 
proposals on issues of 
importance to cities. The 

resolution must have the concurrence 
of at least five additional member cities 
or individual members. 

Petitioned Resolutions 
The petitioned resolution 
is on a lternate method 
to introduce policy 
proposals during the 
annua l conference. The 
petition must be signed by 

voting delegates from 10% of member 
cities. and submitted to the Cal Cities 
President at least 24 hours before the 
beginning of the General Assembly. 

General Assembly 

Policy Committees 
• • • The Col Cities President S assigns general resolutions 

to policy committees where 
members review, debate. 
and recommend positions for 

each policy proposal. Recommendations ore 
forwarded to the Resolutions Committee . 

Resolutions Committee 
• • • The Resolutions Committee S considers all resolutions. 

General Resolutions approved 1 

by either a policy committee 
or the Resolutions Committee 

are next considered by the General 
Assembly. General resolutions not approved. 
or referred for further study by both a policy 
committee and the Resolutions Committee 
do not go the General Assembly. All 
Petitioned Resolutions are considered by the 
General Assembly, unless disqualified.2 

i 
During the General Assembly, voting delegates 
debate and consider general and petitioned 
resolutions forwarded by the Resolutions Committee. 
Potential Cal Cities bylaws amendments are also 
considered at this meeting. 

What's new in 2023? 
• Voting delegates will receive increased communications to prepare 

them for their role during the General Assembly. 
• The Genera l Assembly w ill take place earlier to allow more time for 

debate and d iscussion. 
• Improvements to the General Assembly process will make it easier for 

voting delegates to discuss and debate resolutions. 

' The Resolution Committee can amend a general resolution prior to sending it to the General Assembly. 
' Petitioned Resolutions may be disqua lified by the Resolutions Committee according to Cal Cit ies Bylaws Article VI. Sec. 5(1). 

For more information visit www.calcities.org/ general-assembly 

Who's who 
Cal Cities policy 

development is a 
member-informed 
process, grounded 
in the voices and 

experiences of city 
officials throughout 

the state. 

The Resolutions 
Committee includes 
representatives from 

each Cal Cit ies diversity 
caucus. regional 

division, municipal 
deportment, policy 

committee, as well as 
individuals appointed by 
the Col Cities president. 

Voting delegates 
ore appointed by each 
member city; every c ity 

has one voting delegate. 

The General Assembly 
is a meeting of the 
collective body of 

all voting delegates -
one from every 
member city. 

Seven Policy 
Committees meet 

throughout the year to 
review and recommend 

positions to take on 
bills and regulatory 

proposals. Policy 
committees include 

members from each Cal 
Cities diversity caucus, 

regional d ivision, 
municipal department. 

as well as individuals 
appointed by the Cal 

Cities president. 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 40 of 221



LEAGUE OF 

CALIFORNIA 
CITIES 

CITY: __________ _ 

2023 ANNUAL CONFERENCE 

VOTING DELEGATE/ALTERNATE FORM 

Please complete this form and return it to Cal Cities office by Monday, August 28. 2023. 

Forms not sent by this deadline may be submitted to the Voting Delegate Desk located 

in the Annual Conference Registration Area. Your city council may designate one 

voting delegate and up to two alternates. 

To vote at the General Assembly, voting delegates and alternates must be designated by your 
city council. Please attach the council resolution as proof of designation. As an alternative, 
the Mayor or City Clerk may sign this form, affirming that the designation reflects the action 
taken by the council. 

Please note: Voting delegates and alternates will be seated in a separate area at the General 

Assembly. Admission to this designated area will be limited to individuals (voting delegates 
and alternates) who are identified with a special sticker on their conference badge. This 
sticker can be obtained only at the voting delegate desk. 

1. VOTING DELEGATE

Name: 
-------------

Title: 

2. VOTING DELEGATE - ALTERNATE

Name: ____________ _

Title:-------------

Email: 

Email: ____________ _

3. VOTING DELEGATE - ALTERNATE

Name: 
------------

Title:-------------

Email: ___________ _ 

ATTACH COUNCIL RESOLUTION DESIGNATING VOTING DELEGATE AND ALTERNATES OR 

ATTEST: I affirm that the information provided reflects action by the city council to 
designate the voting delegate and alternate(s). 

Name: _______________ Email: _____________ _ 

City Clerk:    __________ Date: ____ Phone: ______ _ 
(circle one) (signoture) 

Please complete and email this form to votingdelegates@calcities.org by Monday, 

August 28, 2023. 

ATTACHMENT "A"
           EXHIBIT "A"

SAN FERNANDO

Julia Fritz jfritz@sfcity.org

818-898-1204

fJ
 September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 41 of 221



LEAGUE OF 

CALI FORNIA 
CITIES 

General Assembly Voting Guidelines 

1. One City One Vote. Each member city has a right to cast one vote on 
matters pertaining to Cal Cities policy. 

2. Designating a City Voting Representative. Prior to the Cal Cities Annual 
Conference and Expo, each c ity council may designate a voting delegate 
and up to two alternates; these individuals are identified on the voting 
delegate form provided to the Cal Cities Credentials Committee. 

3. Registering with the Credentials Committee. The voting delegate, or 
alternates, may pick up the c ity's voting card at the voting delegate desk in 
the conference registration area. Voting delegates and alternates must sign 
in at the voting delegate desk. Here they w ill receive a special sticker on 
their name badge and thus be admitted to the voting area at the General 
Assembly. 

4. Signing Initiated Resolution Petitions. Only those individuals who are voting 
delegates (or alternates), and who have picked up their city's voting card 
by providing a signature to the credentials committee at the voting 
delegate desk, may sign petitions to initiate a resolution. 

5. Voting. To cast the city's vote, a city official must have in their possession the 
city's voting card and voting tool; and be registered with the credentials 
committee. The voting card may be transferred freely between the voting 
delegate and alternates but may not be transferred to another city official 
who is neither a voting delegate nor alternate. 

6. Voting Area at General Assembly. At the General Assembly, individuals with 
a voting c ard will sit in a designated area. Admission to the voting area will 
be limited to the individual in possession of the voting card and with a 
specia l sticker on their name badge identifying them as a voting delegate. 

7. Resolving Disputes. In case of dispute, the credentials committee will 
determine the valid ity of signatures on petitioned resolutions and the right of 
a c ity offic ial to vote at the General Assembly. 

1400 KS reef, Suite 400. Sacramento, CA 958 14 • 9 16.658.8200 • calcities.org 

I 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 42 of 221



September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 43 of 221



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 44 of 221



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

RECREATION AND COMMUNITY SERVICES DEPARTMENT       208 PARK AVENUE, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340       (818) 898-1290       WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

REVIEW:      ☒ Finance Director      ☒ Deputy City Manager      ☒ City Manager 
 

To: Mayor Celeste T. Rodriguez and Councilmembers 
  
From:  Nick Kimball, City Manager 
 By: Julian J. Venegas, Director of Recreation and Community Services  
            Juan Salas, Recreation and Community Services Supervisor 
 
Date:  September 5, 2023 
 
Subject: Consideration to Award a Professional Services Agreement to A & M Catering for 

Catering Services for the City’s Las Palmas Senior Citizens Club Dinner Dances 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the City Council: 
 
a. Approve a Professional Services Agreement (Attachment “A” – Contract No. 2195) with A & 

M Catering, in an amount not to exceed $50,000, to provide onsite catering at the Senior 
Club’s dinner dances held in Fiscal Year (FY) 2023-2024; and 
 

b. Authorize the City Manager to make non-substantive changes and execute all related 
documents.  
  

 
BACKGROUND: 

1. Since 1974, the Las Palmas Senior Citizens Club (Club) has hosted a variety of activities for 
senior citizens at Las Palmas Park. These activities include dinner dances held in conjunction 
with annual holidays and the Club’s anniversary (July). The holiday dinner dances are hosted 
in May (Mother’s Day), June (Father’s Day), November (Thanksgiving), and December 
(Christmas and New Year’s dances).  
 

2. On August 7, 2016, Club members voted to have the City assume the financial management 
of the Club. The Recreation and Community Services (RCS) Department implemented the 
City’s procurement policies to obtain the good and services the Club needed to conduct the 
Club’s activities.  
 

3. In support of the Club, RCS staff prepared a Request for Proposals (RFP) (Attachment “A”, 
Exhibit “A”) for on-site catering services for the aforementioned dinner dances.   

 

ANill 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 45 of 221



Consideration to Award a Professional Services Agreement to A & M Catering for Catering Services for 
the City’s Las Palmas Park Senior Club Dinner Dances 
Page 2 of 3 
 
 
4. On July 20, 2023, RCS staff circulated the RFP soliciting on-site catering for the Club’s special 

dinner dances, with a due date of August 11, 2023.  
 

 
ANALYSIS: 

The Las Palmas Senior Citizens Club (Club) is a community program comprised of over 500 seniors 
in the Northeast San Fernando Valley. The Club offers a variety of engaging activities to promote 
social interaction among its members, such as monthly meetings, dances, holiday celebrations, 
day trips, multi-day excursions, and other similar activities.  For nearly 50 years, the Club has 
hosted dinner dances for members and guests on special occasions such as Mother’s Day, 
Father’s Day, the Club’s anniversary, Thanksgiving, and Christmas.   
 
Since 2016, the City has taken over the financial operation of the Club and its purchasing needs. 
This means that any goods or services for the Club must follow the City’s purchasing policies and 
procedures.   In recent years, the cost of hiring  certified catering services for the Club’s dinner 
dances has exceeded the approval threshold of the City Manager. Therefore, staff prepared a 
Notice Inviting Bids to request proposals for qualified and certified vendors to provide catering 
services for rest of Fiscal Year (FY) 2023-2024.  The Scope of Work includes, but is not limited to, 
preparing the dinner menu, cooking food on-site, serving food, and cleaning the catering area.     
 
Proposal Solicitation.  
RCS staff posted a RFP on the City’s website on July 20, 2023 seeking qualified and certified 
vendors that would be able to meet the scope of work. Staff also shared the RFP with three local 
vendors:  A & M Catering, CASA Torres, and Silver Spoons Catering.  The proposal due date was 
August 11, 2023.  The City received one proposal by the deadline from A & M Catering, which 
met all the RFP criteria.   
 
A & M Catering has extensive experience providing meals for the Club’s dinner dances. The 
company has been providing on-site catering for the Club for over 10 years, and the Club 
members are very satisfied with the quality of the food and the services A & M Catering provides. 
The Professional Service Agreement will cover the remainder of FY 2023-2024 (September 2023 
– June 2024), if awarded by the City Council, with an option to extend for one more year with the 
same terms, conditions, and costs for FY 2024-2025. 
  
 
BUDGET IMPACT:  

The Club is a self-sustaining program. As such, revenues and expenses are managed by RCS via 
the Las Palmas Senior Club fiduciary account (Account: 004-2380).  Revenue is generated monthly 
through membership fees, dance ticket sales, and general meeting raffles. Annually, these 
activities generate over $80,000 for the Club.  In addition, the City Council allocates $3,000 from 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 46 of 221



Consideration to Award a Professional Services Agreement to A & M Catering for Catering Services for 
the City’s Las Palmas Park Senior Club Dinner Dances 
Page 3 of 3 
 
 
the Non-Departmental Appropriated Reserve Fund (Account: 001-190-0000-4267) to assist the 
Club with the Mothers and Fathers Dances.    
 
The Club’s Advisory Board, in conjunction with RCS staff, budgets to ensure vendors are 
contracted and paid for services to ensure expenses do not exceed revenue. A & M Catering fees 
will be a budgeted expense of the Club.  
 
 
CONCLUSION: 

It is recommended that the City Council approve a Professional Services Agreement (Attachment 
“A”- Contract No. 2195) with A & M Catering to provide catering services for the Las Palmas 
Senior Citizens Club dinner dances at an annual amount not to exceed $50,000, and authorize 
the City Manager to make non-substantive changes and execute all related documents. 
 
 
ATTACHMENT: 

A. Contract No. 2195, including: 
Exhibit A: Request for Proposals 
Exhibit B: A & M Proposal 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 47 of 221



ATTACHMENT “A” 
CONTRACT NO. 2195 

 

 
 

2023 
CONTRACT SERVICES AGREEMENT 

(Contractor: A & M Catering) 
(Nature of Engagement: On-site catering for Las Palmas Senior Club) 

 
 
THIS CONTRACT SERVICES AGREEMENT (hereinafter, “Agreement”) is made and entered into this 
5th day of September, 2023 by and between the CITY OF SAN FERNANDO, a municipal corporation 
(hereinafter, “CITY”) and A & M CATERING (hereinafter, “CONTRACTOR”).  For the purposes of 
this Agreement, CITY and CONTRACTOR may be referred to collectively by the capitalized term 
“Parties.”  The capitalized term “Party” may refer to CITY or CONTRACTOR interchangeably.  
 

RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, CITY is a municipal corporation organized under the laws of the State of 
California, with power to contract for services necessary to achieve its purpose; and 

 
WHEREAS, CITY requires on-site catering for the Las Palmas Senior Club dances; and 

 
WHEREAS, CITY staff has determined that CONTRACTOR possesses the skills, experience, 

and expertise required to competently provide the services and tasks contemplated under this 
Agreement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the execution of this Agreement was approved by the San Fernando City 
Council at its Regular Meeting of September 5, 2023 under Agenda Item No. XX. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions 
herein contained, CITY and CONTRACTOR agree as follows:  
 
SECTION 1. SCOPE OF WORK. 
 
A. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, CONTRACTOR agrees to provide 

CITY on-site catering services. The various tasks and related services to be performed by 
CONTRACTOR are more specifically described in the CITY’s “Notice Inviting Bids” 
(hereinafter the “CITY REQUIREMENTS”) and the written proposal of CONTRACTOR 
entitled “Proposal Senior Club Events” (hereinafter, the “CONTRACTOR PROPOSAL”) 
dated August 8, 2023.  The CITY REQUIREMENTS and the CONTRACTOR PROPOSAL are 
attached and incorporated hereto as Exhibits “A” and “B” respectively.  The term “Scope 
of Work” shall be a collective reference to the CITY REQUIREMENTS and the CONTRACTOR 
PROPOSAL.  The capitalized term “Work” shall be a collective reference to all the various 
services and tasks referenced in the Scope of Work.  In the event of any conflict or 
inconsistency between the provisions of the document entitled CITY REQUIREMENTS and 

fER._NANIO 

■ 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 48 of 221



2023 CONTRACT SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2195 
A&M Catering 
Page 2 of 36 
 

the provisions of the document entitled CONTRACTOR PROPOSAL, the requirements of 
the document entitled CITY REQUIREMENTS shall govern and control but only to the 
extent of the conflict or inconsistency and no further.  In the event of any conflict or 
inconsistency between the provisions of the Scope of Work and the provisions of this 
Agreement to which the Scope of Work is attached, the provisions of this Agreement shall 
govern and control. 
 

B. CONTRACTOR shall provide all labor, materials, tools, supplies, equipment, services, tasks, 
and incidental and customary work necessary to competently perform and timely 
complete the Work.  CONTRACTOR shall perform the Work in accordance with the terms 
and conditions of this Agreement and in accordance with such other written or verbal 
directives as may be issued by CITY. 

 
C. By executing this Agreement, CONTRACTOR warrants that CONTRACTOR: (i) has 

thoroughly investigated and considered the nature of the work, services, and tasks to be 
performed under this Agreement; (ii) has carefully considered how the Work should be 
performed; and (iii) fully understands the facilities, difficulties, and restrictions attending 
performance of the services under this Agreement. CONTRACTOR warrants that 
CONTRACTOR has or will investigate any location where the Work is to be performed and 
is or will be fully acquainted with the conditions there existing, prior to undertaking any 
service or task requested by CITY in the manner described under Section 3, below.  Should 
the CONTRACTOR discover any latent or unknown conditions which will materially affect 
the performance of the services hereunder, CONTRACTOR shall immediately inform the 
CITY of such fact and shall not proceed, except at CONTRACTOR’s risk until written 
instructions are received from the City Representative as defined herein.  

 
D. In the event CONTRACTOR ceases to perform the Work agreed to under this Agreement 

or otherwise abandons any undertaking contemplated herein prior to completion and 
acceptance of the Work, CONTRACTOR shall deliver to CITY immediately and without 
delay, all materials, records and other work product prepared or obtained by 
CONTRACTOR in the performance of this Agreement.  Furthermore, CONTRACTOR shall 
only be compensated for the reasonable value of the services, tasks and other work 
performed up to the time of cessation or abandonment, less a deduction for any 
damages, costs or additional expenses which CITY may incur as a result of CONTRACTOR’s 
cessation or abandonment. 

 
SECTION 2. TERM. 
  
A. This Agreement shall have a term beginning September 5, 2023 through June 30, 2024 

(hereinafter, the “Term”).  The Agreement may be extended by the CITY subject to its 
same terms and conditions for a maximum of one additional Fiscal Year (July 1, 2024 
through June 30, 2025), provided the CITY issues written notice of its intent to extend the 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 49 of 221



2023 CONTRACT SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2195 
A&M Catering 
Page 3 of 36 
 

Term of the Agreement prior to the expiration of the initial Term.  
 

B. Nothing in this Section shall operate to prohibit or otherwise restrict the CITY’s ability to 
terminate this Agreement at any time for convenience or for cause. 

 
C. CONTRACTOR shall perform the Work continuously and with due diligence.  CONTRACTOR 

shall cooperate with CITY and in no manner interfere with the Work of CITY, its employees 
or other consultants, contractors or agents.  

 
D. CONTRACTOR shall not claim or be entitled to receive any compensation or damage 

because of the failure of CONTRACTOR, or its subcontractors, to have related services or 
tasks completed in a timely manner. 

 
E. CONTRACTOR shall at all times enforce strict discipline and good order among 

CONTRACTOR’s employees. 
 
F. CONTRACTOR, at its sole expense, shall pay all sales, consumer, use or other similar taxes 

required by law.  
 

G. CONTRACTOR shall complete the services within the term of this Agreement, and shall 
meet any other established schedules and deadlines. 
 

SECTION 3. PROSECUTION OF WORK. 
 

A. CONTRACTOR shall perform the Work contemplated under this Agreement on an  
as-needed, as requested basis. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to grant 
CONTRACTOR the exclusive right to perform any of the types of services or tasks 
contemplated under this Agreement nor shall anything in this Agreement be construed 
to entitle CONTRACTOR to the receipt of any sums under this Agreement, except to the 
extent CITY requests the performance of any Work in the manner described below and 
such Work is in fact performed and completed by CONTRACTOR and accepted by CITY.  
CITY requests for the performance of specific services or tasks contemplated under this 
Agreement shall be made in the form of a written work order(s) issued by the City 
Representative (each such written request hereinafter referred to as a “Work Order”).  
Each Work Order shall include the following information: 
 

1. A detailed description of the specific services or tasks requested; 
2. The location of where the particular services or tasks are to be performed, if 

applicable;  
3. A not-to-exceed budget for performing the services or tasks;  
4. A timeline for completing the requested services or tasks; 
5. Any other information CITY deems necessary and relevant to the requested 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 50 of 221



2023 CONTRACT SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2195 
A&M Catering 
Page 4 of 36 
 

services or tasks; and 
6. The signature of the City Representative, concatenating that the City 

Representative has authorized the services or tasks. 
 

B. CONTRACTOR shall perform no Work under this Agreement without a written request 
from the City Representative, containing the information set forth in Section 3(A), above.  
 

C. Time is of the essence in the performance of Work under this Agreement, and in the 
absence of a specific schedule or other instructions from the City Representative, 
CONTRACTOR shall begin and complete performance of the Work to completion in a 
timely and a diligently manner as possible.  
 

SECTION 4. COMPENSATION.  
 
A. CONTRACTOR shall perform all the Work in accordance with the rates set forth in 

CONTRACTOR’s August 8, 2023 quote (hereinafter “CONTRACTOR QUOTE”), which is 
attached and incorporated hereto as Exhibit “B”. 
 

B. CONTRACTOR’s total compensation during the Term of this Agreement shall not exceed 
the annual sum of FIFTY THOUSAND DOLLARS ($50,000) (hereinafter, the “Annual Not-
to-Exceed Sum”).  CONTRACTOR further agrees that the Annual Not-to-Exceed Sum is 
inclusive of compensation for all labor, materials, tools, supplies, equipment, services, 
tasks and incidental and customary work necessary to competently perform and timely 
complete the Work.  CONTRACTOR shall have no right or entitlement to any overage 
contingency sums authorized by the City Council as part of the approval of this 
Agreement, unless the City Representative authorizes the expenditure of such overage 
contingency funds in writing in the City Representative’s sole and absolute discretion. 

 
The Annual Not-to-Exceed Sum will be paid to CONSULTANT in monthly increments as the Work 
is completed.  Following the conclusion of each calendar month, CONSULTANT will submit to CITY 
an itemized invoice indicating the services performed and tasks completed during the recently 
concluded calendar month, including services and tasks performed and the reimbursable out-of-
pocket expenses incurred.  If the amount of CONSULTANT’s monthly compensation is a function 
of hours worked by CONSULTANT’s personnel, the invoice should indicate the number of hours 
worked in the recently concluded calendar month, the persons responsible for performing the 
Work, the rate of compensation at which such services and tasks were performed, the subtotal 
for each task and service performed and a grand total for all services performed.  Within thirty 
(30) calendar days of receipt of each invoice, CITY will notify CONSULTANT in writing of any 
disputed amounts included in the invoice.  Within forty-five (45) calendar days of receipt of each 
invoice, CITY will pay all undisputed amounts included on the invoice.  CITY will not withhold 
applicable taxes or other authorized deductions from payments made to CONSULTANT 
 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 51 of 221



2023 CONTRACT SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2195 
A&M Catering 
Page 5 of 36 
 
C. The Annual Not-to-Exceed Sum of $50,000 will be paid to CONTRACTOR based on the 

number of meals ordered per dance. Payment will be available on the event date of three 
days prior if warrant is available.  An invoice for the catered meals must be submitted 
within two weeks before the event date.  CITY shall not withhold applicable taxes or other 
authorized deductions from payments made to CONTRACTOR. 
 

SECTION 5. STANDARD OF CARE. 
 
CONTRACTOR represents, acknowledges and agrees as follows: 
 
A. CONTRACTOR shall perform all work skillfully, competently and to the highest standards 

applicable to the CONTRACTOR’s field; 
 

B. CONTRACTOR represents and maintains that it is skilled in the professional calling 
necessary to perform the Services; 

 
C. CONTRACTOR shall perform all work in a manner reasonably satisfactory to the CITY; 
 
D. CONTRACTOR shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws and 

regulations, including the conflict of interest provisions of Government Code Section 1090 
and the Political Reform Act (Government Code Section 81000 et seq.). CONTRACTOR’s 
compliance with applicable laws will include, without limitation, compliance with all 
applicable Cal/OSHA requirements and applicable regulations of the Federal Department 
of Housing and Urbanization; 

 
E. CONTRACTOR understands the nature and scope of the Work to be performed under this 

Agreement as well as any and all schedules of performance;  
 

F. All of CONTRACTOR’s employees and agents (including but not limited to CONTRACTOR’s 
subcontractors and subconsultants) possess sufficient skill, knowledge, training and 
experience to perform those services and tasks contemplated under this Agreement; 

 
G. All of CONTRACTOR’s employees and agents (including but not limited to CONTRACTOR’s 

subcontractors and subconsultants) possess all licenses, permits, certificates, 
qualifications and approvals of whatever nature that are legally required to perform the 
tasks and services contemplated under this Agreement and all such licenses, permits, 
certificates, qualifications and approvals shall be maintained throughout the term of this 
Agreement; and 
 

H. CONTRACTOR shall at all times employ such force, plant, materials, and tools as will be 
sufficient in the opinion of the CITY to perform the Services within the time limits 
established, and as provided herein. It is understood and agreed that said tools, 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 52 of 221



2023 CONTRACT SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2195 
A&M Catering 
Page 6 of 36 
 

equipment, apparatus, facilities, labor, and material shall be furnished and said Services 
performed and completed as required by the Agreement, and subject to the approval of 
the CITY’s authorized representative. The quality of Services shall meet or exceed those 
standards established by the CITY or County of jurisdiction. 

 
The Parties acknowledge and agree that CONTRACTOR shall perform, at CONTRACTOR’s own cost 
and expense and without any reimbursement from CITY, any services or tasks necessary to 
correct any errors or omissions caused by CONTRACTOR’s failure to comply with the standard of 
care set forth under this Section or by any like failure on the part of CONTRACTOR’s employees, 
agents, contractors, subcontractors and subconsultants.  Such effort by CONTRACTOR to correct 
any errors or omissions shall be commenced immediately upon their discovery by either Party 
and shall be completed within seven (7) calendars days from the date of discovery or such other 
extended period of time authorized by the City Representative in writing and absolute discretion.  
The Parties acknowledge and agree that CONTRACTOR’s acceptance of any work performed by 
CONTRACTOR or on CONTRACTOR’s behalf shall not constitute a release of any deficiency or 
delay in performance.  The Parties further acknowledge, understand and agree that 
CONTRACTOR has relied upon the foregoing representations of CONTRACTOR, including but not 
limited to the representation that CONTRACTOR possesses the skills, training, knowledge and 
experience necessary to perform the Work in a skillful and competent manner equivalent to, the 
standard of performance generally recognized as being employed by professionals performing 
the same type of work and services in the State of California.   
 
SECTION 6. REPRESENTATIVES.  
 
A. City Representative.  For the purposes of this Agreement, the contract administrator and 

CITY’s representative shall be the Director of Recreation and Community Services 
(hereinafter, the “City Representative”).  It shall be CONTRACTOR’s responsibility to 
assure that the City Representative is kept informed of the progress of the performance 
of the services, and CONTRACTOR shall refer any decisions which must be made by CITY 
to the City Representative.  Unless otherwise specified herein, any approval of CITY 
required hereunder shall mean the approval of the City Representative. 
 

B. Contractor Representative.  For the purposes of this Agreement, Cynthia Deleon, is 
hereby designated as the principal and representative of CONTRACTOR authorized to act 
on its behalf with respect to CONTRACTOR’s performance under this Agreement and to 
make all decisions in connection therewith (hereinafter, the “Contractor 
Representative”).  Notice to the Contractor Representative whether written or verbal 
shall constitute notice to CONTRACTOR. The Contractor’s Representative shall supervise 
and direct the Services, using their best skill and attention, and shall be responsible for all 
means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures and for the satisfactory 
coordination of all portions of the Services under this Agreement. 

 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 53 of 221



2023 CONTRACT SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2195 
A&M Catering 
Page 7 of 36 
 
SECTION 7. CONTRACTOR’S PERSONNEL. 
 
A. CONTRACTOR represents that it has, or will secure at its own expense, all personnel 

required to perform the Work and all other services and tasks necessary for CONTRACTOR 
to competently and timely complete the improvements contemplated under this 
Agreement.  All Work, services and tasks will be performed under CONTRACTOR’s 
supervision, and CONTRACTOR’s personnel engaged in the performance of the work, 
services and tasks contemplated under this Agreement shall possess the qualifications, 
permits and licenses required by applicable law to perform such work, services and tasks. 

 
B. CONTRACTOR shall obtain at its sole cost and expense such licenses, permits, and 

approvals as may be required by law for the performance of the Work.  CONTRACTOR 
shall have the sole obligation to pay for any fees, assessments and taxes, plus applicable 
penalties and interest, which may be imposed by law and arise from or are necessary for 
the CONTRACTOR’s performance of the Work, and shall indemnify, defend and hold 
harmless CITY against any such fees, assessments, taxes, penalties, or interest levied, 
assessed, or imposed against CITY hereunder.  
 

C. CONTRACTOR shall be solely responsible for the satisfactory work performance of all 
personnel engaged in performing the Work. 

 
D. In the event that CITY, in its sole reasonable discretion, at any time during the term of this 

Agreement, desires the removal of any person or persons assigned by CONTRACTOR to 
perform services pursuant to this Agreement, CONTRACTOR shall remove any such 
person immediately upon receiving notice from CITY of the desire of CITY for the removal 
of such person or persons. 

 
E. CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for payment of all employees’ and subconsultants’ 

wages and benefits and shall comply with all requirements pertaining to employer’s 
liability, workers’ compensation, unemployment insurance, and Social Security. 

 
F. CONTRACTOR shall obtain and maintain during the Agreement term all necessary 

licenses, permits and certificates required by law for the performance of the Work 
contemplated under this Agreement.   

 
SECTION 8. SUBSTITUTION OF KEY PERSONNEL.   
 
CONTRACTOR has represented to CITY that certain key personnel will perform and coordinate 
the Services under this Agreement.  Should one or more of such personnel become unavailable, 
CONTRACTOR may substitute other personnel of at least equal competence upon written 
approval of CITY.  In the event that CITY and CONTRACTOR cannot agree as to the substitution of 
key personnel, CITY shall be entitled to terminate this Agreement for cause.  As discussed below, 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 54 of 221



2023 CONTRACT SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2195 
A&M Catering 
Page 8 of 36 
 
any personnel who fail or refuse to perform the Services in a manner acceptable to the CITY, or 
who are determined by the CITY to be uncooperative, incompetent, a threat to the adequate or 
timely completion of the Project or a threat to the safety of persons or property, shall be 
promptly removed from the Project by the CONTRACTOR at the request of the CITY.  The key 
personnel for performance of this Agreement are as follows: 
 

• Alex Deleon & Cynthia DeLeon – Owners 
• Martin Montano - Head Chef 
• Paloma Deleon - Assistant Head Chef 
• Gonzalo Durant - Assistant Head Chef 
• Esmeralda Bernal - Salad Chef 
• Cienna Guzman - Food Runner 
• Jacob Esparza - Food Handler 
• Ruby Guznan - Pastry Chef/ Desserts 
• Mike Guzman - Food Handler 

 
SECTION 9. PREVAILING WAGES AND GENERAL LABOR COMPLIANCE AND REPORTING.  
 
A. CONTRACTOR and any subcontractor performing or contracting any portion of the Work 

shall comply with all applicable provisions of the California Labor Code for all workers, 
laborers and mechanics of all crafts, classifications or types, including, but necessarily 
limited to the following:  
 
1. In accordance with California Labor Code Section 1810, eight (8) hours of labor in 

performance of the Work shall constitute a legal day’s work under this Contract.  
CONTRACTOR and any subcontractor shall pay workers overtime pay (not less than 1 
1/2 times the base rate of pay) as required by California Labor Code Section 1815.  
CONTRACTOR and any subcontractor shall, as a penalty to the CITY, forfeit twenty-
five dollars ($25) for each worker employed in the execution of the contract by the 
respective contractor or subcontractor for each calendar day during which the worker 
is required or permitted to work more than 8 hours in any one calendar day and 40 
hours in any one calendar week in violation to the provisions of Article 3 of Chapter 1 
of Part 7, Division 2 of the California Labor Code, which is incorporated by this 
reference as though fully set forth herein. 

 
2. Pursuant to the provisions of California Labor Code, Sections 1770 et. seq., 

CONTRACTOR and any subcontractor under CONTRACTOR shall pay not less than the 
prevailing rate of per diem wages as determined by the Director of the California 
Department of Industrial Relations.  Pursuant to the provisions of California Labor 
Code Section 1773.2, CONTRACTOR is hereby advised that copies of the prevailing 
rate of per diem wages and a general prevailing rate for holidays, Saturdays and 
Sundays and overtime work in the locality in which the work is to be performed for 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 55 of 221



2023 CONTRACT SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2195 
A&M Catering 
Page 9 of 36 
 

each craft, classification, or type of worker required to execute the Contract, are on 
file in the office of the District Secretary, which copies shall be made available to any 
interested party on request. CONTRACTOR shall post a copy of said prevailing rate of 
per diem wages at each job site.  

 
B. As required by Section 1773.1 of the California Labor Code, CONTRACTOR shall pay travel 

and subsistence payments to each worker needed to execute the Work, as such travel 
and subsistence payments are defined in the applicable collective bargaining agreements 
filed in accordance with this Section.  

 
C. To establish such travel and subsistence payments, the representative of any craft, 

classification, or type of workman needed to execute the contracts shall file with the 
Department of Industrial Relations fully executed copies of collective bargaining 
agreements for the particular craft, classification or type of work involved.  Such 
agreements shall be filed within ten (10) days after their execution and thereafter shall 
establish such travel and payments.  

 
D. CONTRACTOR shall comply with the provisions of Section 1775 of the California Labor 

Code and shall, as a penalty to CITY, forfeit up to fifty dollars ($50) for each calendar day, 
or portion thereof, for each worker paid less than the prevailing rate of per diem wages 
for each craft, classification, or type of worker needed to execute the contract.  
CONTRACTOR shall pay each worker an amount equal to the difference between the 
prevailing wage rates and the amount paid worker for each calendar day or portion 
thereof for which a worker was paid less than the prevailing wage rate.  CONTRACTOR is 
required to pay all applicable penalties and back wages in the event of violation of 
prevailing wage law, and CONTRACTOR and any subcontractor shall fully comply with 
California Labor Code Section 1775, which is incorporated by this reference as though 
fully set forth herein.  

 
E. CONTRACTOR and any subcontractor shall maintain and make available for inspection 

payroll records as required by Labor Code Section 1776, which is incorporated by this 
reference as though fully set forth herein.  CONTRACTOR is responsible for ensuring 
compliance with Labor Code Section 1776 and shall keep accurate payroll records 
containing all such information as maybe called for under Labor Code Section 1776 and 
other applicable provisions of State law.  

 
F. CONTRACTOR and any subcontractors shall, when they employ any person in any 

apprenticeable craft or trade, apply to the joint apprenticeship committee administering 
the apprenticeship standards of the craft or trade in the area of the work site for a 
certificate approving CONTRACTOR or subcontractor under the apprenticeship standards 
for the employment and training of apprentices in the area or industry affected; and shall 
comply with all other requirements of Section 1777.5 of the California Labor Code, which 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 56 of 221



2023 CONTRACT SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2195 
A&M Catering 
Page 10 of 36 
 

is incorporated by this reference as though fully set forth herein.  The responsibility of 
compliance with California Labor Code Section 1777.5 during the performance of this 
contract rests with CONTRACTOR.  Pursuant to California Labor Code Section 1777.7, in 
the event CONTRACTOR willfully fails to comply with the provisions of California Labor 
Code Section 1777.5, CONTRACTOR shall be denied the right to bid on any public works 
contract for up to three (3) years from the date noncompliance is determined and be 
assessed civil penalties. 

 
G. In accordance with the provisions of Article 5, Chapter 1, Part 7, Division 2 (commencing 

with Section 1860), and Chapter 4, Part 1, Division 4 (commencing with Section 3700) of 
the California Labor Code, CONTRACTOR is required to secure the payment of 
compensation to its employees and for that purpose obtain and keep in effect adequate 
Workers' Compensation Insurance and Employers Liability Insurance.  If CONTRACTOR, in 
the sole discretion of the CITY satisfies the CITY of the responsibility and capacity under 
the applicable Workers' Compensation Laws, if any, to act as self-insurer, CONTRACTOR 
may so act, and in such case, the insurance required by this paragraph need not be 
provided.  CONTRACTOR is advised of the provisions of Section 3700 of the California 
Labor Code, which requires every employer to be insured against liability for Workers' 
Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of that 
Code and shall comply with such provisions and have Employer’s General Liability limits 
of $1,000,000 per accident before commencing the performance of the Work of this 
Contract.  The Notice to Proceed with the Work under this Contract will not be issued, 
and CONTRACTOR shall not commence the Work, until CONTRACTOR submits written 
evidence that it has obtained full Workers' Compensation Insurance coverage for all 
persons whom it employs or may employ in carrying out the Work under this Contract. 
This insurance shall be in accordance with the requirements of the most current and 
applicable state Workers' Compensation Insurance Laws.  In accordance with the 
provisions of Section 1861 of the California Labor Code, CONTRACTOR in signing this 
Contract certifies to the CITY as true the following statement: "I am aware of the 
provisions of Section 3700 of the Labor Code which requires every employer to be insured 
against liability for Workers' Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance 
with the provisions of that Code, and I will comply with such provisions before 
commencing the performance of the Work of this contract."  A subcontractor is not 
allowed to commence the Work on the project until verification of Workers’ 
Compensation Insurance coverage has been obtained and verified by CONTRACTOR and 
submitted to the City Engineer for the CITY’s review and records.  
 

H. In accordance with the provisions of Section 1727 of the California Labor Code, the CITY, 
before making payment to CONTRACTOR of money due under a contract for public works, 
shall withhold and retain therefrom all wages and penalties which have been forfeited 
pursuant to any stipulation in the contract, and the terms of Chapter 1, Part 7, Division 2 
of the California Labor Code (commencing with Section 1720). But no sum shall be 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 57 of 221



2023 CONTRACT SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2195 
A&M Catering 
Page 11 of 36 
 

withheld, retained or forfeited, except from the final payment, without a full investigation 
by either the Division of Labor Standards Enforcement or by the CITY.  
 

SECTION 10. PROHIBITED INTERESTS.  
 
CONTRACTOR warrants, represents and maintains that it has not employed nor retained any 
company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for CONTRACTOR, to solicit 
or secure this Agreement.  Further, CONTRACTOR warrants and represents that it has not paid 
nor has it agreed to pay any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely 
for CONTRACTOR, any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift or other consideration 
contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of this Agreement.  For breach or 
violation of this warranty, CITY shall have the absolute and unfettered right to rescind this 
Agreement without liability or penalty.  For the term of this Agreement, no member, officer or 
employee of CITY, during the term of his or her service with CITY, shall have any direct interest in 
this Agreement, or obtain any present or anticipated material benefit arising therefrom. 
 
SECTION 11. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. 
 
A. All acts of CONTRACTOR, its agents, officers, subcontractors and employees and all others 

acting on behalf of CONTRACTOR relating to the performance of this Agreement, shall be 
performed as independent contractors and not as agents, officers, or employees of CITY.  
CONTRACTOR, by virtue of this Agreement, has no authority to bind or incur any 
obligation on behalf of CITY.  CONTRACTOR has no authority or responsibility to exercise 
any rights or power vested in CITY.  No agent, officer, or employee of CITY is to be 
considered an employee of CONTRACTOR.  It is understood by both CONTRACTOR and 
CITY that this Agreement shall not, under any circumstances, be construed or considered 
to create an employer-employee relationship or a joint venture.  
 

B. CONTRACTOR, its agents, officers, subcontractors and employees are and, at all times 
during the Term of this Agreement, shall represent and conduct themselves as 
independent contractors and not as employees of CITY. 

 
C. CONTRACTOR shall determine the method, details and means of performing the Work. 

CONTRACTOR shall be responsible to CITY only for the requirements and results specified 
in this Agreement and, except as expressly provided in this Agreement, shall not be 
subjected to CITY's control with respect to the physical action or activities of the 
CONTRACTOR in fulfillment of this Agreement.  CONTRACTOR has control over the 
manner and means of performing the services under this Agreement.  CONTRACTOR is 
permitted to provide services to others during the same period as it provides services to 
CITY under this Agreement.  If necessary, CONTRACTOR has the responsibility for 
employing other persons or caterers to assist CONTRACTOR in fulfilling the terms and 
obligations under this Agreement. 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 58 of 221



2023 CONTRACT SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2195 
A&M Catering 
Page 12 of 36 
 

 
D. If in the performance of this Agreement any third persons are employed by CONTRACTOR, 

such persons shall be entirely and exclusively under the direction, supervision, and control 
of CONTRACTOR.  All terms of employment including hours, wages, working conditions, 
discipline, hiring, and discharging or any other term of employment or requirement of law 
shall be determined by the CONTRACTOR.  

 
E. It is understood and agreed that as an independent contractor and not an employee of 

CITY neither the CONTRACTOR nor CONTRACTOR'S assigned personnel shall have any 
entitlement as a CITY employee, right to act on behalf of CITY in any capacity whatsoever 
as an agent, or to bind CITY to any obligation whatsoever.  

 
F. As an independent contractor, CONTRACTOR hereby indemnifies and holds CITY harmless 

from any and all claims that may be made against CITY based upon any contention by any 
third party that an employer-employee relationship exists by reason of this Agreement.  

 
SECTION 12. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST.   CONTRACTOR hereby warrants for itself, its employees, 
and subcontractors that those persons presently have no interest and shall not obtain any 
interest, direct or indirect, which would conflict in any manner with the performance of the 
services contemplated by this Agreement.  No person having such conflicting interest shall be 
employed by or associated with CONTRACTOR in connection with this project.  CONTRACTOR 
hereby warrants for itself, its employees, and subcontractors that no such person shall engage in 
any conduct which would constitute a conflict of interest under any CITY ordinance, state law or 
federal statute.  CONTRACTOR agrees that a clause substantially similar to this Section shall be 
incorporated into any sub-contract that CONTRACTOR executes in connection with the 
performance of this Agreement. 
 
SECTION 13. NON-DISCRIMINATION.   During the performance of this Agreement, 
CONTRACTOR and its subcontractors shall not unlawfully discriminate against any employee or 
applicant for employment because of race, religion, color, national origin, ancestry, physical 
handicap, medical condition, marital status, age (over 40) or set.  CONTRACTOR and 
subcontractors shall ensure that the evaluation and treatment of their employees and applicants 
for employment are free of such discrimination.  CONTRACTOR and subcontractors shall comply 
with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Gov. Code, Section 12990 et seq.) 
and the applicable regulations promulgated hereunder (California Code of Regulations, Title 2, 
Section 7285.0 et seq.).  The applicable regulations of the Fair Employment and Housing 
Commission implementing Government Code, Section 12990, set forth in Chapter 5 of Division 4 
of Title 2 of the California Code of Regulations are incorporated into this Contract by reference 
and made a part hereof as if set forth in full. CONTRACTOR and its subcontractors shall give 
written notice of their obligations under this clause to labor organizations with which they have 
a collective bargaining or other agreement.  This CONTRACTOR shall include the 
nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all subcontracts to perform the 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 59 of 221



2023 CONTRACT SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2195 
A&M Catering 
Page 13 of 36 
 
Work under this Agreement.  
 
SECTION. 14. INDEMNIFICATION.    
 
A. To the fullest extent permitted by law, CONTRACTOR hereby agrees, at its sole cost and 

expense, to defend, protect, indemnify, and hold harmless CITY and CITY’s elected and 
appointed officials, officers, attorneys, agents, employees, volunteers, successors, and 
assigns (collectively "Indemnitees") from and against any and all damages, costs, 
expenses, liabilities, claims, demands, causes of action, proceedings, expenses, 
judgments, penalties, liens, and losses of any nature whatsoever, including fees of 
accountants, attorneys, or other professionals and all costs associated therewith 
(collectively "Liabilities"), arising or claimed to arise, directly or indirectly, out of, in 
connection with, resulting from, or related to any act, failure to act, error, or omission of 
CONTRACTOR or any of CONTRACTOR’s officers, agents, servants, employees, 
subcontractors, materialmen, suppliers or their officers, agents, servants or employees, 
arising or claimed to arise, directly or indirectly, out of, in connection with, resulting from, 
or related to this Agreement and the performance or failure to perform any term, 
provision, covenant, or condition of the Agreement, including this indemnity provision.  
This indemnity provision is effective regardless of any prior, concurrent, or subsequent 
active or passive negligence by CONTRACTOR and shall operate to fully indemnify 
Indemnitees against any such negligence.  This indemnity provision shall survive the 
termination of the Agreement and is in addition to any other rights or remedies which 
Indemnitees may have under the law or elsewhere under this Agreement.  Payment is not 
required as a condition precedent to an Indemnitee's right to recover under this 
indemnity provision, and an entry of judgment against any one or more of the 
Indemnitees shall be conclusive in favor of the Indemnitees’ right to recover under this 
indemnity provision.  CONTRACTOR shall pay Indemnitees for any attorney’s fees and 
costs incurred in enforcing this indemnification provision. Notwithstanding the foregoing, 
nothing in this instrument shall be construed to encompass (a) Indemnitees' sole 
negligence or willful misconduct to the limited extent that the underlying Agreement is 
subject to Civil Code § 2782(a), or (b) the contracting public agency's active negligence to 
the limited extent that the underlying Agreement is subject to Civil Code § 2782(b).  This 
indemnity is effective without reference to the existence or applicability of any insurance 
coverage(s) which may have been required under the Agreement or any additional 
insured endorsements which may extend to Indemnitees. Accountants, attorneys, or 
other professionals employed by Indemnitor to defend Indemnitees shall be selected by 
Indemnitees. CONTRACTOR, on behalf of itself and all parties claiming under or through 
it, hereby waives all rights of subrogation and contribution against the Indemnitees, while 
acting within the scope of their duties, from all claims, losses and liabilities arising out of 
or incident to activities or operations performed by or on behalf of the Indemnitor 
regardless of any prior, concurrent, or subsequent active or passive negligence by the 
Indemnitees.  

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 60 of 221



2023 CONTRACT SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2195 
A&M Catering 
Page 14 of 36 
 

 
B. CONTRACTOR’s obligations under this or any other provision of this Agreement will not 

be limited by the provisions of any workers compensation act or similar act.  
CONTRACTOR expressly waives its statutory immunity under such statutes or laws as to 
the Indemnities.  

 
C. CONTRACTOR agrees to obtain executed indemnity agreements with provisions identical 

to those in this Section from each and every subcontractor or any other person or entity 
involved by, for, with or on behalf of CONTRACTOR in the performance of this Agreement.  
In the event CONTRACTOR fails to obtain such indemnity obligations for the benefit of 
CITY, CONTRACTOR agrees to be fully responsible and indemnify, hold harmless and 
defend CITY, its officers, agents, employees and volunteers from and against any and all 
claims and losses, costs or expenses for any damage due to death or injury to any person 
and injury to any property resulting from any alleged, intentional, reckless, negligent or 
otherwise wrongful acts, errors or omissions of CONTRACTOR or any of its officers, 
employees, servants, agents, subcontractors, volunteers or any other person or entity 
involved by, for, with or on behalf of CONTRACTOR in the performance of this Agreement.  
Such costs and expenses shall include reasonable attorneys’ fees incurred by counsel of 
CITY’s choice.  

 
D. CITY does not, and shall not; waive any rights that it may possess against CONTRACTOR 

because of the acceptance by CITY, or the deposit with CITY, of any insurance policy or 
certificate required pursuant to this Agreement.  This hold harmless and indemnification 
provision shall apply regardless of whether or not any insurance policies are determined 
to be applicable to the claim, demand, damage, liability, loss, cost or expense. 
CONTRACTOR agrees that CONTRACTOR’s covenant under this Section shall survive the 
termination of this Agreement. 

 
E. CONTRACTOR shall fully comply with the workers’ compensation laws regarding 

CONTRACTOR and CONTRACTOR’s employees.  CONTRACTOR further agrees to indemnify 
and hold CITY harmless from any failure of CONTRACTOR to comply with applicable 
workers’ compensation laws.  CITY shall have the right to offset against the amount of any 
fees due to CONTRACTOR under this Agreement any amount due to CITY from 
CONTRACTOR as a result of CONTRACTOR’s failure to promptly pay to CITY any 
reimbursement or indemnification arising under this Section. 

 
SECTION 15. INSURANCE.  
 
A. CONTRACTOR shall at all times during the term of this Agreement carry, maintain, and 

keep in full force and effect, insurance as follows:   
 
1. Commercial General Liability Insurance with minimum limits of One Million Dollars 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 61 of 221



2023 CONTRACT SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2195 
A&M Catering 
Page 15 of 36 
 

($1,000,000) for each occurrence and in the aggregate for any personal injury, death, 
loss or damage.  
 

2. Automobile Liability Insurance for any owned, non-owned or hired vehicle used in 
connection with the performance of this Agreement with minimum limits of One 
Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per accident for bodily injury and property damage.  
 

3. Worker’s Compensation insurance as required by the State of California. 
 

B. CONTRACTOR shall require each of its sub-consultants or sub-contractors to maintain 
insurance coverage that meets all of the requirements of this Agreement. 

 
C. The policies required by this Agreement shall be issued by an insurer admitted in the State 

of California and with a rating of at least A:VII in the latest edition of Best’s Insurance 
Guide. 

 
D. CONTRACTOR agrees that if it does not keep the insurance required in this Agreement in 

full force and effect, CITY may either immediately terminate this Agreement or, if 
insurance is available at a reasonable cost, CITY may take out the necessary insurance and 
pay, at CONTRACTOR’S expense, the premium thereon. 

 
E. Prior to commencement of Work under this Agreement, CONTRACTOR shall file with 

CITY’s Risk Manager a certificate or certificates of insurance showing that the insurance 
policies are in effect and satisfy the required amounts and specifications required 
pursuant to this Agreement.  
 

F. CONTRACTOR shall provide proof that policies of insurance expiring during the Term of 
this Agreement have been renewed or replaced with other policies providing at least the 
same coverage.  Such proof will be furnished at least two weeks prior to the expiration of 
the coverages.  
 

G. The general liability and automobile policies of insurance shall contain an endorsement 
naming CITY, its elected officials, officers, agents, employees, attorneys, servants, 
volunteers, successors and assigns as additional insureds.  All of the policies shall contain 
an endorsement providing that the policies cannot be canceled or reduced except on 
thirty (30) days’ prior written notice to CITY.  CONTRACTOR agrees to require its insurer 
to modify the certificates of insurance to delete any exculpatory wording stating that 
failure of the insurer to mail written notice of cancellation imposes no obligation, and to 
delete the word “endeavor” with regard to any notice provisions.   
 

H. All policies of Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability insurance shall be 
primary and any other insurance, deductible, or self-insurance maintained by the CITY, its 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 62 of 221



2023 CONTRACT SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2195 
A&M Catering 
Page 16 of 36 
 

officials, officers, employees, agents, or volunteers shall not contribute with this primary 
insurance.  Policies shall contain or be endorsed to contain such provisions. 
 

I. All insurance coverage provided pursuant to this Agreement shall not prohibit 
CONTRACTOR, and CONTRACTOR’s employees, agents, subcontractors, or volunteers 
from waiving the right of subrogation prior to a loss.  CONTRACTOR hereby waives all 
rights of subrogation against CITY, its officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers.    
 

J. Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be approved by CITY.  At the option of 
CITY, CONTRACTOR shall either reduce or eliminate the deductibles or self-insured 
retentions with respect to CITY, or CONTRACTOR shall procure a bond guaranteeing 
payment of losses and expenses. 

 
K. If CONTRACTOR is a Limited Liability Company, general liability coverage must be 

amended so that the Limited Liability Company and its managers, affiliates, employees, 
agents, and other persons necessary or incidental to its operation are insureds.    

 
L. Procurement of insurance by CONTRACTOR shall not be construed as a limitation of 

CONTRACTOR’s liability or as full performance of CONTRACTOR’s duties to indemnify, 
hold harmless and defend under Section 15 of this Agreement.  
 

M. In the event any policy of insurance required under this Agreement does not comply with 
these specifications or is canceled and not replaced immediately so as to avoid a lapse in 
the required coverage, CITY has the right but not the duty to obtain the insurance it deems 
necessary and any premium paid by CITY will be promptly reimbursed by CONTRACTOR 
or CITY will withhold amounts sufficient to pay premium from CONTRACTOR payments. 
In the alternative, CITY may cancel this Agreement effective upon notice. 
 

N. CITY reserves the right to modify these requirements, including limits, based on the 
nature of the risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other special circumstances. 
 

SECTION 16. RECORDS AND INSPECTION.  CONTRACTOR shall keep, and require 
subcontractors to keep, such books and records as shall be necessary to document the 
performance of the Work and enable the CITY to evaluate the performance of the Work. The 
Contract Officer shall have full and free access to such books and records at all times during 
normal business hours of CITY, including the right to inspect, copy, audit, and make records and 
transcripts from such records. Such records shall be maintained for a period of four (4) years 
following completion of the services hereunder, and the CITY shall have access to such records in 
the event any audit is required.  
 
  

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 63 of 221



2023 CONTRACT SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2195 
A&M Catering 
Page 17 of 36 
 
SECTION 17. TERMINATION. 
 
A. Termination for Convenience.  CITY may immediately terminate this Agreement for 

convenience, without cause and without penalty or liability at any time upon the issuance 
of written notice to CONTRACTOR specifying the effective date of such termination.  Such 
termination for convenience shall be made in writing signed by either the City 
Representative, the City Manager or the Assistant City Manager.  CONTRACTOR may only 
terminate this Agreement for cause.  

 
B. Termination for Cause.  In the event either Party fails to perform any duty, obligation, 

service or task set forth under this Agreement (or fails to timely perform or properly 
perform any such duty, obligation, service or task set forth under this Agreement), an 
event of default (hereinafter, “Event of Default”) shall occur.  For all Events of Default, 
the Party alleging an Event of Default shall give written notice to the defaulting Party 
(hereinafter referred to as a “Default Notice”) which shall specify: (i) the nature of the 
Event of Default; (ii) the action required to cure the Event of Default; (iii) a date by which 
the Event of Default shall be cured, which shall not be less than the applicable cure period 
set forth in this Section or if a cure is not reasonably possible within the applicable cure 
period, to begin such cure and diligently prosecute such cure to completion.  The Event 
of Default shall constitute a breach of this Agreement if the defaulting Party fails to cure 
the Event of Default within the applicable cure period or any extended cure period 
allowed under this Agreement.  An Event of Default shall include, but shall not be limited 
to the following:  (i) CONTRACTOR’s failure to fulfill or perform its obligations under this 
Agreement within the specified time or if no time is specified, within a reasonable time;  
(ii) CONTRACTOR’s and/or its employees’ disregard or violation of any federal, state, local 
law, rule, procedure or regulation;  (iii) the initiation of proceedings under any 
bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership, reorganization, or similar legislation as relates to 
CONTRACTOR, whether voluntary of involuntary; (iv) CONTRACTOR’s refusal or failure to 
perform or observe any covenant, condition, obligation or provision of this Agreement; 
and/or (v) CITY’s discovery that a statement representation or warranty by CONTRACTOR 
relating to this Agreement is false or erroneous in any material respect, including any 
statement, representation or warranty set forth in the Equipment Specifications. 
 
1. CONTRACTOR shall cure the following Event of Default within the following time 

periods: 
 

i. Within three (3) business days of CITY’s issuance of a Default Notice for any 
failure of CONTRACTOR to timely provide CITY or CITY’s employees or agents 
with any information and/or written reports, documentation or work product 
which CONTRACTOR is obligated to provide to CITY or CITY’s employees or 
agents under this Agreement.  Prior to the expiration of the 3-day cure period, 
CONTRACTOR may submit a written request for additional time to cure the 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 64 of 221



2023 CONTRACT SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2195 
A&M Catering 
Page 18 of 36 
 

Event of Default upon a showing that CONTRACTOR has commenced efforts 
to cure the Event of Default and that the Event of Default cannot be reasonably 
cured within the 3-day cure period.  The foregoing notwithstanding, CITY shall 
be under no obligation to grant additional time for the cure of an Event of 
Default under this subsection that exceeds seven (7) calendar days from the 
end of the initial 3-day cure period; or 

 
ii. Within thirty (30) calendar days of CITY’s issuance of a Default Notice for any 

other Event of Default under this Agreement.  Prior to the expiration of the 
30-day cure period, CONTRACTOR may submit a written request for additional 
time to cure the Event of Default upon a showing that CONTRACTOR has 
commenced efforts to cure the Event of Default and that the Event of Default 
cannot be reasonably cured within the 30-day cure period.  The foregoing 
notwithstanding, CITY shall be under no obligation to grant additional time for 
the cure of an Event of Default under this subsection that exceeds thirty (30) 
calendar days from the end of the initial 30-day cure period. 

 
If an Event of Default relates to a material falsehood or misrepresentation set forth in 
Exhibit “B” that is not susceptible to a cure, CITY in its sole and absolute discretion 
may elect to treat the falsehood or misrepresentation as a breach of this Agreement 
or waive the falsehood or misrepresentation.  The foregoing notwithstanding, the 
prior waiver of a falsehood or misrepresentation as an Event of Default shall not 
operate as a waiver or any other falsehood or misrepresentation later discovered by 
CITY.  

 
2. Except as otherwise specified in this Agreement, CITY shall cure any Event of Default 

asserted by CONTRACTOR within thirty (30) calendar days of CONTRACTOR’s issuance 
of a Default Notice, unless the Event of Default cannot reasonably be cured within the 
30-day cure period.  Prior to the expiration of the 30-day cure period, CITY may submit 
a written request for additional time to cure the Event of Default upon a showing that 
CITY has commenced its efforts to cure the Event of Default and that the Event of 
Default cannot be reasonably cured within the 30-day cure period.  The foregoing 
notwithstanding, an Event of Default dealing with CITY’s failure to timely pay any 
undisputed sums to CONTRACTOR shall be cured by CITY within five (5) calendar days 
from the date of CONTRACTOR’s Default Notice to CITY. 

 
3. CITY, in its sole and absolute discretion, may also immediately suspend 

CONTRACTOR’s performance under this Agreement (or the performance of any 
specific task or function performed by CONTRACTOR under this Agreement) pending 
CONTRACTOR’s cure of any Event of Default by giving CONTRACTOR written notice of 
CITY’s intent to suspend CONTRACTOR’s performance (hereinafter, a “Suspension 
Notice”).  CITY may issue the Suspension Notice at any time upon the occurrence of 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 65 of 221



2023 CONTRACT SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2195 
A&M Catering 
Page 19 of 36 
 

an Event of Default. Upon such suspension, CONTRACTOR shall be compensated only 
for those services and tasks which have been rendered by CONTRACTOR to the 
reasonable satisfaction of CITY up to the effective date of the suspension.   No actual 
or asserted breach of this Agreement on the part of CITY shall operate to prohibit or 
otherwise restrict CITY’s ability to suspend this Agreement as provided herein. 

 
 

4. No waiver of any Event of Default or breach under this Agreement shall constitute a 
waiver of any other or subsequent Event of Default or breach.  No waiver, benefit, 
privilege, or service voluntarily given or performed by a Party shall give the other Party 
any contractual rights by custom, estoppel, or otherwise.  
 

5. The duties and obligations imposed under this Agreement and the rights and 
remedies available hereunder shall be in addition to and not a limitation of any duties, 
obligations, rights and remedies otherwise imposed or available by law. In addition to 
any other remedies available to CITY at law or under this Agreement in the event of 
any breach of this Agreement, CITY, in its sole and absolute discretion, may also 
pursue any one or more of the following remedies: 

 
i. Upon written notice to CONTRACTOR, the CITY may immediately terminate 

this Agreement in whole or in part; 
 

ii. Upon written notice to CONTRACTOR, the CITY may extend the time of 
performance; 

 
iii. The CITY may proceed by appropriate court action to enforce the terms of the 

Agreement to recover damages for CONTRACTOR’s breach of the Agreement 
or to terminate the Agreement; or 

 
iv. The CITY may exercise any other available and lawful right or remedy.  

 
CONTRACTOR shall be liable for all legal fees plus other costs and expenses that CITY 
incurs upon a breach of this Agreement or in the CITY’s exercise of its remedies under 
this Agreement.  

 
6. In the event CITY is in breach of this Agreement, CONTRACTOR’s sole remedy shall be 

the suspension or termination of this Agreement and/or the recovery of any unpaid 
sums lawfully owed to CONTRACTOR under this Agreement for completed services 
and tasks.  In no event shall CONTRACTOR be entitled to receive more than the 
amount that would be paid to CONTRACTOR for the full performance of the services 
required by this Agreement.   
 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 66 of 221



2023 CONTRACT SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2195 
A&M Catering 
Page 20 of 36 
 

7. No waiver of any default or breach under this Agreement shall constitute a waiver of 
any other default or breach, whether of the same or other covenant, warranty, 
agreement, term, condition, duty or requirement contained in this Agreement.  No 
waiver, benefit, privilege, or service voluntarily given or performed by a Party shall 
give the other Party any contractual rights by custom, estoppel, or otherwise.  

 
SECTION 18. FORCE MAJEURE.   The Completion Date shall be extended in the event of any 
delays due to unforeseeable causes beyond the control of CONTRACTOR and without the fault or 
negligence of CONTRACTOR, including but not limited to severe weather, fires, earthquakes, 
floods, epidemics, quarantine restrictions, riots, strikes, freight embargoes, wars, litigation, 
and/or acts of any governmental agency, including the CITY, if the CONTRACTOR shall within 
three (3) calendar days of the commencement of such delay notify the City Representative in 
writing of the causes of the delay. The City Representative shall ascertain the facts and the extent 
of delay, and extend the time for performing the services for the period of the enforced delay 
when and if in the judgment of the City Representative such delay is justified. The City 
Representative’s determination shall be final and conclusive upon the parties to this Agreement. 
In no event shall CONTRACTOR be entitled to recover damages against the CITY for any delay in 
the performance of this Agreement, however caused, CONTRACTOR’S sole remedy being 
extension of the Agreement pursuant to this Section.  
 
SECTION 19. NOTICES.   Any notices, bills, invoices, or reports required by this Agreement shall 
be deemed received on: (a) the day of delivery if delivered by hand or overnight courier service 
during CONTRACTOR’s and CITY’s regular business hours; or (b) on the third business day 
following deposit in the United States mail, postage prepaid, to the addresses heretofore below, 
or to such other addresses as the parties may, from time to time, designate in writing.   
 

If to CITY:  If to CONTRACTOR: 
 
City of San Fernando 
117 Macneil Street 
San Fernando, CA 91340 
Attn: RCS Department  
Phone: (818) 898-1290 

  
A&M Catering 
13158 Bradley Ave, Sylmar CA  
Attn:  Cynthia Deleon 
Phone: (818) 709-5385 
 
  

 
SECTION 20. PROHIBITION.   CONTRACTOR shall not delegate, transfer, subcontract or assign 
its duties or rights hereunder, either in whole or in part, without CITY’s prior written consent, and 
any attempt to do so shall be void and of no effect. CITY shall not be obligated or liable under this 
Agreement to any party other than CONTRACTOR.     
 
SECTION 21. ATTORNEY FEES.   In the event that CITY or CONTRACTOR commences any legal 
action or proceeding to enforce or interpret the provisions of this Agreement, the prevailing party 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 67 of 221



2023 CONTRACT SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2195 
A&M Catering 
Page 21 of 36 
 
shall be entitled to recover its costs of suit, including reasonable attorney’s fees. 
 
SECTION 22. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.   All documents referenced as exhibits in this Agreement are 
hereby incorporated in this Agreement.  Except as expressly provided in this Agreement or its 
Exhibits, in the event of any conflict or inconsistency between the express provisions of this 
Agreement and provisions of any document incorporated by reference, the provisions of this 
Agreement shall prevail and control.  This instrument contains the entire Agreement between 
CITY and CONTRACTOR with respect to the subject matter herein.  No other prior oral or written 
agreements are binding on the parties.  Any modification of this Agreement will be effective only 
if it is in writing and executed by both CITY and CONTRACTOR. 
 
SECTION 23. GOVERNING LAW; JURISDICTION.  This Agreement shall be interpreted and 
governed according to the laws of the State of California.  In the event of litigation between the 
Parties, venue, without exception, shall be in the Los Angeles County Superior Court of the State 
of California.  If, and only if, applicable law requires that all or part of any such litigation be tried 
exclusively in federal court, venue, without exception, shall be in the Central District of California 
located in the City of Los Angeles, California.  
 
SECTION 24. SEVERABILITY.  Wherever possible, each provision of this Agreement shall be 
interpreted in such a manner as to be valid under applicable law.  If any provision of this 
Agreement is determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or 
unenforceable, the remaining provisions shall nevertheless continue in full force and effect.   
 
SECTION 25. CAPTIONS.  The captions used in this Agreement are solely for reference and the 
convenience of the Parties.  The captions are not a part of the Agreement, in no way bind, limit, 
or describe the scope or intent of any provision, and shall have no effect upon the construction 
or interpretation of any provision herein. 
 
SECTION 26. EXECUTION. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, 
each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which when taken together shall constitute 
one and the same instrument.  
  
 
 

(Signature Page to Follow) 
  

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 68 of 221



2023 CONTRACT SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2195 
A&M Catering 
Page 22 of 36 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed the day 
and year first appearing in this Agreement, above. 
 
 
 
 
CITY OF SAN FERNANDO  A & M CATERERING: 

 
 

By:   By:  
 Nick Kimball, City Manager    
   Name:  
Date:     
   Title:  
     
APPROVED AS TO FORM  Date:  
     
By:     
 Richard Padilla, Assistant City Attorney    
     
Date:     

 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 69 of 221



EXHIBIT “A” 
CONTRACT NO. 2195 

 

 
NOTICE INVITING BIDS 

 
Notice is hereby given that sealed proposals will be received by the City of San Fernando, California, 
for furnishing the following: 

 
On-Site catering for Las Palmas Senior Club 

 
in strict accordance with the Specifications on file in the office of the SAN FERNANDO 
FINANCE DEPARTMENT, 117 Macneil Street, San Fernando, California, 91340.  Copies of 
specifications and proposal documents may be obtained from the City’s website at 
SFCITY.ORG/rfps-rfqs-nibs-nois/.   
 
One original and one electronic copy of the proposal must be submitted to the RECREATION 
AND COMMUNITY SERVICES DEPARTMENT in a sealed envelope at CITY HALL, 117 
Macneil Street, San Fernando, California, 91340, not later than 5:30 p.m. on Friday, August 11, 
2023.  In lieu of providing an original copy, proposals will also be accepted electronically via 
email and must be received prior to the deadline indicated above.  Any bidder may withdraw their 
proposal, without obligation, at any time prior to the scheduled closing time for receipt of 
proposals.  A withdrawal will not be effective unless made personally or by telephonic notification 
received prior to the closing date.  Proposals may later be referred to the City Council for 
appropriate action.  The City reserves the right to reject any or all proposals as the best interests of 
the City may dictate. 
 
 
 
 

By: _________________________________ 
Julia Fritz, City Clerk 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Published in The San Fernando Sun on July 20, 2023.  
  

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 70 of 221

https://ci.san-fernando.ca.us/rfps-rfqs-nibs-nois/


EXHIBIT “A” 
CONTRACT NO. 2195 

                                                               

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

The Recreation and Community Services Department is requesting proposals 
for: 

 
 

On-site catering for Las Palmas Senior Club 
 
 
 
 
 

RELEASE DATE: July 20, 2023 
 

RESPONSE DUE: August 11, 2023 
 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 71 of 221



EXHIBIT “A” 
CONTRACT NO. 2195 

 

 GENERAL INFORMATION 
 

The City of San Fernando is interested in contracting with an experienced and specialized caterer 
to provide on-site catering through the remainder of Fiscal Year 2023-2024 (September 5, 2023 
– June 30, 2024) with the option of extending the agreement for an addition Fiscal Year (July 1, 
2024 – June 30, 2025).  The City will notify the caterer in writing within 60 days of expiration 
should the agreement be extend.  The services, conditions, and cost of the original agreement 
will remain in force.  The Scope of Work describe the services and conditions required in this 
Request for Proposals (RFP).   

 
 
BACKGROUND 

 
The Recreation and Community Services Department (RCS) oversees the Las Palmas Senior 
Citizens Club.  The Club hosts monthly dances and some of the dances include a sit down dinner. 
This RFP is for catering services for those dances that provide a dinner, which attract 
approximately 300 guest (plus or minus 20 guest).  The Scope of Work below list the dances that 
will require catered meal services. Each dance is held at Las Palmas Park- 505 S. Huntington 
Street.  Parking is reserved for catering truck(s) to park next to the dance venue entrance. The 
menu for each dance meal will be selected by the Club’s Advisory Board and approved by the RCS 
Supervisor.  
 
The City believes that the open competition for services and products provides the City with the 
best results for its public dollars. The City is seeking responsive and competitive proposals from 
experienced and qualified caterers to provide catered meal for the Las Palmas Senior Club dances. 
Interested caterers submitting a proposal should become familiar with the Scope of Work 
detailed in this RFP. What follows is a description of the technical environment, contractors 
staffing, qualifications, and performance expectations. 
 
 

INSTRUCTIONS TO SUBMITTING CATERERS 
 

A. Examination of Proposal Documents 
 

By submitting a proposal, the prospective caterer represents that it has thoroughly examined 
and become familiar with the services required under this RFP and that it is capable of 
delivering quality services to the City in a creative, cost-effective & service-oriented manner. 

 
B. Questions/Clarifications 
 

Please direct any questions regarding this RFP to Julian Venegas, Recreation and Community 
Services Director, via e-mail at jvenegas@scfcity.org. Questions must be received by 5:30 
p.m. on Friday, July 28, 2023. All questions received prior to the deadline will be collected 
and responses to all questions will be posted to the city’s website/Business at http://ci.san-
fernando.ca.us/rfps-rfqs-nibs-nois by Friday, August 4, 2023.    
 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 72 of 221

http://ci.san-fernando.ca.us/rfps-rfqs-nibs-nois
http://ci.san-fernando.ca.us/rfps-rfqs-nibs-nois


EXHIBIT “A” 
CONTRACT NO. 2195 

 
 

 
C. Submission of Bid Proposals 

 
All bid proposals can be submitted via mail or email. Mail proposals to 117 Macneil Street, 
San Fernando CA 91340 c/o Recreation and Community Services Department Proposal must 
be marked to read “City of San Fernando On-Site Catering”. The electronic submission shall 
be sent to Julian Venegas at jvenegas@sfcity.org and the subject line of the email shall read, 
“City of San Fernando RFP – On-site Catering”. Proposals must be received no later than 
Friday, August 11, 2023, at 5:30 p.m.  All proposals received after that time will not be 
accepted.  

 
D. Withdrawal of Proposals 

 
A caterer may withdraw its proposal at any time before the due date for submission of 
proposals as provided in the RFP by delivering a written request for withdrawal signed by, or 
on behalf of the prospective caterer. 

 
E. Rights of the City of San Fernando 

 
This RFP does not commit the City to enter into a Contract, nor does it obligate the City to 
pay for any costs incurred in the preparation and submission of proposals or in anticipation 
of a contract. 
 
The City reserves the right to:  
 
1) Make the selection based on its sole discretion; 
2) Reject any and all proposals without prejudice; 
3) Issue subsequent Requests for Proposal; 
4) Postpone opening for its own convenience; 
5) Remedy technical errors in the Request of Proposal process; 
6) Approve or disapprove the use of particular sub-contractors; 
7) Negotiate with any, all, or none of the prospective caterers; 
8) Solicit best and final offers from all or some of the prospective caterers; 
9) Accept other than the lowest offer; and/or 
10) Waive informalities and irregularities in the proposal process. 
 

F. Contract Type 
 
It is anticipated that a standard form Professional Services Agreement contract will be signed 
subsequent to the City Council review and approval of the recommended caterer. A sample 
of said contract is included in this RFP as Exhibit “A”. 
 

G. Collusion 
 
By submitting a proposal, each prospective caterer represents and warrants that; its 
proposal is genuine and not a sham or collusive or made in the interest of or on behalf of any 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 73 of 221

mailto:jvenegas@sfcity.org


EXHIBIT “A” 
CONTRACT NO. 2195 

 
 

person not named therein; that the prospective caterer has not directly, induced, or solicited 
any other person to submit a sham proposal or any other person to refrain from submitting 
a proposal; and, that the prospective caterer has not in any manner sought collusion to 
secure any improper advantage over any other person submitting a proposal. 
 

 
SCOPE OF WORK   
 
The following section describes the specific services requested by this Request for Proposal.  The 
City of San Fernando is requesting on-site catering services from qualified and experienced caterers 
to support the City’s Las Palmas Senior Citizens Club dinner dances.   The catering service takes place 
on-site adjacent to the Las Palmas Park Gymnasium located at 505 S. Huntington St. San Fernando, 
CA 91340.  
 
The selected Caterer will work closely with RCS staff to ensure that the menu, set-up, food served, 
and cleanup is completed in an efficient manner. The caterer's proposed cost shall include all labor, 
food and supplies  needed to service 300 guest (+/- 20) at the following dances:   
 
Special Dinner Dance Calendar  

 
Event: Thanksgiving Dance- November 18, 2023 

• Time: 5:00 pm – 7:00 pm 
• Attendance: 300 people 
 

Event: Christmas Dance- December 16, 2023 
• Time: 5:00 pm – 7:00 pm 
• Attendance: 300 people 
• Date will either be the first, second, or third Saturday in December 

 
Event: Mother’s Day Dance- May 2024 (date to be determined)  

• Time: 5:00 pm – 7:00 pm 
• Attendance: 320 people 
 

Event: Father’s Day Dance- June 2024 (date to be determined)  
• Time: 5:00 pm – 7:00 pm 
• Attendance: 320 people 
 

Additional requirements such as order placement, staffing, on-site cooking, and problem resolution 
are required in this RFP.  The caterer will be asked to provide these services as described of below.    

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 74 of 221



EXHIBIT “A” 
CONTRACT NO. 2195 

 
 

Description of on-site catering needs:  
 
Order Placement Process  

• Catering orders will be placed at least one month in advance. 
• Menu selection will be made at least one month in advance.  
• Meals for 300 people will be ordered for each dance, with Mother’s Day and Father’s Day 

having potentially up to 320 meals per dance. 
• Menu must be approved by City staff. 

 
Staffing 

• The caterer shall not take direction with any non-authorized personnel, and the City will not 
be financially responsible for orders the caterer accepts by non-authorized personnel. 

• The caterer shall provide enough staffing to cook meals on time and replenish food as it runs 
out. Normally this includes but not limited to: A head chef, 2 cooks, 2 runners, 2 
dessert/salad, and 2 meat cutters  

• The caterer will communicate with the City when they will be arriving, cooking/prepping 
meals, and must be ready to serve no later than 5 p.m. and finish serving all meals by 6:40 
p.m. 

• The City will work the selected caterer’s staff so they understand the meal distribution plan. 
 
On-site cooking, Set-up and clean up 

• 200 feet of street parking will be reserved for the food truck(s) and staff parking in front of 
the gym doors on Huntington Street. 

• The caterer will arrive with enough time needed to prepare and cook the dinner. 
• All meals must be fully prepared and ready to serve no later than 5 p.m. 
• Side dishes shall be delivered by aluminum trays and on chafing dishes. 
• Meats shall be delivered to the gym and be hand cut and placed on people’s plates. 
• The caterer shall provide all of the plates, utensils, napkins, serving utensils, condiments, 

and other items needed dependent on the menu.  
• The caterer will ensure that all chafing dishes, serving utensils, and other belongings are 

cleared out no later than 7:00 p.m. 
• The caterer will be responsible for removal of all trash generated by the meal preparation. 
• The City will provide tables and tablecloths.  

 
Problem Resolution   

• The City requires direct access to the caterer’s management representative in order to have 
direct and accurate information regarding a problem.  

• The caterer will ensure prompt problem resolution, with appropriate and concise follow-up 
to the City’s RCS Supervisor within 7 business days of receiving the request for problem 
resolution. 

 
The proposed term of the contract is one year, starting July 1, 2023, and ending June 30, 2024 with 
the option to extend the agreement for an addition Fiscal Year (July 1, 2024 – June 30, 2025). 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 75 of 221



EXHIBIT “A” 
CONTRACT NO. 2195 

 
 

 
SCHEDULE FOR SELECTION  
 

RFP Available:       July 20, 2023 
Deadline for submittal of Questions:    July 28, 2023 
Response to Questions:      August 4, 2023 
Deadline for submittal of Proposal:     August 11, 2023  
Agreement Presented to Council for Review & Approval: September 5, 2023 

 
 
METHOD OF SELECTION AND NOTICES 
 
The Recreation and Community Services Director will evaluate the information provided in the 
submitted proposals using the following criteria as a guideline: 

 
• Completeness and Comprehensiveness 
• Ability to work effectively and in close collaboration with the City 
• Responsiveness to City’s issues 
• Experience of the caterer providing similar services to other municipalities 
• Cost-effectiveness 
• Quality of proposed staff 

 
 
INFORMATION TO BE SUBMITTED 

 
1. Prospective Caterers must submit one digital copy of their proposal via email. 
2. Include a Proposal Summary Section 

 
This section shall discuss the highlights, key features, and distinguishing points of the 
Proposal. A separate sheet shall include all the contact people on the Proposal and how 
to communicate with them.  

 
3. Include a Profile of the Proposing Caterer(s) Section 
 

This section shall include a brief description of the Caterer, including size, location of 
office(s), number of years providing service, the organizational structure of the 
responsible division, etc. 

 
Additionally, this section shall include a listing of any lawsuit and the result of that action 
resulting from (a) any public project undertaken by the Caterer where litigation is still 
pending or has occurred within the last five years or (b) any type of project where claims 
or settlements were paid by the Caterer or its insurers within the last five years. 

 
2. Include a Qualifications of the Caterer Section 
 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 76 of 221



EXHIBIT “A” 
CONTRACT NO. 2195 

 
 

This section shall include a brief description of the Caterer’s qualifications and previous 
experience on similar or related projects. Provide a description of pertinent project 
experience with other public municipalities (maximum of four), if any, that includes a 
summary of the work performed, the total project cost, the period over which the work 
was completed, and the name, title, and phone number of clients to be contacted for 
references. Give a brief statement of the Caterer’s adherence to the schedule and budget 
for each project. 

 
3. Include a Work Plan Section   
 

In this section, present a well-conceived service plan. This section of the proposal shall 
establish the Caterer’s understanding of the City’s objectives and work requirements and 
the Caterer’s ability to satisfy those objectives and requirements. Describe the proposed 
approach for addressing the scope of service, outlining the approach that would be 
undertaken in providing the requested services. Include a timetable for providing the 
service. Describe related service experience by the Caterer in similar work. Please 
describe the role, extent of services (number of people used, engagement duration, and 
contract value).  

  
4. Include a Project Staffing Section 
 

In this section, discuss how the Caterer would propose to staff this project(s). Caterer’s 
key project team members shall be identified by name, specific responsibilities on the 
project and their qualifications. An organizational chart for the project team and resumes 
for key Caterer personnel shall be included. Key Caterer personnel will be an important 
factor considered by the RCS Director. There can be no change of key personnel once 
the proposal is submitted, without prior approval of City. 

 
5. Include a Proposal Costs Sheet and Rates Section 
 

In this section, include the proposed costs to provide the services desired. Include any 
other cost and price information that would be contained in a potential agreement with 
the City.  

 
In addition, include the costs for any other services that are considered optional 
additions. This includes menu options at various price points.  
 
 

 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 77 of 221



EXHIBIT “B” 
CONTRACT NO. 2195 

 

 
 
 
 
 

  .A&M Catering 

13 158 Bradley Ave, Sylmar CA 
Pr~posal Senior <Cltib Events 

!Rounded SI 1980 byA.ntonio Deleo" • iis ia famit,y--0wned <ou1inary business !headquartered iin Sytmar. 
The ,x:orn_pany bas be:en1,committed to Oelive fing culinaryiexcenenceta.nd excetPtionaJ d in ing 

<ex;p-e-rienc,es tto iltsl Glienls. 'W_rttu 1:0 erru>loyees_, A&M Catering bas :served thousands ~ f im eals throughou't 
Southe rn California . 

In i o 20. Antoriio'S (dhilcfcen.,,A l'ex iand OyntJiia, too'k iOwnership of the company iand continued the family 
!tradition of providing ltop~lch catering services. ·Tihey bring !together a !harmoriious blend of treasured 

famly ceolpes passed dbwn th:roagh 9 e ne rations an d m odem culinary !flair. resu'lting in unique and 
lUriforge:ttatile ,culinaJY offeriogs. tA.&M Catering has had tthe 1privilegelOf serving !thea-<delectable crea'tions 

ia't warious prestigious wenues 1aoross Los A ngeles. 

These 'lienues include maj or movie.studios such m; Fox, OBS, Sony, Disney, and Paramount Pictures,, 
'Where they lwme le'.ft.a lastu\gimpression cm their c.lients "'ith~beir<exoeptional ruJina,y delightsl'l.&M is 

fully OllS'Ul"ed \\1ith. 1L.ih:Oi9~.and.Ulus ..a \,--alid LO.. Couo.'ty HN!fh permit .ana is llnspecte.d<e.•-ery y e.u .ru:ta has ne\.-er 
recei,..-ed.a \ciola6.on in th.e,conw,any ~ Illistozy A11,s1a'ff \\:o:rk.ing 1in itb.e Kitchen b,n~e Califomia S.afe Se1,·e Permit ,anB 

other certitications.. 

ln;add!tion Io se,aiingHollywood's,eJlte, A&M CateriI\g has also been a declicated partner to various local 
otganiz.atioo.s ancir.ommunity (e,..-eots. iF-oc the past ten years~ they have- proudly _pro\-i deo caleringise.n.i ces 

to lhel.as PaJmas SeniO!l'Chib in San 1'emaodo, "'"atin13 deligbffhl culinary experiences for ithe seniors in 
the oomomnify". 

IDbeyaa;:eal'so supportediiheiSt. Ferdinand Ohurcb, a non-pro'fit !Organization,, w ith !heir exc~liona1 
catecillg services ff or ~tarious ~e:\'-ents and gath~gs. 

F:wthennore, a&MCateringhast>eeo,a valuable OO!l!ributorto tbe :Sun ValleyFaikons Football P~gram 
and iihe Nort!Jridge F>nigJ!ls Football P~ cenhancillg tbese.'g)Eriences of players, coaches, and 

supporters ,during iheir e, ·ents,. 

ilb.eiridedica6on ito c.nn:nnnnity Jiirvohtemedt <e.--dends to the Alemany High,Sob.ool Baseball Progam,. 
where L.>i&i."1 Oatering enriches ilhe e:<perienoes ,of the 1baseball JPlayeis ·and their families m th llheir 

e.-q,erlise =ilde'licious dishes. O.,U lhe ;-ears, A&M Catering llas become a beloved and cherished part of 
[;os.Angefes' owina,yilandsC'W", unit~g hearts and palates l'i ih each exceptioual dish Ibey sen,i, .. 

Theinoommitmeotito qualicy; passion for food, =ii aofui, invokement in various cOOllllllllily ,iniliali,..,. 
lhavezoli-dffied !heir r~utation.as ,a respected and souglit-after calering,service iin Ille city. 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 78 of 221



EXHIBIT “B” 
CONTRACT NO. 2195 

 

 
 

  

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 79 of 221



EXHIBIT “B” 
CONTRACT NO. 2195 

 

 
 

  

Organization Chart 

Alex Deleoll. Alex lvls O'ter 15 ye2rs of e}Cperlent:e In lbe rest:swnt intlt.r.lb)', "8\ring wo ed In v ious. roles 

from e coolc lo he~ dlef In es1eemed esta l!lhmmls. 'Vith a !lsion for eulln:sry arts 2:nd busllW!!lS 

aeumen. Atex co-fol.l\ded lbe rest:al.fflm 1:0 bm9 uftiqµ flai.,~ 2:nd ~ lenees. lo '111£::r customi!fs. 

o,nll\la [)(!LeoA Cyn1111a l~ ds. 8 de,gr In ~s. m~ mml and h~ exteMh,•e e}Cperlent:e In resttt1..ant 

oos find eus omer ,s~ee. Togethel w11t1 Alex, sh co-rounded ll1e restawm to cres . 8 '-''firm ;end 

weleoorii1119 fitrnospher . for guests. 

carey Mo4Jlder • Cllffiee MaMger c.erey tuis. a b8 ~our"' In oo-sp.1:e111y maMgernent l!fld l!.ffl'lffllstrtlllon. With 

se;,ii!f8 fears or e.ipe ee llll mma~g office operatJOllS M\d aistomer relatioos. Cflrey plays. a mid al roJe In 

ensortng t!'.mcoth <latfo-de"/ fuM:1:h:.ling of oie rest r2fll. They l'i2fldle re!leM'ltlOM, employee ScelW!di.lles., efld 

overSiee ,g ral admilli!lfflllit,. ta!lks. 

Head Chef. Martin M001800 

IVJsrlin Molllttlno J a s~!ltlned d!e'f with .wer 20 years of expl!flf!l!:e In lbe etilin2fY woddL Heiring w'Ol'keod in 

feooi'li ed rest2tlfems. and e2me-d accolafl i?S for his ·lllJIOvatl•.te dfJt.es. he brln,g:s creslh1it"y am l~ fler!Sl\lp to the 

IWciW!ft. Martin cwerseeg. menu <l'evelopmenrt, kl dlsl ope,atloo!I-, .md ensuri?S ttle highest q,u l)' al food 

p,rep2ra.1icn. 

Asglstant lttea<I Chef: 

P.SIOIWI l)eleon Paloma IS. the "life of A!ex ~" ;end 8 lali!ntf!d cr,ef illi her O~ft r1~ht S1ie BSS. WCRoed 

alon,g,Side Martin for many year!l-, 1eanw1g t i.e 1rrt11eec1es o-f 1he ct.Qiary :s. w 1h IW!r dedleaUolll oo e'Xpt!f11se, 

Paloma esslS1s Mmln In meoo plmnl"!J, 1Jalnllll'9 \tdW!ll staff, 81lfl mslntttinl"!J lhe resmursnrs. hl!11 S'lfif!ld'fuds. 

August 8, 2023 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 80 of 221



EXHIBIT “B” 
CONTRACT NO. 2195 

 

 
 

  

Asslffilrt 1He21d Chef: 

Gonzalo Dl.ffln1 GOO? e,:perl~ ehe'f "''Ith a !!peel e1loo In S ds. al!ld co1d C1sl\es.. 1He bian9S ,wer 

a c'ealde of expertl!II! In e;p,ari~ refresr.rtg aoo healtlt/ s ds. lhal COl'l'IJ)le ,rt l he r ~ttlursn-rs offerings. 

Go,mlo !/\Wk!: ciosely IA 1h Martin and Pawna to enS1Jr a dl11eme aoo d. htful menu. 

S:al.!!Jd Clle(: 

Es rs ldai Hern &m lits IS 8 sklll d s d clle1 willl a pl!!.!11011 f<:w fresh and ~ibram gredlt!fll!!. Sil llas. 

workel! kl. re,put2hle rest r.!!fils., OOl\lng r sld In s d prep2ratiefl a11d presem11tloo.. Esn aids I es eare 

of aa g delic:lous s ds. llldl nn • Ing Ill s a1 s'latloo In t lw! kl ell Food R1i mer Ernplo~ . Cielma 

Gl..lmlf!ll ClelW\8 Is. a dedieated food] IUIW\el' WI a keen eye for tl'ets ll sndl exoeptioo e,ganlz:sliM!II !t'klll!!. Sile 

l!l'ISl!res ·IJlat c:slM!s. I 21,e ti klld\eni promp snd re h die correci l~es., jYO'.tldlng se.afflles.s • e ~o 

dilers. 

Pllstry Clw!r/Dessef1&. 

.Jsc:oo Esp8US Jttob 21 ttllerued ~!!try m e'f with 21 t'.12ir for erealing eiec:ttlhle oes!lerts. Trsinl!'c! In das:sic: 

end contemJ)Ofsry dess t temruqµi?S, Ile curs ~ ad 11"1)( dessert merw "81 ~ nts 1tle SSI\W/ 

a ffer~ g!I. Jaoob's. di?SYrts e ai lligldght of tile resteur2:1tt's €Jnin,g e-xperteooe. 

Foodl Hsftdlef: 

Ru.b.y Guzman Ru.by Is a skill d food "8ndler resp,of'l!llhle •fo, assistln,g In focd pr~rslloo ng a 

cl n l!fld organized kl dlen. SI\, fo.Jows. all food ssfef!/ st:andf!rds arid IA'«kS dill~ to supporl l h ' tc:l'ten 

tt!am. 

food Hsndler: M Guz11 n Mike is. aooH,er "8lllflble food 1'81!1dler oo ~he leam. He illf1ngs entllu srn 2fld a 

s roog rNOrk ethic to the 1cheft. eBSLllng tllat inqredien s. ar well· red d the ld1.c:lleni rl!l!I Is. pt Ud"/ 

• E&ctl member of th istsfl brrlJgs nllJI !I !s and et!M!flene(!s. lh oootri bme to tlw! suocess of tile 

nn ln,g 1 a dleflslw!d dl'ling oestin ion •for Its tron!I. 

AUrgUSt 8, 2023 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 81 of 221



EXHIBIT “B” 
CONTRACT NO. 2195 

 

 
 

  

Work Plan 

A&M Catering is committed to providing a seamless and exceptional catering experience for the 

upcoming event. To ensure a successful outcome, we have meticulously designed a comprehensive 

work plan, outlining the activities we will undertake before, during, and after the catered meal. Our 

work plan aligns with the City's needs, as detailed on page 6, and incorporates specific time lines to 

guarantee timely e:xecution. 

One Momh Before the &em: 
• Review Citys Requirem.nts: A&M will thoroughly examine the Ci;y's needs, as outlined on page 6, to ooderstand the 

specific event reql.irements and e.xpecta!ions. 
• Initial Consultation: A8Mscateriogteamwi0 meeii: with the City's repc~Efltatives to dis.cuss e>tent details, such as the 

theme. dieary preferences, and aryy cus:orrizations needed 
• Share Menu Selections: A8Mwill preser« a diverse ra~ of ~ uoptions tailored to the Citys needs and prefer enc~ . 

We wiO finali~ them.nu after incofJ)Oratiogfeedbac:k a.nd suggestions from the City. 
Three Wea<s Before the &ent 

• Finalize Contract and logistics: A&Mwill ensure that all conuactwil agree.m?JI.S are in plaoe and double-check 
logiS'iics, such as the ever;:; venue.. setl.4) arranganans, and eql.ipman requirem:nts.. 

• Coordina; e v.ith Supplias: Vie will conmUl'lCate "'ith our t rust ed suppfiers to guarantee the a-1ailability of the highes. 
quality and freshest iogrediEflts for the mero. 

Two Weeks Before the EvEflt: 
• Confirm Attendee Count A&M will req~t a faial heaooour;. from the City to ensure suffic:ie.lli portions are prepared to 

ac:corrmodate all attendees. 
, PrepareSchE'tllle: A detailed evem.sdlecllJe wiO be created. inc:ludiogthe ti:rrefine for food p-eparatioo. :setl.4). aoo 

servioe. 
One Week Before the &ent 

• Purchase Food and l~eiftents: A&M s cufll\ary team v.ill proo.re all necessary ingredents and food i::ems. adhering to 
our comrritment to fresh and locall'j sourced produce. 

• Organize Staffing: We will as~ a skilled and experi enoed ca:ering team includ:ng chefs. serve.rs, and ewnt 
coordina::ors. to ensure a seamless execution on the da'f of the etent 

Day Be.fore the EY«lt 
• Preparations: A&M wiH commence food preparation. ensuring that alJ dishes are made with precision and auention to 

de!iail. 
• Eqlipman Check:Os team v.;J inspect and test all cataing equiprnem: to a"YOid any laswrinute techrlcal issues 

during me eva1t. 

Day of me Event 
• Set-Op: AUii v.;n arrive at the venue early to se:i up the c:.a:e.ri:ng stations, ensuring an aesthetically pleasing 

preserrta!ion that complan:nts me event's t heme. 
• Coordination: Our e>tent coordnators v.;11 liaise with the Oty's represe.rntives t o ensure everything ru,s smoomty. from 

the stan of the event ur«il its cond us.ion. 
After the EvEflt: 

• OeaMlp: A&M v.i JI efficier«fy clean up the e-tent area. l~a•li:ng it in the same coodtion as when we arrived. 
• F-eedback Collection: We value feed:>ack and v.i .H se..kthe City's inl)U't to further imprCHeOll' ~ces for future everts. 

By adhering to this wofk plal'\ A&M Catering is dedicated to surpas,sing the Citys expectations and crea!ing an unforgettable catered meal 

experienoe for all attendees. 

August 8, 2023 Page. S 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 82 of 221



EXHIBIT “B” 
CONTRACT NO. 2195 

 

 
 

 

DATf rme HEAD ootffl TWO PROTEIN OPOONS SUB. TOTAL lm for ,5 Eqllepoys 

lermiveDates 

tm2023 

Dec2023 

May2024 

June 2024 

Jlly: 2024 

TOTALS 

S-7pm 

S-7pm 

S-7pm 

S-7pm 

5-7pm 

300 

300 

300 

300 

300 

Meal count 

1500 

CATERING SUPPLIES, Elplample1s 
cup, Plates, Napikins,, Untendes, Togo bDK's 

utenilzs 

$0.00 

tncuded in Price 

locuded in Price 
lncuded in Price 

tncuded in Price 
tncuded in Price 

Sides salads and~ 

$30.00 $9µx).OO 

$30.00 $9,W).OO 

$30.00 $9,IMK).00 

$30J)I) $9,(m.OO 

$30.00 $9,(IDOO 

GAS & PROPANE & STERNOS GHARCOAI. & WOOD 

lncuded in Price 

lllruded in Price 
rnmded in Price 

loolded in Pri:e 
rncuded in Price 

Drinks 

$0.00 

10.50'!!iTAX 
13 nods} 1 ( cateJil trudl 1. jsupput lhrll 1 jsupport van], 

lnc.ooed ii Pri:e 

lnalled ii Pri:e 
lnalled ii Pri:e 

lnaxted ii Pri:e 
lnaxledilPri:e 

Gas illlltrampo 

$0.00 

$945.00 

$945.00 

$945.00 

$945.00 

$945.00 

Page 6 

sub-Total 

$9,945.00 

$9,945.00 

$9,945.00 

$9,945.00 

$9,945.00 

Grand Total 

$49,725.00 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 83 of 221



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 84 of 221



September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 85 of 221



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 86 of 221



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT                 117 MACNEIL STREET, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340                 (818) 898-1222                 WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

REVIEW:      ☒ Finance Director        ☒ Deputy City Manager       ☒ City Manager 
 

To: Mayor Celeste T. Rodriguez and Councilmembers 
  
From:  Nick Kimball, City Manager 
 By: Alejandro Mendez, Water Superintendent 
   
Date:  September 5, 2023 
 
Subject: Consideration to Approve a Contract Amendment with FS Contractors, Inc. for 

Reservoir No. 2A/5 Site Improvement Project, Job No. 7611, Plan No. P-738 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the City Council: 

 
a. Approve a contract amendment (Attachment “A” – Contract No. 2092(b)) and necessary 

change orders with FS Contractors, Inc. (FS Contractors); and 
 
b. Authorize the City Manager to execute the contract amendment and the change orders. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
1. On June 23, 2022, a Notice Inviting Bids for the Reservoir No. 2A/5 Site Improvements Project 

was released. 
  

2. On July 14, 2022, the City Clerk Department received one (1) bid for Reservoir No. 2A/5 Site 
Improvements. Staff analyzed the bid and determined that the bid from FS Contractors was 
the lowest responsive bid. 

 
3. On August 1, 2022, the City Council awarded Contract No. 2092 (Attachment “B”) to FS 

Contractors (Contractor) in the amount of $364,125 and authorized the City Manager to 
approve change orders not to exceed 10% of contract amount.  

 
4. On September 20, 2022, a Notice to Proceed was issued to the Contractor. 

 
5. On June 9, 2023, work was completed by the Contractor.  

 
 

ANill 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 87 of 221



Consideration to Approve a Contract Amendment with FS Contractors, Inc. for Reservoir No. 2A/5 Site 
Improvement Project, Job No. 7611, Plan No. P-738 
Page 2 of 3 
 
 
ANALYSIS: 
 
In November 2009, Groundwater Well No. 3 was taken offline due to elevated nitrate levels and 
it has remained inactive to date.  The increased nitrate levels also impacted the productivity of 
Groundwater Well No. 2A. In April 2022, high nitrate levels prompted the shutdown of Well No. 
2A.   Consequently, the City had to import water from Metropolitan Water District (MWD) to 
meet its needs until an effective nitrate treatment system could be established for the City’s 
groundwater wells.  
 
To reactivate Groundwater Well No. 3, the City procured the treatment system from Envirogen 
Technologies in late 2022. This system mirrored the treatment technology utilized for Well No. 
7A. During the four-year span following the purchase of the Well No. 7A system, Envirogen 
Technologies had innovated and refined their original treatment systems. This development 
necessitated infrastructure enhancements at the 12900 Dronfield Avenue site. These 
enhancements were vital to interconnect treatment systems, rendering them functional in 
tandem. 
   
Expanded Scope of Work.  
The initial scope of the work included site improvements required to install the second nitrate 
treatment system at 12900 Dronfield Avenue. Despite an existing foundation pad and 
underground piping prepared for the second unit, additional modifications to the site were 
necessary to accommodate the new treatment unit because Envirogen Technologies, Inc. revised 
the configuration of the treatment units, following the procurement of the system. Site 
modifications included extending the current foundation pad to house the new unit and 
rerouting the underground piping for seamless integration with the new treatment unit. 
Additional work included the installation of a new electrical panel and conduits to power the new 
treatment unit. Envirogen Technologies, Inc. also recommended upgrading existing electrical 
components to be compatible with the new unit. Unforeseen work and weather-related delays 
collectively extended the project’s duration beyond its initial estimate.  
 
As part of the proposal and agreement with Envirogen Technologies, Inc., the City was 
responsible for installing various components to the system.  These tasks included installation of 
the necessary electrical supply to power the control system, all on-site piping, connection and 
interface to the Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) system, and waste connection. 
While staff was initially scheduled to construct some of these components in-house, due to staff 
shortages and the urgency of the timeline, FS Contractors undertook the work. As a result, the 
scope of work expanded resulting in a need for change orders to ensure its successful completion. 
Additionally, the City Electrician does not handle high voltage installations, which were a critical 
part of the installations required for the treatment unit. 
 
Pursuant to Section 2-826.5.b. of San Fernando City Code (SFCC), in urgency situations where 
stopping the work will result in severe repair or replacement delays and subject the City to 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 88 of 221



Consideration to Approve a Contract Amendment with FS Contractors, Inc. for Reservoir No. 2A/5 Site 
Improvement Project, Job No. 7611, Plan No. P-738 
Page 3 of 3 
 
 
excessive additional costs due to the delay in the project, the City Manager may approve such 
change order and shall give notice to the City Council at the next City Council meeting.  The 
project design engineer, CWE, designed the plans to the best of their ability based on information 
provided by Envirogen Technologies, Inc. However, during construction phase, certain 
unforeseen items surfaced that necessitated installation, yet were not initially accounted for in 
the project original scope.  This situation was compounded by weather-related delays, further 
impacting the project’s timeline.   
 
These change order increases were imperative for the treatment systems to be fully operational 
in order to avoid substantial costs from further project delays, including the purchase of MWD 
imported water. The City has been importing MWD water since April 2022 at an average cost of 
$250,000 per month due to the City’s groundwater wells having elevated nitrates causing them 
to be offline. The City had an inspection scheduled with the Department of Drinking Water (DDW) 
that created a deadline to have the project completed by a certain date. The City was able to 
meet the deadline for the DDW inspection and are now awaiting operational approval contingent 
on clean sample results, which generally takes 15-20 days to receive. 
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
 
Six change orders totaling $74,496 were issued in order to complete the work. The change orders 
covered electrical and plumbing work pertinent to have a fully operational system. This amount 
exceeded the contingency amount available for the project.  
 
The original appropriation for this project from Water Funds was $400,538. The original contract 
amount, excluding contingency was $364,125.  The additional work assigned to the contractor 
caused an increase to the contract with FS Contractors with a new contract amount of $441,371 
resulting in an additional funding need of $40,834.  Sufficient funding is included in the Fiscal 
Year 2022-2023 Adopted Budget for the Water Fund to cover this overage.    
 
The project has been completed and no further funding is expected for this project. 
 
 
CONCLUSION: 
 
It is recommended that the City Council approve a contract amendment and necessary change 
orders with FS Contractors, and authorize the City Manager to execute the contract amendment 
and change orders.  
 
 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 89 of 221



Consideration to Approve a Contract Amendment with FS Contractors, Inc. for Reservoir No. 2A/5 Site 
Improvement Project, Job No. 7611, Plan No. P-738 
Page 4 of 3 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
A. Contract No. 2092(b) 
B. Contract No. 2092, including: 

Exhibit A: Contractor’s Proposal 
Exhibit B: List of Subcontractors 
Exhibit C: Bidder’s Bond 
Exhibit D: Warranty Performance and Payment Bond 
Exhibit E: Performance Bond 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 90 of 221



ATTACHMENT “A” 
CONTRACT NO. 2092(b) 

 

2023 
SECOND AMENDMENT TO CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT 

(FS Contractors, Inc. – Reservoir 2A/5 – Site Improvement,  
12900 Dronfield Avenue Plans (P-738) and Specifications (Job No. 7611) 

 
THIS 2023 SECOND AMENDMENT (“Second Amendment”) to that certain agreement entitled 
“Construction Contract – FS Contractors, Inc. Reservoir 2A/5 – Site Improvement, 12900 
Dronfield Avenue Plans (P-738) And Specifications (Job No. 7611)” originally executed the 18th 
day of August 2022 by and between the CITY OF SAN FERNANDO, a municipal corporation and 
general law city (“CITY”) and FS CONTRACTORS, INC., a California corporation (hereinafter, 
“CONTRACTOR” is made and entered into this 5th day of September 2023 (“Effective Date”).  For 
purposes of this Second Amendment, the capitalized term “Parties” shall be a collective 
reference to both CITY and CONTRACTOR.  The capitalized term “Party” may refer to either CITY 
or CONTRACTOR interchangeably as appropriate.    
 

RECITALS 
 
 WHEREAS, the Parties executed and entered into a Construction Contract dated August 1, 
2022 and entitled “Professional Services Agreement – FS Contractors, Inc. – Reservoir 2A/5 – Site 
Improvement, 12900 Dronfield Avenue Plans (P-738) And Specifications (Job No. 7611)”,” 
Contract No. 2092 (hereinafter, the “Master Agreement”); and  
 
 WHEREAS, the work contemplated under the Master Agreement could not be completed 
within the Term of the Master Agreement for reasons not completely within the control of the 
Parties; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Parties now wish to modify the Master Agreement further for purposes 
of modifying the Master Agreement’s compensation terms; and 
 
 WHEREAS, execution of the First Amendment was approved by the City Manager on 
November 15, 2022. 
 
 WHEREAS, execution of this Second Amendment was approved by the San Fernando 
City Council (“City Council”) at its Regular Meeting of September 5, 2023. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agreements contained herein, and 
other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby 
acknowledged, and intending to be legally bound hereby, the Parties agree as follows: 
 
 SECTION 1. The Term as defined under Section 4.1 of the Master Agreement is hereby 
amended to terminate on June 30, 2023. 
 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 91 of 221



 CONTRACT NO. 2092 (b) 
 

2 
 

The Not-to-Exceed Sum as defined under Section 3.1 of the Master Agreement is hereby 
amended to mean and refer to the sum of Four Hundred Forty-One Thousand Three Hundred 
Seventy Dollars and Ninety-Eight Cents ($441,370.98). 

 
 SECTION 2.  Except as otherwise set forth in this Second Amendment, the Master 
Agreement shall remain binding, controlling and in full force and effect.  The provisions of this 
Second Amendment shall be deemed a part of the Master Agreement and except as otherwise 
provided under this Second Amendment, the Master Agreement, and all provisions contained 
therein shall remain binding and enforceable.  In the event of any conflict or inconsistency 
between the provisions of this Second Amendment and the provisions of the Master Agreement, 
the provisions of this Second Amendment shall govern and control, but only in so far as such 
provisions conflict with the Master Agreement and no further.  

 
 SECTION 3. The Master Agreement as amended by way of this Second Amendment, 
constitutes the entire, complete, final and exclusive expression of the Parties with respect to the 
matters addressed herein and supersedes all other agreements or understandings, whether oral 
or written, or entered into between CITY and CONTRACTOR prior to the execution of this Second 
Amendment.  No statements, representations or other agreements, whether oral or written, 
made by any Party which are not embodied herein shall be valid or binding.  No amendment, 
modification or supplement to the Master Agreement as amended by this Second Amendment 
shall be valid and binding unless in writing and duly executed by the Parties in the form of a 
written contract amendment.  

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Second Amendment to be executed 
on the day and year first appearing above.  

 
CITY: 
 
City of San Fernando 
 
By:_________________________________ 
         Nick Kimball 
         City Manager 
 
Date:_______________________________ 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM 
 
By:________________________________ 
         Richard Padilla 
         Assistant City Attorney 
 
Date:_______________________________ 

  CONTRACTOR 
 
FS Contractors, Inc. 
 
By:_____________________________ 
       
Name:___________________________ 
 
Title:____________________________ 
 
Date:_____________________________ 
 
 

 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 92 of 221



CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT

FS CONTRACTORS, INC.
RESERVOIR 2A/5 – SITE IMPROVEMENT, 12900 DRONFIELD AVENUE 

PLANS (P-738) AND SPECIFICATIONS (JOB NO. 7611)

THIS CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT (hereinafter, the “Agreement”) is made and entered into this 
1st day of August 2022 (hereinafter, the “Effective Date”) by and between the 
CITY OF SAN FERNANDO, a municipal corporation (hereinafter, “CITY” or “Owner”) and
FS CONTRACTORS, INC. (hereinafter, “CONTRACTOR” or “Contractor”). For the purposes of
this Agreement, CITY and CONTRACTOR may be referred to collectively by the capitalized
term “Parties.”  The capitalized term “Party” may refer to CITY or CONTRACTOR 
interchangeably as appropriate.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, CITY requires construction services for RESERVOIR 2A/5 – SITE IMPROVEMENT, 
12900 DRONFIELD AVENUE PLANS (P-738) AND SPECIFICATIONS (JOB NO. 7611) (hereinafter, the 
“Project”); and

WHEREAS, CITY issued notice inviting competitive bids for the Project on June 23, 2022; 
and

WHEREAS, following the opening of bids on July 24, 2022, CONTRACTOR was determined 
to be the lowest responsive and responsible bidder for the Project; and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of San Fernando approved the award of this 
Contract to CONTRACTOR at its Regular Meeting of August 1, 2022, under Agenda Item No. 7.  

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions herein 
contained, CITY and CONTRACTOR agree as follows:

I.
THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

1.1 The complete Contract consists of the following documents (“Contract Documents”)
which are incorporated in this Contract by their reference:

a) The competitive bids solicitation packet entitled “Reservoir 2A/5 – Site Improvement,
12900 Dronfield Avenue Plans (P-738) and Specifications (Job No. 7611)” issued June
23, 2022, inclusive of the Invitation to Bid entitled “Notice of Inviting Bids” dated, June
23, 2022 (hereinafter, the “Bid Solicitation Packet”);

b) CONTRACTOR’s submitted Bid Proposal, dated July 14, 2022, which is attached hereto
as Exhibit “A”;

ATTACHMENT "B" 
CONTRACT NO. 2092September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 93 of 221



  CONTRACT NO. 2092 

c) CONTRACTOR’s submitted List of Subcontractors, dated July 14,2022, which is 
hereto as Exhibit “B”; 

d) This Contract (Contract No. 2092); 
e) CONTRACTOR’s Bid Bond dated July 14, 2022, which is attached hereto as  

Exhibit “C”; 
f) CONTRACTOR’s Payment Bond No. RCB0038996, dated August 9, 2022, a true and 

correct copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit “D”; 
g) CONTRACTOR’s Performance Bond No. RCB0038996, dated August 9, 2022, a true and 

correct copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit “E”; 
h) All Drawings; 
i) Specifications set forth in the Bid Solicitation Packet; 
j) Supplementary and Special Conditions to the Bid Solicitation Packet, if any; 
k) All documents made a part of this Contract under the terms of the Bid 

Solicitation Packet; and 
l) All addenda; 
m) All Change Orders, if any, approved by CITY in compliance with terms of the Contract, 

the San Fernando Municipal Code and applicable State law. 
 

II. 
WORK TO BE PERFORMED 

 
2.1  The CONTRACTOR agrees to furnish all tools, equipment, apparatus, facilities, labor, 

transportation, and material necessary to perform and complete in a good and 
workmanlike manner, R E S E R V O I R  2 A / 5  –  S I T E  I M P R O V E M E N T ,  1 2 9 0 0  
D R O N F I E L D  A V E N U E  P L A N S  ( P - 7 3 8 )  A N D  S P E C I F I C A T I O N S  ( J O B  
N O .  7 6 1 1 )  as called for, and in the manner designated in, and in strict conformity with 
the Contract Documents. It is understood and agreed that the tools, equipment, 
apparatus, facilities, labor, transportation, and material shall be furnished and the Work 
performed and completed as required in the Contract Documents under the sole direction 
and control of the CONTRACTOR, and subject to inspection and approval of the CITY, or 
its representatives. The CITY hereby designates as its representative for the purpose of 
this Contract the following named person: The Director of Public Works and Utilities. 

 
The Work is generally described as follows: 
 
The site improvements to Reservoir 2A/5, 12900 Dronfield Avenue, as shown in the Drawings 
and more fully described in Notice of Inviting Bids. 
 
The Contract Documents which define the Work covered by this Agreement are those prepared 
by the Design Engineer CWE and filed in the office of the City Clerk and identified by the 
signatures of the parties to this Agreement. 
 
The Work was designed by and the Contract Documents were prepared by CWE herein referred 
to as the Design Engineer. 
 
  

2

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 94 of 221



  CONTRACT NO. 2092 

III.  
CONTRACT PRICE 

 
3.1 The CITY agrees to pay, and the CONTRACTOR agrees to accept, in full payment for the 

work, above agreed to be done, the sum of THREE HUNDRED SIXTY-FOUR THOUSAND 
ONE HUNDRED TWENTY-FIVE DOLLARS ($364,125.00) for the Project (hereinafter, the 
“Bid Price” or “Contract Price”). 

 
IV. 

COMPLETION DATE 
 
4.1 The Project shall be commenced on the date specified in the Notice to Proceed. The total 

project shall be completed THIRTY FIVE (35) working days after the date of the Notice to 
Proceed. The terms “workday” or “working day” mean any day of the week excluding 
Saturday, Sunday or any federal holiday. 

 
V 

NOTICE AND SERVICE THEREOF 
 
5.1 Any notice from one party to the other under the Contract shall be in writing and shall be 

dated and signed by the Party giving such notice or by a duly authorized representative 
of such Party. Any such notice shall not be effective for any purpose whatsoever unless 
served in the following manner, namely: 

 
a) If the notice is given to the CITY, by personal delivery thereof, or by depositing the 

same in the United States mail, enclosed in a sealed envelope, postage prepaid, and 
certified; addressed to the CITY at: 

 
City of San Fernando Public Works Department 
Attn: Director of Public Works 
City of San Fernando City Hall 
117 Macneil Street 
San Fernando, CA 91340 

 
b) If the notice is given to the CONTRACTOR, by personal delivery thereof to said 

CONTRACTOR or to its duly authorized representative at the site of the project, or by 
depositing the same in the United States mail, enclosed in a sealed envelope, postage 
prepaid, and certified; addressed to the CONTRACTOR at: 

 
FS Contractors, Inc. 
Attn: Angel Fierros 
14838 Bledsoe Street 
Sylmar, CA 91342 
818-838-6040 

 
  

3

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 95 of 221



  CONTRACT NO. 2092 

c) If the notice is given to the surety or any other person, by personal delivery to such 
surety or other person, or by depositing the same in the United States mail, enclosed 
in a sealed envelope, addressed to such surety or other person, as the case may be, 
at the address of such surety or person last communicated by it to the party giving the 
notice, postage prepaid and certified.  

 
VI. 

LIQUIDATED DAMAGES 
 

6.1 Liquidated damages as provided for in the General Conditions of the Contract shall be in 
the sum of Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000) for each and every day as defined therein for 
each different scope of work as defined by the Base Bid and each change order except as 
otherwise specified in the General Conditions. 
 

6.2 It is agreed by the parties to this Contract that time is of the essence. In the event all the 
Work is not completed before or upon the expiration of the time limit as set in the 
Contract Documents, or within any time extensions that may have been granted, damage 
will be sustained by the City; and that it may be impracticable to determine the actual 
amount of damage by reason of such delay. Accordingly, it is agreed that the Contractor 
shall pay to the City as damages the amount set forth for each and every day’s delay in 
finishing the Work in excess of the number of days specified. Liquidated damages shall be 
paid at a rate of ten thousand dollars ($10,000) per day unless otherwise stated in the 
Contract Documents. The parties expressly agree that the liquidated damage clause found 
in the Contract Documents is reasonable under the circumstances existing at the time the 
Contract was made. The City shall have the right to deduct the amount of liquidated 
damages from any money due or to become due the Contractor. 
 

6.3 In addition, the City shall have the right to charge to the Contractor and to deduct from 
the final or progress payments for the Work the actual cost to the City of legal, 
engineering, inspection, superintendence, and other expenses, which are directly 
chargeable to the Contract and which accrue during the period of such delay, except that 
the cost of final inspection and preparation of the final estimate shall not be included in 
the charges. 
 

6.4 Exclusions: The Contractor shall not be liable for liquidated damages or delays caused by 
the removal or relocation of utilities when such removal or relocation is the responsibility 
of the City or the owner of the utility under Government Code section 4215. 

 
VII. 

PREVAILING WAGE 
 
7.1 Copies of the prevailing rate of per diem wages as determined by the Director of the 

Department of Industrial Relations in accordance with Labor Code Section 1773 are on 
file at the CITY, and copies are available for inspection at that office to any interested 
party on request. Bidders shall be responsible for verifying with the Director of the 
Department of Industrial Relations that all such copies of the prevailing rate provided 

4

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 96 of 221



  CONTRACT NO. 2092 

by the CITY are current and accurate. The requirement to pay the wage rate so 
specified is further detailed in the General Conditions. Copies of the prevailing rate of per 
diem wages may also be obtained from the Department of Industrial Relations, P.O. Box 
420603, San Francisco, CA 94142-0603, Attn: Chief, Division of Labor Statistics and 
Research or online at: http://www.dir.ca.gov/oprl/DPreWageDetermination.htm. 
 

7.2 Hours of Labor: Eight-hour labor constitutes a legal day's work. The Contractor shall 
forfeit, as penalty to the Owner, twenty-five dollars ($25.00) for each worker employed 
in the execution of the contract by him or by any subcontractor, for each calendar day 
during which any worker is required or permitted to labor more than eight (8) hours in 
any one calendar day and forty (40) hours in any one calendar week, except as permitted 
by the provisions of Article 3, Chapter 1, Part 7, Division 2 (commencing with Section 
1810) of the Labor Code of the State of California. 
 

7.3 Apprentices: In accordance with the provisions of Section 1777.5 of the Labor Code, and 
in accordance with the regulations of the California Apprenticeship Council, properly 
registered, apprentices may be employed in the prosecution of the work. 

 
Information relative to number of apprentices, identifications, wages, hours of employment and 
standards of working conditions shall be obtained from the Director of the Department of 
Industrial Relations, who is the Administrative Officer of the California Apprenticeship Council. 
 
7.4 Prohibited Employment Discrimination: Attention is directed to Section 1735 of the 

California Labor Code, which reads as follows: 
 
"A contractor shall not discriminate in the employment of persons upon public works on any basis 
listed in subdivision (a) of Section 12940 of the Government Code, as those bases are defined in 
Sections 12926 and 12926.1 of the Government Code, except as otherwise provided in Section 
12940 of the Government Code. Every contractor for public works who violates this section is 
subject to all the penalties imposed for a violation of this chapter." 
 
7.5 Workers' Compensation Insurance: In accordance with the provisions of Article 5, 

Chapter 1, Part 7, Division 2 (commencing with Section 1860) and Chapter 4, Part 1, 
Division 4 (commencing with Section 3700) of the California Labor Code, the Contractor 
is required to secure the payment of compensation to his employees and shall for that 
purpose obtain and keep in effect adequate Workers' Compensation Insurance. 

 
The undersigned Contractor is aware of the provisions of Section 3700 of the Labor Code, which 
requires every employer to be insured against liability for Workers' Compensation claims or to 
undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of that Code, and will comply with 
such provisions before commencing the performance of the Work in this contract. 
 
7.6 Security for Compensation: The Contractor hereby stipulates that the provisions of 

Section 1775 of the California Labor Code will be complied with. The Contractor further 
agrees to secure the payment of compensation to his employees in accordance with the 
provisions of Section 3700 of the California Labor Code. 

5

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 97 of 221



  CONTRACT NO. 2092 

 
7.7 Contractor Claims Against the City: Effective January 1, 1991, the California Legislature 

enacted a requirement that all contract claims of $375,000.00 or less on local government 
public works contracts must be submitted to mediation and judicial arbitration. Article 
1.5 (Sections 20104 through 20104.6, inclusive) of Chapter 1 of Part 3 of the Public 
Contract Code concerning Resolution of Construction Claims, is hereby incorporated into 
this agreement. See Supplementary Conditions for a summary of the timing provisions in 
Section 20104 through 20104.6. 
 

7.8 Contractor's License: The Contractor declares that it possesses a valid California 
Contractor's License of the required class at the time of signing this Agreement. The 
Contractor shall affirm its license number, classification and expiration date on this 
Agreement. 

 
The following statement is included in accordance with Section 7030 of the California Business 
and Professions Code: "Contractors are required by law to be licensed and regulated by the 
Contractors State License Board. Any questions concerning a Contractor may be referred to the 
Registrar, Contractors State License Board, 
P.O. Box 26000, Sacramento, California 95826." 
 

VIII.  
CONTRACTOR REGISTRATION 

 
8.1 By the execution of this Contract, CONTRACTOR hereby certifies that it is registered with 

the California Department of Industrial Relations as required pursuant to Labor Code 
section 1725.5 (contractor registration). 

 
IX. MISCELLANEOUS 

 
9.1 Terms used in this Contract, which are defined in Article 1 of the General Conditions, will 

have the meanings indicated in the General Conditions. 
 

9.2 No assignment by a party hereto of any rights under or interests in the Contract 
Documents will be binding on another party hereto without the written consent of the 
party sought to be bound; and specifically but without limitation, moneys that may 
become due and moneys that are due may not be assigned without such consent (except 
to the extent that the effect of this restriction may be limited by law), and unless 
specifically stated to the contrary in any written consent to an assignment no assignment 
will release or discharge the assignor from any duty or responsibility under the Contract 
Documents. 

 
9.3 The Owner and the CONTRACTOR each binds itself, its partners, successors, assigns and 

legal representatives to the other party hereto, its partners, successors, assigns and legal 
representatives in respect of all covenants, agreements and obligations contained in the 
Contract Documents 

  

6

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 98 of 221



  CONTRACT NO. 2092 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed the day 
and year first appearing in this Agreement, above. 
 

 
CITY OF SAN FERNANDO: 
 
 
By:_______________________________ 

Nick Kimball, City Manager 
 
Date: ____________________________ 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
By:________________________________ 
      Richard Padilla, Assistant City Attorney 
 
Date: ____________________________ 

 FS CONTRACTORS, INC. 
 
 
By:_______________________________ 
 
 
Name:____________________________ 
 
 
Title: ____________________________ 
 
 
Date: ____________________________ 
 
 

 

7

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 99 of 221



8

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 100 of 221



9

ITEM 
NO. 

1 
2 
3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 
14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

31 

32 

33 

34 

35 

36 

BID SCHEDULE 
RESERVOIR 2A/ 5 - SITE IMPROVEMENTS 

PROJECT NO. 7611, PLAN NO. P-738 

DESCRIPTION UNIT ESTIMATED 
UNIT PRICE QUANTITY 

Mobilization LS 1 $ .z. t;CO'q o -,; 
Remove Existinq AC Pavement SF 1500 $ -u' ,, oe> 
Remove Existing PCC C( 11 $ '2..::.0 £ 0 

Remove Existing 8-in Ductile Iron -
Pipe 

LF 18 $ bo o O 

Remove Existing 12-in Ductile Iron 
$ 6S Pioe 

LF 33 (} 0 

Remove Chain Link Fence LF 7 $ eo (l ? 
Remove and Salvage Wrought Iron 

LF 14 $ ,~ Fence ()0 

Remove Existing Curb LF 17 $ -,SD fi' (I 

Remove Existing Block Wall SF 45 $ ~0 Ol:J 

8-inch Ductile Iron Pipe LF 35 $ 2,.[)[) o.:J 

12-inch Ductile Iron Pipe LF 32 $ vOO 00 

3-feet wide AC V-Ditch LF 26 $ .,., t:; oO 

Reinforced Concrete Slab CY 50 $ <7~0 ()0 

AC Pavement with Base LS 1 $ l~,oa?! (JO 

Block Wall SF 33 $ I ':J'° I /JO 

Wrought Iron Fence LF 14 $ u?D ! OP 

Wrought Iron Man Gate EA 1 $ 1?n.:t'. f)O 

8-inch Ductile Iron 90° Elbow EA 5 $ I L.n() ! co 
8-inch Ductile Iron 45° Elbow EA 1 $ 1ttJP ! OrJ 

12-inch x 12-inch x 8-inch Ductile 
, : 

EA 1 $ ?l)JO ! (),J 
Iron Reducino Tee 
6-inch x 9-inch long Ductile Iron Fig 

EA 2 $2~00 
C, 0 

Pioe Spools 
12-inch x 16.5-inch long Ductile Iron 

EA 1 $?500 (?" Fig Pipe Spool 
8-inch Endress+Hauser / : 

Electromagnetic Flow Meter 
EA 1 $ ]#! 

()~ 

12-inch Cla-Val 658-01 Back 
Pressure and Solenoid Shut-off EA 1 $/t:7ioq0 

(JO 

Valve 

12-inch Ductile Iron 45° Elbow EA 2 $ <J<:IJC' ! 60 

12-inch Ductile Iron Pipe Coupling EA 1 $?<VO tJv 
2-inch PVC Schedule 80 Pipe LF 165 $ -~(() i oo 

2-inch PVC Schedule 80 Pipe Fittings LS 1 $/(()0 i (JCJ 

Unistrut Clamps and Anchors LS 1 $~(000 OCJ 

12-inch Gate Valve EA 2 $ ~6t'Oi 00 

6-inch Gate Valve EA 2 $l/Oa? CJO 

4-inch Removable Bollards EA 13 $f-Zt;O f?CJ 

1-inch Copper Pipe with Fittings LS 1 $ ~~0~ Cl(J 
1-inch PVC, Sch 80 Pipe with 

., 

Fittings, EPDM Insulation and Pipe LS 1 i59XJ () (7 

Protection Bumper Guard 

Electrical Improvements LS 1 $ o 1m ~o 
PCC for Access Road Widening CY 2 $ ~ ~m (X7 

1,ID TOTAL 

Revised Addendum #1 (7 /6/22) P-2 

ITEM TOTAL 

$~C, ca, J. 0" 
$-~lP ! oV 
$ ~9,~0 .co 

I 

$/OPJV i,o 
I 

$-Z.,/ 47 (:1/) 

$ ~/-,0 bv 

$ /CJ S;J : 
/:)0 

$ s,o ()D 

$ J--Z.,50 pt) 

$ jQ$00 I) 1) 

$/?ODO! C,{) 

$ Jd50 ! pi) 

$ 2 '1 t.;CV ! di) 

$ I t;oc,O ()CJ 

$ ~ CISV "° $ -<ogO 00 
$ ,-z,0001 ov 
$ '1 ''9:70 e:;D 

$ /t:; pO CJD 

$5500 oo 

$ c:;pe;,·0 : (10 

$ ~s-Vo! c>O 

-
$7000 ! (10 

$t ~ oPoj 
! 

oo 

$ cnot:) ! tTI) 

$-:.-Jt:oo ,o 
$ 0.'7.(0 : 

pO 

$ 14(10 i (Iii 

$~000 ov 
$ T (l f)flO ! oo 

$ ~·(l?'D ! 00 

$2'(7{0 ! OP 

$~ti.ho (JZ} --
$ jJClt7 

oO 

$ ll'l~ w 
$ itJOO ! vv 
$ ~ /,1-f ZS 

I 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 101 of 221



10

In case of discrepancy between unit prices and item totals, the unit prices shall prevail. In case of a 
discrepancy between item totals and grand total, the item totals shall prevail. The grand total will be 
subject to adjustment by the City in the event of a discrepancy. The contract award shall be made on the 
basis of the grand total as described above from among the responsive and responsible bidders . 

The City does not expressly or by implication agree that the actual amount of work will correspond with 
the foregoing quantities, but reserves the right to increase or decrease the amount of any class or portion 
of the work or to omit portions of the work as may be deemed necessary or advisable by the Engineer. 

The bidder further agrees that in case of not executing the required contract with necessary bonds within 
ten ( 10) days, not including Sundays, after having received notice that the contract is ready for signature, 
the proceeds of the check or bond accompanying his bid shall become the property of the City of San 
Fernando. 

By submission of the Contractor's Proposal, the bidder also certifies that the bid is a balanced bid. 

The bidder acknowledges receipt of the following addendum issued for the above project. If no 
addendum has been received, write "None". FAILURE TO ACKNOWLEDGE RECEIPT OF ANY ADDENDA 
ISSUED WILL RENDER THE CONTRACTOR'S BID NON-RESPONSIVE. 

List of Addendum Received : ___ 1 _______________________ _ 

Revised Addendum # 1 (7/6/22) P-3 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 102 of 221



11

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 103 of 221



12

By ______________ _ By ___________ . ___ _ 

Its. _____________ _ Its. ______________ _ 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 104 of 221



13

Bond Number: RCB0038996 
Premium Included on Performance Bond 

WARRANTY PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BOND 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: that FS Contractors, Inc. as Principal, 
hereinafter called Contractor, and RLI Insurance Company 
licensed and domiciled in the state of California as Surety, hereinafter called Surety, are held and firmly bound 
unto CITY OF SAN FERNANDO as Obligee, hereinafter called Owner, in the amount of ________ _ 

Three Hundred Sixty-four Thousand One Hundred Twenty-five And No/100 ($ 364, 125.00 
for the payment whereof Contractor and Surety bind themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators, 
successors and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents. 

WHEREAS, FS Contractors, Inc. as Contractor, 
has by written agreement dated August 1st 2020, entered into a contract with Owner 
for in accordance with Drawings and Specifications contained in a written and executed contract, which contract 
is by reference made a part hereof, and is hereinafter referred to as the Contract. 

WHEREAS, said contract provides that the Principal shall furnish a bond which shall remain in force for a period 
of one year after the date of the notice of completion and which shall be conditioned to guarantee against all 
defects in workmanship and rnateriais which shall become apparent during said period. 

NOW THEREFORE, the condition of this obligation is such that, if Contractor shall promptly and faithfully 
perform said Contract, then this obligation shall be null and void; otherwise it shall remain in full force and 
effect. 

The Surety hereby waives notices of any alteration or extension of time made by the Owner. 

Whenever Contractor shall be, and declared by Owner to be in default under the Contract, the Owner having 
performed Owner's obligations thereunder, the Surety may promptly remedy the default, or shall promptly: 

(1) Complete the Contract in accordance with its terms and conditions, or; 

(2) Obtain a bid or bids for completing the Contract in accordance with it terms and conditions, and 
upon determination by Surety of the lowest responsible bidder, arrange for a contract between such 
bidder and Owner, and make available as work progresses (even though there should be a default or 
a succession of defaults under the contract or contracts of completion arranged under this paragraph) 
sufficient funds to pay the cost of completion less the balance of the contract price, but not exceeding, 
including other costs and damages for which the Surety may be liable hereunder, the amount set forth 
in the first paragraph hereof. The term "balance of the contract price," as used in this paragraph, 
shall mean the total amount payable by Owner to Contractor under the Contract and any amendments 
thereto, less the amount properly paid by Owner to Contractor. 

The transaction of insurance as evidenced by this bond is agreed by all parties to have taken place in the State 
of California in conformance with the laws therein, the Surety hereby accepts jurisdiction for adjudication of all 
claims in the state wherein the claims have occurred. 

This bond is for the protection of the owner and gives no protection to any claimant other than those provided 
for by statute in the state wherein the claim occurs. The owner hereby agrees that no payments shall be 
made in excess or advance of any work specifically performed under the contract without the express written 
consent of the Surety. 

For claims regarding non-payment for services provided or materials supplied under the contract, a claimant is 
defined herein as one having a direct contract with the Principal and/or subcontractor of the Principal. No suit 
or action shall be commenced hereunder by any claimant unless claimant shall: 

1. Notify the Surety of the direct contract with the Principal or Subcontractor of the Principal 
within 30 days of entering into such contract and; 

C-13 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 105 of 221



CONTRACT NO. 2092 
EXHIBIT "D"

14

2. Notify the Surety of any demands for payment under such direct contracts concurrently with 
the Principal and/or Subcontractor of the Principal and; 

3. Notify the Surety by certified mail within 15 days of any payment not made when due, or 
within 30 days of demand. 

As the purpose of this bond is to warrant work previously performed by the Principal in the contract specified 
herein, the Owner shall notify Surety immediately by certified mail upon demand for work to be performed 
under this bond. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the above bounden parties have executed this instrument under their 
several seals the 9th day of August 2022, the name 
and corporate seal of each corporate party being hereto affixed and these presents duly signed by 
each party's undersigned representative, pursuant to authority of its governing body. 

FS Contractors , Inc. 

(Pri ncipal) 

ATTEST: 14838 Bledsoe Street Sylmar, CA 91342 

(Addre1 ~~ F,v~ 
(By) o=• L) 

RLI Insurance Company 

ATTEST: 9025 N. Lindbergh Drive Peoria, IL 61615 

(A~ 

c:::2-LX ~ 
(By) 

Pietro Micciche, Attorney-in-Fact 

(Title) 
(To be filled in by Surety) 

Rate of premium on this bond is $ __ 1n_c_lu_d_e_d_o_n_P_e_rf_o_rm_a_n_c_e_B_o_n_d __ per thousand. 

Total amount of premium charge is $ Included on Performance Bond 

Surety signatures on this bond must be acknowledged before Notary Publics, and a sufficiently power of 
attorney must be attached to the bond to verify the authority of any party signing on behalf of a surety. 

All notices and demands to the surety shall be delivered via first class mail to the following: 

RLI Insurance Company 

9025 N. Lindbergh Drive 

Peoria, IL 61615 

C-14 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 106 of 221



CONTRACT NO. 2092 
EXHIBIT "D"

15

CALIFORNIA ALL-PURPOSE ACKNOWLEDGMENT CIVIL CODE § 1189 

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the individual who signed the 
document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document. 

State of California 

County of Los Angeles 

On iAUG O 9 2022 before me, Angel Nunez, Notary Public 

Date Here Insert Name and Title of the Officer 
personally appeared _P_ie_tr_o_M_i_c_ci_ch_e _______________________ _ _ 

Narne(s) of Signer(s) 

who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person()() whose name()() is~ 
subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/lm'.e(~;t executed the same in 
hisl,IQ~~i:( authorized capacity~. and that by hisMoo,(J:ltl~signature(;ll) on the instrument the person()(), 
or the entity upon behalf of which the person~) acted, executed the instrument. 

Place Notary Sea/ Above 

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws 
of the State of California that the foregoing paragraph 
is true and correct. 

Signatur 

---------------OPTIONAL---------------
Though this section is optional, completing this information can deter alteration of the document or 

fraudulent reattachment of this form to an unintended document. 

Description of Attached Document 
Title or Type of Document: ____________ Document Date: _______ _ 
Number of Pages: ___ Signer(s) Other Than Named Above: _ ___________ _ 

Capacity(ies} Claimed by Signer(s) 
Signer's Name: ___________ _ Signer's Name: _________ __ _ 
::J Corporate Officer - Title(s): ______ _ [7 Corporate Officer - Title(s): ______ _ 
7 Partner - r- Limil,ed LJ General 

::J Individual ~ Attorney in Fact 
□ Partner - □ Limited LJ General 
[7 Individual □ Attorney in Fact 

_J Trustee □ Guardian or Conservator □ Trustee □ Guardian or Conservator 
7 Other: ______________ _ □ Other: ____________ _ _ 
Signer Is Representing: ________ _ Signer Is Representing: ________ _ 

©2014 National Notary Association· www.NationalNotary.org • 1-800-US NOTARY (1-800-876-6827) Item #5907 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 107 of 221



CONTRACT NO. 2092 
EXHIBIT "D"

16

POWER OF ATTORNEY 
RLI Insurance Company 

Contractors Bonding and Insurance Company 
9025 N. Lindbergh Dr. Peoria, IL 61615 

Phone: 800-645-2402 

Know All Men by These Presents: 

That this Power of Attorney is not valid or in effect unless attached to the bond which it authorizes executed, but may be detached by the 
approving officer if desired. 

That RLI Insurance Company and/or Contractors Bonding and Insurance Company, each an Lllinois corporation, (separately and 
together, the "Company") do hereby make, constitute and appoint: 
Patricia Zenizo, Pietro Micciche, Elisabete Salazar, jointly or severally 

in the City of Glendale , State of California its tme and lawful Agent(s) and Attomey(s) in Fact, with 
full power and authority hereby conferred, to sign, execute, acknowledge and deliver for and on its behalf as Surety, in general, any and all 
bonds and undertakings in an amount not to exceed Twenty Five Million Dollars 
( $25,000,000.00 ) for any single obligation. 

The acknowledgment and execution of such bond by the said Attorney in Fact shall be as binding upon the Company as if such bond had been 
executed and acknowledged by the regularly elected officers of the Company. 

RLI Insurance Company and/or Contractors Bonding and Insurance Company, as applicable, have each further certified that the 
following is a true and exact copy of a Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of each such corporation, and is now in force, to-wit: 

"All bonds, policies, undertakings, Powers of Attorney or other obligations of the corporation shall be executed in the corporate name of 
the Company by the President, Secretary, any Assistant Secretary, Treasurer, or any Vice President, or by such other officers as the Board 
of Directors may authorize. The President, any Vice President, Secretary, any Assistant Secretary, or the Treasurer may appoint 
Attorneys in Fact or Agents who shall have authority to issue bonds, policies or undertakings in the name of the Company. The corporate 
seal is not necessary for the validity of any bonds, policies, undertakings, Powers of Attorney or other obligations of the corporation. The 
signature of any such officer and the corporate seal may be printed by facsimile." 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the RLI Insurance Company and/or Contractors Bonding and Insurance Company, as applicable, have 
caused these presents to be executed by its respective Vice President with its corporate seal affixed this 25th day of 

April , 2022 . 

State of Illinois 

County of Peoria 
} ss 

On this 25 th day of April , 2022 , before me, a Notary Public, 
personally appeared Barton W Davjs , who being by me duly sworn, 
acknowledged that he signed the above Power of Attorney as the aforesaid 
officer of the RLI Insurance Company and/or Contractors Bonding and 
Insurance Company and acknowledged said instrument to be the voluntary 
act and deed of said corporation. 

Catherine D. Glover Notary Public 

0449553()102 I 2 

RLI Insurance Company 
Contractors Bonding and Insurance Company 

By: ~,( fv.?J= 
Barton W. Davis Vice President 

CERTIFICATE 

I, the undersigned officer of RLI Insurance Company and/or 
Contractors Bonding and Insurance Company, do hereby certi fy 
that the attached Power of Attorney is in full force and effect and is 
irrevocable; and furthermore, that the Resolution of the Company as 
set forth in the Power of Attorney, is now in force. In testimony 
whereof, I have hereunto set my hand and the seal of the RLI 
Insurance C~K and/or Contractors Bondiilg ·and Insurance 
Company thi · day of Alo3½',:\': ,'l-6-Z.,'~ 

RLI Insurance Company 
Contractors Bonding and Insurance Company 

By: Q,~ D Jr-~ 
Jeffreyic Corporate Si:cretary 

A0058D 19 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 108 of 221



17

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 109 of 221



CONTRACT NO. 2092
EXHIBIT "E"

18

ATTEST: 

ATTEST: 

FS Contractors, Inc. 

(Principal) 

14838 Bledsoe Street Sylmar, CA 91342 

(Address) n 
&¥(,e/~ 

(By 

RLI Insurance Company 

9025 N. Lindbergh Drive Peoria , !L 61615 

(Address) 

c--s;J, .C ~~4h 
(By) 

Pietro Micciche, Attorney-in-Fact 

(Title) 

(To be filled in by Surety) 

Rate of premium on this bond is $ ___ ___;_10::....:.·..::...80"'--____ per thousand. 

Total amount of premium charge is $ 3,933.00 . 
Premium Based on Final Contract Amount 

Surety signatures on th is bond must be acknowledged before Notary Publics, and a 
sufficiently power of attorney must be attached to the bond to verify the authority of 
any party signing on behalf of a surety. 

All notices and demands to the surety shall be delivered via first class mail to the 
following: 

RLI Insurance Company 

9025 N. Lindbergh Drive 

Peoria , IL 61615 

C-10 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 110 of 221



CONTRACT NO. 2092 
EXHIBIT "E"

19

CALIFORNIA ALL-PURPOSE ACKNOWLEDGMENT CIVIL CODE§ 1189 

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the individual who signed the 
document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document. 

State of California 

County of Los Angeles 

On AUG O 9 2022 before me, Angel Nunez, Notary Public 
Date Here Insert Name and Title of the Officer 

personally appeared _P_ie_tr_o_M_i_c_ci_c_he _______________________ _ 

Name(s) of Signer(s) 

who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person()() whose name{,() is~ 
subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he~lll:e(')OO)J executed the same in 
his/;.)~(X!:t:l~i:( authorized capacity~, and that by his/)(~Mi)(signature{~ on the instrument the person{,(), 
or the entity upon behalf of which the person~} acted, executed the instrument. 

I certify under PENAL TY OF PERJURY under the laws 
of the State of California that the foregoing paragraph 
is true and correct. 

Place Notary Sea/ Above 
---------------OPTIONAL---------------

Though this section is optional, completing this information can deter alteration of the document or 
fraudulent reattachment of this form to an unintended document. 

Description of Attached Document 
Title or Type of Document: _____________ Document Date: _______ _ 
Number of Pages: ___ Signer{s) Other Than Named Above: ____________ _ 

Capacity(ies) Claimed by Signer(s) 
Signer's Name: ___________ _ Signer's Name: _________ __ _ 
_J Corporate Officer - Title(s}: ______ _ □ Corporate Officer - Title(s): _ _____ _ 
-, Partner - Li Limi)ld O General 

:= Individual ~ Attorney in Fact 
□ Partner - 0 Limited LJ General 
n Individual □ Attorney in Fact 

' Trustee □ Guardian or Conservator □ Trustee L Guardian or Conservator 
Other: ______________ _ 0 Other: _____________ _ 

Signer Is Representing: ________ _ Signer Is Representing: ________ _ 

©201 4 National Notary Association· www.NationalNotary.org • 1-800-US NOTARY (1-800-876-6827} Item #5907 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 111 of 221



CONTRACT NO. 2092
EXHIBIT "E"

20

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 112 of 221



CONTRACT NO. 2092
EXHIBIT "E"

21

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the above bounden parties have executed this instrument 
under their several seals the ~ day of August , 2022, the name and 
corporate seal of each corporate party being hereto affixed and these presents duly 
signed by each party's undersigned representative, pursuant to authority of its 
governing body. 

ATTEST: 

ATTEST: 

(To be fi lled in by Surety) 

FS Contractors, Inc. 

(Principal) 

14838 Bledsoe Street Sylmar, CA 91342 

(Address) 

J.¼JZ h~ 
(By) 

RLI Insurance Company 

9025 N. Lindbergh Drive Peoria , IL 61615 

(Address) 

~ M~ 
(By) 

Pietro Micciche, Attorney-in-Fact 

(Title) 

Rate of premium on this bond is $ Included on Performance Bond per thousand. 

Total amount of premium charge is $ Included on Performance Bond . 

Surety signatures on th is bond must be acknowledged before Notary Publics, and a 
suff iciently power of attorney must be attached to the bond to verify the authority of 
any party signing on behalf of a surety. 

All notices and demands to the surety shall be delivered via first class mail to the 
fo llowing: 

RLI Insurance Company 

9025 N. Lindbergh Drive 

Peoria, IL 61 615 

C-12 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 113 of 221



CONTRACT NO. 2092 
EXHIBIT "E"

22

CALIFORNIA ALL-PURPOSE ACKNOWLEDGMENT CIVIL CODE§ 1189 

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the individual who signed the 
document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document. 

State of California 

County of Los Angeles 

On AUG O 9 2022 before me, Angel Nunez, Notary Public 
Date Here Insert Name and Title of the Officer 

personally appeared _P_ie_tr_o_M_i_c_ci_c_he ______________________ _ _ 

Name(s) of Signer(s) 

who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the personOO whose name()() is~ 
subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he~~e(~ executed the same in 
his/,fo~~ authorized capacity~. and that by his/)l(~~signature(;ll) on the instrument the person~. 
or the entity upon behalf of which the person($) acted, executed the instrument. 

I certify under PENAL TY OF PERJURY under the laws 
of the State of California that the foregoing paragraph 
is true and correct. 

Place Notary Seal Above ---------------opnoNAL ______________ _ 
Though this section is optional, completing this information can deter alteration of the document or 

fraudulent reattachment of this form to an unintended document. 

Description of Attached Document 
Title or Type of Document: ____________ Document Date: _______ _ 
Number of Pages: Signer(s) Other Than Named Above: ____________ _ 

Capacity(ies) Claimed by Signer{s) 
Signer's Name: ___________ _ Signer's Name: __________ _ _ 
_] Corporate Officer - Title(s): ______ _ n Corporate Officer - Title(s): ______ _ 
7 Partner - n Limil,}d n General 

_J Individual """ Attorney in Fact 
□ Partner - n Limited LJ General 
n Individual n Attorney in Fact 

; Trustee □ Guardian or Conservator □ Trustee C Guardian or Conservator 
-! Other: ______________ _ □ Other: ____________ _ 

Signer Is Representing: ________ _ Signer Is Representing: ______ _ _ _ 

r,~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~reg!ml<~~!l'ffl~~~~~l!§'lilil~~~~ 

©2014 National Notary Association· www.NationalNotary.org • 1-800-US NOTARY (1-800-876-6827) Item #5907 

.... , 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 114 of 221



September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 115 of 221



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 116 of 221



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

ADMINISTRATION DEPARTMENT                 117 MACNEIL STREET, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340                 (818) 898-1202                 WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

REVIEW:      ☒ Finance Director      ☒ Deputy City Manager      ☒ City Manager 
 

To: Mayor Celeste T. Rodriguez and Councilmembers 
  
From:  Nick Kimball, City Manager 
   
Date:  September 5, 2023 
 
Subject: Consideration to Adopt a Resolution Renaming the Pacoima Wash Natural Park to 

Cindy Montañez Natural Park Located at 801 Eighth Street, in Honor of Her 
Achievements, Dedication and Contributions to the Community 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the City Council: 
 
a. Adopt Resolution No. 8259 (Attachment “A”) approving renaming the Pacoima Wash Natural 

Park to Cindy Montañez Natural Park Located at 801 Eighth Street; and 
 

b. Provide additional direction to staff, as appropriate. 
 
  
BACKGROUND: 

1. On March 30, 2009, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 7305 establishing a policy for 
designating honorary names for public streets, buildings, parks, and other locations 
(Attachment “B”).  
 

2. On August 7, 2023, Councilmember Fajardo agendized, for City Council consideration, 
discussion regarding requirements and process for renaming the Pacoima Wash Natural Park, 
located at 801 Eighth Street, to honor Councilmember Montañez as a tribute to her work, 
dedication, and contributions to the community (Attachment “C”).  City Council directed staff 
to work with the appropriate entities and move forward expeditiously with any actions 
required to rename the Park. 

 
3. On August 14, 2023, per the request by the Executive Officer of the Mountains Recreation 

and Conservation Authority (MRCA), the City submitted a letter of request to rename 
Pacoima Wash Natural Park (Attachment “D”) for consideration by the MRCA Board at their 
September meeting. 

 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 117 of 221



Consideration to Adopt a Resolution Renaming the Pacoima Wash Natural Park to Cindy Montañez 
Natural Park Located at 801 Eighth Street, in Honor of Her Achievements, Dedication and Contributions 
to the Community 
Page 2 of 3 
 
 
4. On August 10, 2023, the MRCA Director of Natural Resources and Planning gave the City 

MRCA’s full permission to plant native milkweed at the Park, pursuant to the City’s Ground 
Lease Agreement (Attachment “E”). 

 
 
ANALYSIS: 

The Pacoima Wash Natural Park, located on the northerly side of the Pacoima Wash between 
Eighth Street and Foothill Boulevard, has transformed an otherwise underutilized and blighted 
piece of vacant land adjacent to the Pacoima Wash into a greenway project complete with a 
water infiltration basin, bio-swales, sediment traps, placitas, and walking trails.  The Park's 
development was a result of a collaborative effort by multiple agencies, including the City of San 
Fernando, Mountains Recreation and Conservation Authority, Los Angeles County Flood Control 
District, and students in the Landscape Architecture Program at Cal Poly Pomona. 
 
The City has an establish policy “Regarding the Designation of Honorary Names for Public Streets, 
Buildings, Parks and Other Locations” for individuals or groups that have “made significant 
contributions to the betterment of the City of San Fernando and/or the nation.”  Councilmember 
Montañez has demonstrated an unwavering commitment to the betterment of the San Fernando 
community and the protection of natural resources throughout her remarkable journey in public 
service. 
 
From her tenure on the San Fernando City Council to her impactful role in the California State 
Assembly, Councilmember Montañez has consistently championed the causes of environmental 
sustainability and community well-being.  Her dedication and tireless efforts have been evident 
in her leadership roles within the Los Angeles Department of Water and Power and as Chief 
Executive Officer (CEO) of TreePeople, an organization renowned for its commitment to 
promoting sustainable urban forestry, tree planting, and environmental education.  
 
Councilmember Montañez’s influence on the development and enhancement of Pacoima Wash 
Natural Park, and other greenspaces like it, were instrumental in bringing the Park to life.   
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 

There is minimal fiscal impact to renaming Pacoima Wash Natural Park to Cindy Montañez 
Natural Park.  The cost to purchase and install new signs is less than $1,500 and will be funded 
from the City Manager Appropriated Reserve account. 

 
 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 118 of 221



Consideration to Adopt a Resolution Renaming the Pacoima Wash Natural Park to Cindy Montañez 
Natural Park Located at 801 Eighth Street, in Honor of Her Achievements, Dedication and Contributions 
to the Community 
Page 3 of 3 
 
 
CONCLUSION: 

It is recommended that City Council adopt Resolution No. 8259 to officially rename Pacoima 
Wash Natural Park to Cindy Montañez Natural Park in honor of her significant contributions to 
the betterment of the San Fernando community. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

A. Resolution No. 8259 
B. Resolution No. 7305 
C. Request to Agendize an Item 
D. Request to Rename Pacoima Wash Natural Park 
E. Pacoima Wash Natural Park Ground Lease Agreement – Contract No. 1876 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 119 of 221



ATTACHMENT “A” 
 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 8259 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN 
FERNANDO, CALIFORNIA, RENAMING THE PACOIMA WASH 
NATURAL PARK LOCATED AT 801 EIGHTH STREET TO CINDY 
MONTAÑEZ NATURAL PARK HONORING HER LIFE TIME 
ACHIEVEMENTS, DEDICATION AND CONTRIUBITONS TO THE 
COMMUNITY 

 
WHEREAS, Cindy Montañez is a lifelong Angeleno raised in the City of San Fernando, 

California. Cindy is one of six children, a daughter of immigrants, her mother raised in a remote, 
mountainous region of Veracruz, Mexico, and her father in the dry border state of Chihuahua;  

 
WHEREAS, her parents sparked Cindy’s environmental passion at an early age by pointing 

out local injustices in their own neighborhood. At 12 years old, Cindy and her family volunteered 
with local organizations planting trees and ultimately was influential in fostering her 
environmental commitment;  

 
WHEREAS, during her freshman year as a student at the University of California Los 

Angeles, Cindy participated in a 14-day hunger strike on campus that forced the university to 
start a Chicano studies department, which led to the creation of the César E. Chávez Center 
Department of Chicana and Chicano Studies. The department later became the second University 
of California campus to offer a doctorate degree in Chicana and Chicano Studies;  

 
WHEREAS, at the age of 25, Cindy was elected as the youngest Councilmember and 

eventually became the Mayor of her hometown, the City of San Fernando, California.  At 28 years 
old, she created history by becoming the youngest Latina woman elected to the California State 
Legislature as the Assemblywoman for the 39th District. In this role, she championed the 
environment, sustainable urban planning, and social justice. She authored Assembly Bill 68, 
known as the "Car Buyer’s Bill of Rights," and successfully chaptered various other bills including 
statutes to improve the management of urban landfills, and a law to protect children from  
sexually abusive parent(s), earning a reputation as a passionate advocate for the environment, 
social justice, and sustainable urban planning; 

 
WHEREAS, in February 2004, Cindy was named the chairperson of the Assembly Rules 

Committee. At 30 years old, she was the youngest democratic woman and first Latina woman in 
its history to chair the powerful committee; 
 

WHEREAS, she joined the Los Angeles Department of Water and Power, as the Assistant 
General Manager where she was a core part of the team transitioning the nation’s largest 
publicly-owned utility to cleaner energy and a more sustainable local water supply; 

 
 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 120 of 221



  RES. NO. 8259 

2 
 

WHEREAS, in 2016, Cindy became the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of TreePeople, a local 
nonprofit focused on protecting the environment and making her the first Latina CEO of an 
environmental organization in United States history. There, she has been a leading voice 
championing protection and restoration of the urban forest, she has implemented important 
measures to protect and improve open spaces and parks, she has planted countless trees, and 
she has helped to educate a new generation of students and teachers about their role in 
protecting ecosystems;   

 
WHEREAS, in addition to her role as CEO of TreePeople, Cindy was elected to a second 

term on the City Council of the City of San Fernando in November 2020 and is currently a board 
member of the UCLA Institute of Environment and Sustainability;   

 
WHEREAS, some of Cindy’s favorite things to do included hiking our local mountains, 

exploring California, and giving back to the City of Los Angeles. She is inspired by the magic of 
California’s ancient 2,000-year-old giant sequoia trees, the delectable taste of the fruit from her 
mother’s trees, and the ability to live and work inside oak woodlands within a major metropolis; 
and  

 
WHEREAS, Councilmember Cindy Montañez’s influence on the development and 

enhancement of Pacoima Wash Natural Park, and other greenspaces like it, cannot be 
overstated. Her vision and leadership were instrumental in bringing the Park to life, a testament 
to her unwavering dedication to the preservation of our natural heritage. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO DOES HEREBY 

RESOLVE, FIND, DETERMINE AND ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1: The representations set forth in the Recitals above, are true and correct. 
 
SECTION 2: That by the adoption of this Resolution, the City of San Fernando recognizes 

that for over 30 years, Cindy Montanez has been a fearless, committed and effective advocate 
for the residents of the City of San Fernando, as a community organizer, and a public servant 
influencing positive change towards environmental justice and making a lasting impact.  

 
SECTION 3: That by the adoption of this Resolution, the City Council of the City of San 

Fernando as a tribute to Cindy Montanez's many years of service to the community, including her 
leadership on environmental, consumer protection, and education issues. 

 
SECTION 4: That by the adoption of this Resolution, the City Council of the City of San 

Fernando hereby approves the renaming of the Pacoima Wash Natural Park to Cindy Montañez 
Natural Park in honor of Councilmember Cindy Montañez’s immense contributions to 
environmental stewardship. To also inspire future generations to take up the mantle of 
environmental responsibility and civic engagement, as well as a lasting reminder of the power of 
one individual to make a significant impact on our community. 

 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 121 of 221



  RES. NO. 8259 

3 
 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 5th day of September, 2023. 
 
 
 
              

 Celeste T. Rodriguez, Mayor of the City of 
 San Fernando, California 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
       
Julia Fritz, City Clerk 
 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 122 of 221



  RES. NO. 8259 

4 
 

CERTIFICATION 
 
 
 
I, City Clerk of the City of San Fernando, California, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, 
true, and correct copy of Resolution No. 8259 which was regularly introduced and adopted by 
the City Council of the City of San Fernando, California, at a regular meeting thereof held on the 
5th day of August, 2023, by the following vote of the City Council: 
 
 

AYES:  
 
NAYS:  
 
ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAINED:  

 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official seal of the 
City of San Fernando, California, this _____ day of _________, ____.  
 
 
 
 

  
       Julia Fritz, City Clerk 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 123 of 221



RESOLUTION NO. 7305 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF SAN FERNANDO ADOPTING A POLICY REGARDING 
DESIGNATION OF HONORARY NAMES FOR PUBLIC 
STREETS, BUILDINGS, PARKS AND OTHER 
LOCATIONS 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of San Fernando acknowledges that there is a 
practice among cities throughout the United States to designate streets with honorary names 
(often called "secondary" or "unofficial" names); 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of San Fernando understands that the use of 
"honorary" names can serve various purposes, including recognition of historic figures or 
prominent individuals; 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of San Fernando recognizes that designation of 
honorary names for public streets, buildings, parks and other public locations within the City of 
San Fernando provides an oppmiunity for the City to emphasize the contributions made by 
individuals whose names are utilized for designation; 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of San Fernando recognizes that there are 
numerous individuals that have made significant contributions to the City of San Fernando 
and/or the nation as a whole and are deserving of recognition by the City of San Fernando; 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of San Fernando desires to establish a policy for 
the designation of honorary street, building, park or other location names in order to ensure that 
the City recognizes deserving individuals and applies this practice in a uniform and consistent 
manner. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of San 
Fernando as follows: 

Section I: The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are 
incorporated into this Resolution. 

Section 2: The City Council of the City of San Fernando hereby establishes a 
policy regarding the designation of honorary names, entitled "Policy Regarding the Designation 
of Honorary Names for Public Streets, Buildings, Parks and Other Locations," attached as 
Attachment A. 

Section 3: This Resolution shall go into effect immediately upon adoption. 

PASSED, APPROVED, and ADOPTED this 30th day of March, 2009. 

12011-0001\1125433vl.doc - 1 -

ATTACHMENT "B"

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 124 of 221



ATTEST: 

ELENA G. CHAVEz,CTfYL 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

MICHAEL ESTRADA, CITY ATTORNEY 

1201 l-0001\1125433vl.doc - 2 -

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 125 of 221



ST ATE OF CALIFORNIA ) 
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES ) SS 
CITY OF SAN FERNANDO ) 

I, ELENA G. CHAVEZ, City Clerk of the City of San Fernando, do hereby 
certify that the foregoing Resolution was adopted at a special meeting of the City Council held 
on the 30th day of March, 2009 and was carried by the following roll call vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

Veres, M. Hernandez, E. Hernandez, De La Torre - 4 
None 
Martinez - 1 
None 

12011-000l\1125433vl.doc - 3 -

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 126 of 221



Policy Regarding the Designation of Honorary Names 
for Public Streets, Buildings, Parks and Other Locations 

City of San Fernando 

Adopted: March 30, 2009 

Attachment "A" 

This policy sets forth guidelines regarding the designation of honorary names for public 
streets, buildings, parks, and other locations. The City shall follow these guidelines when 
considering a proposal to designate any public location with an honorary name: 

I. With approval by Resolution of the City Council, the City may designate "honorary 
names" for public streets, buildings, parks and other locations. Designation with an 
honorary name shall not change the official name of the street, however, and 
honorary street names will not be used for addressing purposes. 

II. The names of individuals, groups or entities will be considered for designation. The 
individuals may be living or deceased, and the individual, group or entity must have 
made significant contributions to the betterment of the City of San Fernando and/or 
the nation. 

III. A request to designate a public location with an honorary name may be initiated by 
the staff, City Council or any member of the general public. Members of the general 
public must make requests in writing and describe background regarding the named 
individual, group or entity, including a description of the contributions made to the 
City of San Fernando and/or the nation by the named individual, group or entity, and 
also include the location and exact wording of the proposed designation (i.e., exact 
name of street, building, park or other location). 

IV. Proposals to designate a public location with an honorary name will be heard by 
the City Council at a noticed public hearing. 

V. Appropriate signage will be displayed and maintained bearing the honorary name. 
City staff shall determine height, color, and other standards for signage. Staff will 
ensure that existing signage is not replaced and that signage bearing the honorary 
name is distinguishable from the existing signage in size, color and/or other aspect. 
Signage bearing the honorary name shall not distract from the wayfinding purposes 
of existing signage. The applicant will be responsible for the costs of the signage 
bearing the honorary name. City shall be responsible for costs of signage bearing 
the honorary name when staff or the City Council directs a proposal for designation 
with an honorary name. The Council in a separate action must approve the final 
design and placement of the signage bearing the honorary name. 

VI. The City shall identify, on the City's official website, the honorary names 
designated by the City for public streets, buildings, parks and other locations, 
including a description of the basis for designation with an honorary name. 

VII. Honorary designations may be pennanent, or for an interim period designated by the 
City Council. 

12011-000111126735vl.doc 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 127 of 221



IIX. City Council shall have the discretion to adopt additional guidelines in furtherance 
of these general policies. 

2 
12011-000l\1126735vl.doc 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 128 of 221



City Council  |  117 Macneil Street  |  San Fernando, CA 91340  |  (818) 898-1201  |  Form # CC-003.1 (07/2017) |  Page 1 of 1 

REQUEST TO AGENDIZE AN ITEM FOR CITY COUNCIL 
DISCUSSION/CONSIDERATION

CITY COUNCILMEMBER INFORMATION
NAME TITLE

ITEM INFORMATION
SUBJECT Title of the item you are requesting to be agendized.

PRIORITIES 
Is this included in the current FY priorities?

  Yes    No

BUDGET 
Is this a budgeted item?

  Yes    No

FISCAL IMPACT 
Is there a fiscal impact? If yes, indicate amount.

  Yes    No     $
BACKGROUND/ANALYSIS Provide the reason you are requesting this item be agendized.

ATTACHMENTS Do you have any attachments to include?

  Yes    No
RECOMMENDATION Indicate the direction you are recommending.

C

Joel Fajardo Councilmember

Naming of Cindy Montanez Community Park

✔ ✔ ✔ TBD

This is to discuss renaming the Pacoima Wash Natural Park to Cindy Montanez Community Park
and to provide staff with direction.

It is recommended that the City Council give staff direction to rename the Pacoima Wash Natural
Park to Cindy Montanez Community Park and to provide staff with direction.

✔

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 129 of 221



CITY COUNCIL 

MAYOR 
CELESTE T. RODRIGUEZ 

VICE MAYOR 
MARY MENDOZA 

COUNCILMEMBER 
JOEL FAJARDO 

COUNCILMEMBER 
CINDY MONTAÑEZ 

COUNCILMEMBER 
MARY SOLORIO 

OFFICE OF THE 
CITY COUNCIL 

117 MACNEIL STREET 
SAN FERNANDO 
CALIFORNIA 
91340 

(818) 898-1201

WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

August 14, 2023 

Joseph T. Edmiston, Executive Officer 
Mountains Recreation & Conservation Authority 
570 West Avenue 26, Suite 100 
Los Angeles, CA 90065 

SUBJECT: Request to Rename Pacoima Wash Natural Park 

Dear Mr. Edmiston, 

On behalf of the City Council for the City of San Fernando, I am writing to formally 
request your esteemed consideration of a matter of great significance to our 
community. 

As you are well aware, the Pacoima Wash Natural Park has transformed an 
otherwise underutilized and blighted piece of vacant land adjacent to the Pacoima 
Wash into a greenway project complete with a water infiltration basin, bio-swales, 
sediment traps, Placitas, and walking trails.  The Park's development was a result 
of a collaborative effort by leaders from multiple agencies, including students in 
the Landscape Architecture Program at Cal Poly Pomona, and a testament to the 
values of environmental stewardship and community engagement that lie at the 
core of our City's ethos. 

It is with great enthusiasm and a strong belief in recognizing the contributions of 
remarkable individuals that the San Fernando City Council proposes renaming the 
Pacoima Wash Natural Park to the "Cindy Montañez Natural Park." 
Councilmember Montañez has demonstrated an unwavering commitment to the 
betterment of our community and the protection of our natural resources 
throughout her remarkable journey in public service. 

From her dedicated tenure on the San Fernando City Council to her impactful role 
in the California State Assembly, Councilmember Montañez has consistently 
championed the causes of environmental sustainability and community well-
being.  Her dedication and tireless efforts have been evident in her leadership 
roles within the Los Angeles Department of Water and Power and as CEO of 
TreePeople, an organization renowned for its commitment to greening our urban 
environment. 

ATTACHMENT "D"
September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 130 of 221

http://www.sfcity.org/


JOSEPH T. EDMISTON, EXECUTIVE OFFICER 
Request to Rename Pacoima Wash Natural Park 
Page 2 of 2 

Councilmember Montañez’s influence on the development and enhancement of 
Pacoima Wash Natural Park, and other greenspaces like it, cannot be overstated. 
Her vision and leadership were instrumental in bringing the Park to life, a 
testament to her unwavering dedication to the preservation of our natural 
heritage. 
 
Renaming the Park in honor of Councilmember Montañez would not only 
acknowledge her immense contributions to environmental stewardship, but also 
inspire future generations to take up the mantle of environmental responsibility 
and civic engagement. It would stand as a lasting reminder of the power of one 
individual to make a significant impact on our community. 
 
The San Fernando City Council respectfully requests that the Mountains 
Recreation & Conservation Authority carefully review and consider this proposal. 
Your organization's support in renaming the Park would not only be a fitting 
tribute to Councilmember Montañez’s legacy, but also demonstrate the 
harmonious collaboration between public service, environmental conservation, 
and community development. 
 
Thank you for your time, consideration, and ongoing commitment to our shared 
mission of preserving our natural treasures for generations to come. 
 
Sincerely,  
 

 

Celeste T. Rodriguez, Mayor 
City of San Fernando 
 
 
cc: Mary Mendoza, Vice Mayor 
 Joel Fajardo, Councilmember 
 Cindy Montañez, Councilmember  

Mary Solorio, Councilmember 
  

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 131 of 221



Pacoima Wash Natural Park Ground Lease Agreement 

CONTRACT NO. 1876 

LEASE AGREEMENT 

This Lease Agreement ("Agreement") is made as of the _ day of February, 2018 ("Effective 
Date") by and between MOUNTAINS RECREATION AND CONSERVATION AUTHORITY, 
a public entity of the State of California exercising joint powers of the Santa Monica Mountains 
Conservancy, the Conejo Recreation and Park District, and the Rancho Simi Recreation and Park 
District pursuant to Section 6500 et seq. of the Government Code (the "MRCA"), and the CITY 
OF SAN FERNANDO, a municipal corporation organized and existing under the laws of the 
State of California (the "City"). Collectively, MRCA and the City are the Paiiies to this 
Agreement. The capitalized term "Party" shall refer to CITY or MRCA interchangeably as 
appropriate. 

This Agreement is entered into between the MRCA and the City for the purpose of MRCA 
leasing to the City a 4.35-acre park located on propetiy within the City of San Fernando 
identified by Assessor Parcel Numbers 2515-025-900, 2515-025-902, 2513-033-900, 2513-033-
901, 2513-033-902, 2513-033-903, 2513-033-904, and 2513-033-905, the Pacoima Wash 
Natural Park ("Park"). 

RECITALS 

A. MRCA is the owner of certain land located in City of San Fernando and identified by the
Los Angeles County Assessor Parcel Numbers 2513-033-903, 2513-033-904, and 2513-
033-905.

B. The Park is constructed on portions of Los Angeles County Flood Control District (FCD)
owned property, Assessor Parcel Numbers 2515-025-900, 2515-025-902, 2513-033-900,
2513-033-901, and 2513-033-902, per an executed Use Agreement between MRCA and
FCD dated May 12, 2008.

C. The Park is fully described Exhibit A, attached and hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

D. In June 2008, the City and MRCA entered into a memorandum of understanding and
cooperative agreement ("MOU") for MRCA to build and operate the Park and then for
MRCA to transfer maintenance and operations of the Park to the City after three years of
Park operations. The Parties enter into this Agreement to fulfill their obligations of the
prior MOU.

E. The MOU is attached as Exhibit B, and incorporated by reference herein.

Therefore, incorporating the above Recitals and for good and valuable consideration, the Parties 
agree as follows: 

Page I of l l 

ATTACHMENT "E"
September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 132 of 221



Pacoima Wash Natural Park Ground Lease Agreement 

Section 1. Lease 

MRCA leases to the City the Park on the tenns and conditions of this Agreement. During the 
term of the Agreement, the City will be solely responsible for maintenance, operations and 
liability for any and all existing and future improvements upon the Park, including all costs 
associated therewith. 

Section 2. Term of Agreement 

A. The tenn of the Agreement shall commence on execution by the Pa1iies 
("Commencement Date"). 

B. The length of the lease ("Lease Term") shall be 20 (twenty) years from the 
Commencement Date and automatically renew for 20 (twenty) year terms thereafter. 

C. This Agreement shall terminate upon the successful transfer of fee title to the Park to the 
City or another entity, whichever is earlier. 

D. This Agreement shall be automatically renewed according to the Lease Term unless 
MRCA, with 180 ( one hundred eighty) days of notice prior to the expiration of the then 
cunent Lease Term, provides written notice to the City of the desire to renegotiate this 
Agreement and the Paiiies commit to drafting and negotiating a subsequent lease to 
govern the Park. 

Section 3. Lease Payment Obligation. 

The City shall not pay MRCA for the lease of the Park. Rather, as consideration, MRCA shall 
receive the benefit of the City's ongoing investment in the Park's operation and maintenance 
expenses. 

Section 4. Use. 

A. The Parties agree that the City shall use the Park solely for public park, recreational, and 
open space purposes ("Uses") and consistent with the uses on the effective date of this 
Agreement. 

B. All other Uses must be approved by the MRCA. 
C. All Uses shall be consistent with all federal, state, and local laws and ordinances and 

pursuant to all applicable permits or other entitlements. 
D. The City shall keep the Park open to the public seven days per week for the majority of 

daylight hours except during storm events. During storm events, the City shall secure and 
close the Park to the public for safety reasons. 

E. The City agrees to comply with all laws, roles, and orders of all federal, state, and 
municipal governments or agencies that may be applicable to Uses and the Park, 
including any laws, ru les, orders, regulations, and statutes governing the operation and 
safety of the Uses on the Park. 

F. The City shall obtain, on a timely bas is, any and all applicable pern1its and licenses 
requ ired by city, state, and federal government entities for any and all improvements 
and/or alterations, and associated Uses. The City agrees that fai lure to obtain any such 
applicable permits or li censes on a timely basis will constitute a material breach of the 

Page 2 of 11 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 133 of 221



Pacoima Wash Natural Park Ground Lease Agreement 

terms of this Agreement. The City will provide copies of any and all applicable approved 
pennits and licenses to MRCA upon request. The City will keep all approved permits and 
licenses current dming the term of this Agreement or any extensions thereto. 

G. The City shall not commit or pennit any waste or any public or private nuisance upon the 
Park. 

H. The City shall not build on, improve, or fundamentally alter the Park from its current 
state without prior written authorization from the MRCA. 

I. The City shall take full legal and equitable responsibility for its Uses and related 
activities on the Park, including the building or use of any and all structures or 
improvements on, or alterations to, the Park, whether pennanent or temporary, and will 
fully indemnify, defend, protect, and hold hannless MRCA for the same as set forth in 
Section 8 of this Agreement. 

J. Consistent with the Uses, the City shall maintain the Park and any alterations or 
improvements thereon in a good, orderly, and safe condition. The City will at all times 
take all reasonable steps to ensure that its activities, operations, and Uses on the Park are 
conducted in a manner so as not to detract from the aesthetic value of the prope1iy at 
large. 

K. The City shall not directly or indirectly create, incur or assume any lien on or with 
respect to the Park. 

L. Landscaping: 
a. The City shall not fundamentally alter the nature of Park's existing landscaping or 

plant pallet without prior written permission from MRCA. 
b. Unless the City determines that there is a likely immediate hazard to people or 

property, the City may not remove any trees without prior pem1ission. 
c. The City may only use plants consistent with MRCA's approved plant list, 

attached as Exhibit C. The use of any other plant type will require a formal 
request to and written pennission from the MRCA. 

M. The City will assume the full costs of operating and maintaining the Park on a weekly 
basis. 

N. Revenues: 
a. The City is permitted to charge fees for special events or permit fi lming 

operations at the Park. 
b. The City shall ensure that all pem1it recipients for special events and permit 

filming name MRCA, the Santa Monica Mountains Conservancy, the Conejo 
Recreation and Park District, and the Rancho Simi Recreation and Park District as 
an additional insured for comprehensive liability insurance from a responsible 
insurance company authorized to do business in California, with a combined 
single limit of not less than Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) for injury or death 
to each person per occurrence, and, for damage to propetiy, a limit of One 
Hundred Thousand Dollars ($100,000) per occurrence for any claims, demands, 
of causes of action of any person aris ing out of accidents occurring on the Park in 
relation to the special event or film permit. The procurement and maintenance of 
insurance as specified is a material pati of the consideration to MRCA for the 
ri ght to allow for special events and permit film ing. Each policy of insurance shall 
be issued by a respons ible insurance company authorized to do business in 
Cali fornia. Each policy of insurance shall be primary and noncontributory with 

Page 3 of 11 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 134 of 221



Pacoima Wash Natural Park Ground Lease Agreement 

any policies canied by MRCA, and, to the extent obtainable, any loss shall be 
payable notwithstanding any act or negligence of MRCA that might otherwise 
result in forfeiture of insurance. 

c. The City shall ensure that any release of the City, specific or general, related to 
special events or pem1it filming additionally releases MRCA. 

0. The City shall ensure that all stormwater treatment elements and features, including but 
not limited to the placitas, drains, sediment vaults, anoyos, detention basin, and bridges 
are properly maintained regularly, and after every stonn event, and are fully functional. 
All stonnwater elements and features are described and attached in Exhibit A under 
"BMP Improvements". 

a. In the event the MRCA determines that the City is not properly maintaining, 
cleaning and operating the stormwater elements and features, MRCA may provide 
the City with a written 'notice of correction' to cure the issue(s). If the City does 
not cure the issue(s) within a reasonable amount of time, or time specified in the 
notice, MRCA may cure at its own expense and provide the City an invoice for 
reimbursement of maintenance cost. The City must fully reimburse MRCA for its 
costs within 60 days ofMRCA's mailing of the invoice. 

b. In the event the MRCA determines, at its sole discretion, that the City's failure to 
maintain the stonnwater elements and features presents an immediate hazard to 
public safety or property, MRCA may immediately cure without prior written or 
verbal notice to the City. In such emergency situations, MRCA shall send an 
invoice to the City for MRCA's expenses to cure. The City must fully pay 
MRCA's invoiced amount_ (half of MRCA's total emergency cure costs) within 
60 days ofMRCA's mailing of the invoice. 

P. No Park vehicular or pedestrian gate, including the Foothill gate, may be moved, 
expanded in height or expanded in width without MRCA's explicit written pem1ission. 

Q. Vehicle and heavy equipment use: 
a. The City may allow vehicles or equipment that weighs more than one thousand 

(1,000) pounds (lbs) on the placitas. 
b. Except as allowed by subsection Q(a) or Q( c), the City shall not allow any vehicle 

or equipment that weighs more than one thousand (1,000) pounds (lbs), including 
police patrol vehicles or equipment, on the property without prior explicit written 
permission from MRCA. 

c. In the case of an emergency or an immediate threat to public safety, the City, at its 
own risk and cost, sha ll be allowed to use vehicles or equipment that weighs more 
than one thousand (1,000) pounds (lbs), including police patrol vehicles or 
equipment, on any part of the property without prior explicit written permission 
from MRCA. The City understands that MRCA considers vehicles and equipment 
use in all areas of the Park, except the placitas, to be dangerous and likely to 
damage property and be a risk of bodily harm or death. 

R. The City shall not widen any paths or alter bridges w ithout prior explicit written 
permission from MRCA. 

Page 4 of 11 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 135 of 221



Pacoima Wash Natural Park Ground Lease Agreement 

Section 5. Utilities, Repairs, Public Safety and Maintenance. 

A. The City shall be responsible for payment and maintenance of any and all utilities or 
other services, such as public safety services, at the Park. The City shall also be 
responsible for the maintenance of any existing or, if pe1mitted by the MRCA, future 
City-constructed improvements on, or City-initiated alterations to, the Park. The City 
shall also be responsible for the payment of any taxes, assessments, or fees that may 
accrue from its leasehold interest or use of the Park. 

B. The City shall repair at its expense any and all minor or major damage that may result 
from an accident or vandalism within the Park within 60 days of discovery of the damage 
by the City or written notification of the damage by MRCA. 

C. The City shall repair at its expense any and all damage that may result from the City 
allowing any vehicle or equipment that weighs more than one thousand (1,000) pounds 
(lbs), including police patrol vehicles or equipment, within the Park within 60 days of 
discovery of the damage by the City or written notification of the damage by MRCA. The 
City is responsible for public safety and police patrol of the Park. MRCA Rangers are not 
responsible for law enforcement at the Park, but, at their sole discretion, may exercise 
their law enforcement authority at the Park. In the event MRCA Rangers need assistance 
or make an arrest, they shall notify the San Fernando Police Department as soon as it is 
safe to do so. 

D. MRCA has provided equipment for the City to use as part of this Agreement, including 
an irrigation pump and four controller keys; a wrench key for backflow; a key for 
overflow valve; a maintenance and manufacturer mate1ial infonnation booklet; six (6) 
'Masterlock' combo locks on vehicle and pedestrian gates; and the iITigation working 
schedule for zones. The City is responsible for maintaining and repairing the equipment. 

Section 6. Entry. 

The City shall permit MRCA and its officers, agents, employees, or designees to enter the Park 
at all reasonable times but upon no less than forty-eight (48) hours prior written notice to inspect 
the Park to determine whether the City is complying with the terms of this Agreement and to do 
other lawful acts that maybe necessary to protect MRCA's interest in the Park under this 
Agreement or to perform any act pursuant to MRCA's rights and obligations under this 
Agreement. 

Section 7. Surrender of Park. 

A. Upon termination of this Agreement for any reason other than the successful transfer of 
fee title of the Park to the City, a renev,1al or re-write of this Agreement, the City shall 
promptly surrender and deliver the Park to MRCA in a condition that is, in MRCA 's 
reasonable opinion, equal or better than at the beginning of this Agreement, and, at 
MRCA's discretion, shall cease all Uses at the Park and remove all improvements at the 
City's cost within 30 clays from the date of termination. 

B. Upon termination of this Agreement for any reason other than the successful transfer of 
fee titl e for the Park to the City, a renewal of this Agreement or a nevv lease between 

Page 5 of 11 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 136 of 221



Pacoima Wash Natural Park Ground Lease Agreement 

MRCA and the City of the Park, the City shall not holdover for any period of time upon 
termination of this Agreement, except by a written amendment to this Agreement which 
shall be signed by both Parties. 

C. The City shall pay MRCA all reasonable rent due for any authorized holdover period. 

Section 8. Indemnity. 

A. MRCA shall indemnify, defend and hold hannless the City, including its elected and 
appointed officials, officers, employees, agents, attorneys and designated volunteers from 
any and all liability, including but not limited to, demand, claims, actions, fees, costs and 
expenses (including reasonable attorney's and expert witness fees), arising from or 
connected with the respective acts of MRCA or its member public agencies arising from 
or related to this Agreement. However, that MRCA shall not indemnify the City for the 
City 's own negligence or willful misconduct. 

B. The City shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless MRCA, the State of California, the 
Santa Monica Mountains Conservancy, the Rancho Simi Recreation and Park 
District, the Conejo Recreation and Park District, including their elected and appointed 
officials, officers, employees, agents, contractors, attorneys and designated volunteers 
(collectively, "MRCA Indemnified Parties") from any and all liability, including but not 
limited to, demand, claims, actions, fees, costs and expenses (including reasonable 
attorney's and expert witness fees), arisi ng from or connected with the acts of the City 
arising from or related to thi s Agreement. However, the City shall not indemnify MRCA 
lndemnified Parties for their own negligence or willful misconduct. 

C. In accordance with Section 4(Q) (Vehicle and heavy equipment use) of this Agreement, 
the City shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the MRCA Indemnified Parties from 
any and all liability, including but not limited to, personal injury, property damage, 
demand, claims, actions, fees, costs and expenses (including reasonable attorney's and 
expert witness fees), arising from or connected with the City allowing any vehicle or 
equipment that weighs more than one thousand (1,000) pounds (lbs), including police 
patrol vehicles or equipment, on any portion of the property with the sole exception of the 
placitas regardless of pennission from MRCA to enter on to those portions of the 
property. 

D. In light of the provisions of Government Code Section 895.2 imposing certain tort 
liability jointly upon public entities solely by reason of such entities being parties to an 
agreement (as defined in Section 895 of said Government Code), each of the Parties 
hereto, pursuant to the authori zation contained in Government Code Sections 895.4 and 
895 .6 shall assume the fol l liability imposed upon it or any of its elected or appointed 
officials, officers, agents, employees or designated volunteers by law fo r injury caused by 
any act or omission occurring in the performance of th is Agreement to the same extent 
such liability would be imposed in the absence of Government Code Section 895.2. to 
achieve the above-stated purpose, each Party indemnifies, defends and holds harmless 
each other Party for any liability, cost or expense that may be imposed upon such other 
Party solely by virtue of said Government Code Section 895.2. The provisions of Section 
2778 of the Civil Code are made a part hereof as if incorporated herein. The provisions 

Page 6 of 11 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 137 of 221



Pacoima Wash Natural Park Ground Lease Agreement 

of this Section shall survive the expiration or termination of the Agreement. 
E. The provisions of this Section shall survive the termination of this Agreement. 

Section 9. Insurance. 

A. The City shall procure and maintain as cun-ent, or include the Park under an existing 
policy for comprehensive liability insurance from a responsible insurance company 
authorized to do business in Cal ifornia, with a combined single limit of not less than Two 
Million Dollars ($2,000,000) for injury or death to each person per occurrence, and, for 
damage to property, a limit of One Hundred Thousand Dollars ($ 100,000) per occurrence 
for any claims, demands, of causes of action of any person arising out of accidents 
occurring on the Park during the Lease Tenn, extension period, or holdover period, or 
arising out of the City's Uses in, upon, or about the Park. The City will provide proof of 
such insurance to MRCA as soon as is practicable after the Effective Date. The 
procurement and maintenance of insurance as specified is a material part of the 
consideration to MRCA for the right to lease the Park. 

B. Each policy of insurance shall be issued by a responsible insurance company authorized 
to do business in California. MRCA, the Santa Monica Mountains Conservancy, the 
Conejo Recreation and Park District, and the Rancho Simi Recreation and Park District 
shall be named as an additional insured. The City shall deliver a ce1tificate for each 
insurance policy to MRCA with all relevant endorsements. Each policy of insurance shall 
be primary and noncontributory with any policies carried by MRCA, and, to the extent 
obtainable, any loss shall be payable notwithstanding any act or negligence of MRCA 
that might otherwise result in forfeiture of insurance. Each insurance policy shall provide 
that a thirty (30) day notice of cancellation and of any material modification of coverage 
shall be given to all named and additional insureds. 

C. The City agrees that upon the failure to insure as provided in this Agreement, or to pay 
the premiunis, and after ten (10) days prior notice to the City, all sums expended by 
MRCA for the cost of replacement insurance shall be considered an additional lease 
payment obligation under this Agreement and shall be immediately repayable by the City 
to MRCA upon demand. 

Section I 0. Environmental Matters. 

The City shall comply with all Applicable Environmental Laws (as hereinafter defined) with 
respect to the Park and will not use, store, generate, treat, transport or release any Hazardous 
Substance (as hereinafter defined) thereon. As used herein, "Applicable Environmental Laws" 
shall mean and shall include the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and 
Liabi lity Act, 42 USC Sections 9601 et seq.; the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, 42 
USC Sections 6901 et seq. ; the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, 33 USC Sections 1251 et 
seq.; the Clean Air Act, 42 USC Sections 7401 et seq. ; the Californ ia Hazardous Waste Control 
Law, Cali fornia Health & Safety Code Sections 25100 et seq.; the Hazardous Substance Account 
Act, California Health & Safety Code Sections 25300 et seq.; the Porter-Cologne Water Quality 
Control Act, California Water Code Sections 1300 et seq.; the Air Resources Act, Californ ia 
Health & Safety Code Sections 3900 el seq.; the Safe Drinking Water &Toxic Enforcemen t Act, 
Cali forni a Health &Safety Code Sections 25249.5 et seq.; and the regulations under each thereof; 

Page 7 of 11 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 138 of 221



Pacoima Wash Natural Park Ground Lease Agreement 

and any other local, state, and/or federal laws or regulations, whether currently in existence or 
hereafter enacted, that govern: 

(1) the existence, cleanup, and/or remedy of contamination on property; 
(2) the protection of the enviromnent from spilled, deposited, or otherwise contaminated; 
(3) the control of hazardous wastes; or 
( 4) the use, generation, transpo1t, treatment, removal, or recovery of Hazardous Substances, 

including building materials. 

As used herein, "Hazardous Substance" shall mean any substance that shall, at any time, be listed 
as "hazardous" or "toxic" in any Applicable Enviromnental Law or that has been or shall be 
determined at any time by any agency or comt to be a hazardous or toxic substance regulated 
under Applicable Environmental Laws; and also means, without limitation, raw materials, 
building components, the products of any manufacturing, or other activities on the Park, wastes, 
petroleum, and source, special nuclear, or by-product material as defined by the Atomic Energy 
Act of 1954, as am ended ( 42 USC Sections 301 1 et seq.). 

Section 11. Assignment and Subletting. 

A. The City shall have the right to assign its rights under this Agreement or to sublease all or 
a portion of the Park responsibilities to another entity for the purposes stated herein, and 
as otherwise necessary to maintain a caretaker upon the Park, but such sublease shall in 
no way limit the authority of MRCA to terminate the Lease pursuant to Section 13 herein. 

B. Except as stated in Paragraph A of this section, the City shall neither assign, sublease nor 
otherwise encumber its leasehold interest, nor any part thereof, to or for the benefit of any 
other party without the prior written consent of MRCA, which consent may be given or 
withheld in the sole and absolute discretion of MRCA. 

Section 12. Lease Default 

Any of the following events or occurrences shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement 
by MRCA or the City and, after the expiration of any applicable cure period, shall constitute an 
event of default (each an "Event of Default"): 

A. The failure by the City to pay any amount in full when it is due under the Agreement. 
B. The failure by the City to perform any obligation under the Agreement, which by its 

nature the City has no capacity to cure. 
C. The fai lure by the City to perform any other obligation or covenant under the Agreement. 
D. The abandonment of the Park by the City for thirty (30) days or longer. 
E . Failure by the City to procure and keep current a ll insurance policies as specified in 

Section 9 of this Agreement. 
F . Failure to obtain and keep current all approved and required pern1its and licenses as 

specified in Section 4 of this Agreement. 
G . T he fa ilure by MRCA to perform any of its ob ligations under the Agreement. 
H. Failure by the City to assume the costs of operating and maintaining Park. 

Upon occurrence of an Event of Default, the non-defaulting party may make written demand to 
cure any default; the other party shall have a period of thirty (30) days from such written demand 

Page 8 of 11 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 139 of 221



Pacoima Wash Natural Park Ground Lease Agreement 

to cure such default. The defaulting Patiy shall promptly and in good faith commence curing the 
default within the thi1iy (30) day period. In the event defaulting Party is unable to cure the 
default within thi1iy (30) days from the written demand, and has in good faith attempted to 
diligently and promptly cure the default within that time, defaulting Party may make a written 
request for an extension of time to cure the default. The non-defaulting Party will have the sole 
right to consent to such an extension and such consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. The 
defaulting Pmiy shall indemnify and defend non-defaulting Pa1iy against any liability, claim, 
damage, loss, or penalty that may be tlu·eatened or may in fact arise from the default and failure 
to cure such default. 

Section 13. Remedies. 

Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, and after the expiration of any applicable grace 
period, the City shall be entitled to exercise any rights or remedies available to it in law or equity 
and MRCA, in addition to any other ri ghts or remedies available to it at law or in equity, shall 
have the right to terminate the Agreement and all rights of the City under the Agreement by 
giving the City written notice that the Agreement is tenninated. 

Section 14. Waiver of Breach. 

Any express or implied waiver of a breach of any term of this Agreement shall not constitute a 
waiver of any further breach of the same or other tenn of this Agreement; and the acceptance of 
lease payments shall not constitute a waiver of any breach of any term of this Agreement, except 
as to the payment of lease payments accepted. 

Section 15. Attorney Fees. 

If any action at law or in equity is brought to recover any rent or other sums under this 
Agreement, or for or on account of any breach of or to enforce or interpret any of the covenants, 
terms, or conditions of this Agreement, or for the recovery of the possession of the Park, the 
prevailing party shall be entitled to recover from the other Patiy as part of prevailing Party's 
costs reasonable attorney fees, the amount of which shall be fixed be the court and shall be made 
a part of any judgment rendered. 

Section 16. Authority. 

All individuals executing this Agreement on behalf of that entity represent that they are 
authorized to execute and deliver this Agreement on behalf of that entity. 

Section 17. Notices. 

Except as otherwise expressly provided by law, all notice or other communications required or 
permitted by this Agreement or by law to be served on or given to either Pmiy to this Agreement 
by the other Party shall be in writing and shall be deemed served when personally delivered to 
the Party to whom they are directed, or in lieu of the personal service, upon deposit in the United 
States Mail , certified or registered mail , return receipt requested, postage prepaid, addressed 

Page 9 of 11 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 140 of 221



Pacoima Wash Natural Park Ground Lease Agreement 

To MRCA: 

Cara Meyer 
Deputy Executive Officer 
570 West A venue 26, Suite 100 
Los Angeles, CA 90065 

With a copy to: 
Jeffrey K. Maloney 
Chief Staff Counsel 
570 West Avenue 26, Suite 100 
Los Angeles, CA 90065 

To City of San Fernando 
Alexander P. Meyerhoff 
City Manager 
117 Macneil St. 
San Fernando, CA 91340 

Either Party may change the address fo r the purpose of this Section by giving written notice of 
the change to the other Party in the manner provided in this Section. 

Section 18. Partial Invalidity. 

Should any provision of this Agreement be held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be either 
invalid or unenforceable, the remaining provisions of this Agreement shall remain in effect, 
unimpaired by the holding. 

Section 19. Entire Agreement 

This instrument constitutes the sole agreement between the City and MRCA respecting the Park, 
the leasing of the Park to the City and the specified Lease Term, and this Agreement correctly 
sets forth the obligations of the City and MRCA. 

Section 20. Amendments. 

This Agreement may be modified only in writing and only if signed by the Parties at the time of 
the modification. 

Section 21. Governing Law. 

This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with California laws. 

Page 10 of J 1 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 141 of 221



Pacoima Wash Natural Park Ground Lease Agreement 

Section 22. Nondiscrimination. 

The City agrees that it will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment 
because of race, color, religion, ancestry, national 01igin, sex, age or physical handicap. 

Section 23. Successors in Interest and Assigns. 

The terms of this Agreement and covenants contained herein shall apply to and bind and inure to 
the benefit of the successors in interest and assigns of the paiiies hereto. 

Now therefore, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the date first above written. 

Dated: 2_, - C?'/ · ( 1 

Dated: ??/ 15 (Mt~ 

CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 

MOUNTAINS RECREATION AND 
CONSERVATION AUTHOIRTY 

By: ~ ~ -
Cara Meyer, DeputyEecutive Director 

Page 11 of 11 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 142 of 221



~ 
-~ ~===============~S~an~d~~Me~di~a~F~lll~e~r====::::::::::::;B:1-o~-S:w:a:le~;;B~as~,~n:::::::::::==============:-_=-._=-._=-..=-..=--=--=--=-=-=-----:_:_:_:_:_:_:_:_:-=:::----, ,-.,r.--r-...-~~ 

>< I Biorelontlon Basin Volume: 1,840 yd' 

~ 6400ft' Upland Area 
Park Enlrance Plaza 

wllh intugralad 
sediment trap 

I 
I 
L_ ___ ------- -·-

8th Stroot BMP Placita 

Basin Splllwoy 
cobble in grout 

Trail Croulng 
Grade Control 

uppor/lowor basin 
bounda,y 

Access Road 
reduced to 12 ft 

plus 5 ft sac.aroa 

Arroyo 

Placement of FIii 

BMP SITE IMPROVEMENTS © ~ r 
-·-- ~-¥- -----

Bromont BMP Placita Upper Promenade 

.. $ ~ r 
LANDSCAPE SITE IMPROVEMENTS 

~ 
vi 

~1.:1 .. 1 .. q .;1,q ..;1..:1.; 

0 
z 
<~ 

~~ ..._ I n-

~~ht 1~1 
~~ -ill C: ill 
v,>- J!( QI ew 

~~ii; ~ i~~ 
z V) j I. QI ~~~ ::, z • ~ ::i ~ 
oo ~i!IS ;:;;: a.i!~ ~u !X.,,.,. _ __ o~ 

(/) 
f-z 
w 

w2Z r-W:'.5 
c7i 6 Q. 

0::: 
€ Q. 

i 2 

f--
w 
w 
O::'.: ~ 
f-- O::'.: 
(/) <( 

-g Q_ 

~ 
~ I 
5 f--

i ~ co 

i_--.._ 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 143 of 221



EXHIBIT "B" 

Contract No. 1596 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING AND COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT (MOU) 
BETWEEN THE MOUNTAINS RECREATION AND CONSERVATION AUTHORITY 

(MRCA) AND THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 

This MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING and COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT 
(hereinafter "MOU") is entered into by and between MOUNT AfNS RECREATION AND 
CONSERVATION AUTHORITY, a public entity of the State of California exercising joint 
powers of the Santa Monica Mountains Conservancy, the Conejo Recreation and Park District, 
and the Rancho Simi Recreation and Park District pursuant to Section 6500 et seq. of the 
Government Code (the "MRCA"), and the CITY OF SAN FERNANDO, a municipal 
corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of California (the "City"). This 
MOU is entered into between the MRCA and the City for the purpose of designing, developing, 
constructing, and maintaining a 2.9-acre park located on three separate parcels of property within 
the City of San Fernando identified by Assessor Parcel Numbers 2513-033-903, 2513-033-904, 
and 2513-033-905 (the "Eighth Street Property"). 

RECITALS 

A. In 2003, the City of San Fernando and the City of Los Angeles commissioned a planning 
study (the "study") by the Landscape Architecture Program of California State Polytechnic 
University, Pomona (Cal Poly Pomona) to design aspects of an envisioned greenway along 
the Pacoima Wash. This study included a series of community outreach surveys and 
workshops as part of an ongoing stakeholder process to gain input and support for converting 
the Pacoima Wash into a multi-purpose amenity. This process received overwhelming public 
interest and support and resulted in the adoption of the study as a City of San Fernando 
Master Plan for improvements along the Pacoima Wash. 

B. On April 20, 2005, the MRCA presented the Pacoima Wash Greenway Plan and plans for a 
park on the Eighth Street Property. 

C. On April 22, 2005, representatives from the MRCA met with the City's ad hoc Pacoima 
Wash Committee and City staff to request that the City support and take the lead in 
submitting an application for grant funding for the Pacoima Wash Greenway Eighth Street 
Park. 

D. On July 14, 2005 the City submitted a grant application for the Proposition 50 Chapter 8 
Grant Program. No projects within Southern California were funded during this grant cycle. 

E. During the 2006 Proposition 50 Chapter 8 grant cycle, a grant was awarded to the MRCA for 
the construction of a 2.9-acre river park at the Eighth Street Property (the "Park"). 

F. City staff has worked closely with the MRCA in finalizing the design of the Park. 

G. The MRCA and the Ci ty desire to work together to develop, construct and maintain the Park. 

H. This Agreement sets forth the duties and responsibilities of the MRCA and the City relative 
to their role in the design, development, construction and maintenance of the Park. 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 144 of 221



This Agreement is entered into and subject to the following terms and conditions and the above 
referenced recitals, which are incorporated by reference below. 

Section l . DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE PARTIES 

1.1 THE MRCA'S DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: The MRCA shall have full 
responsibility for the design, development and construction of the 2.9-acre park on the Eighth 
Street Property. The MRCA shall have full responsibility to provide all maintenance of the Park 
("Maintenance Responsibility"), which includes, but may not be limited to, the maintenance of 
the landscaping, and maintenance of park elements, including benches and receptacles for trash 
disposal, for a tlu·ee-year period commencing from the opening date of the Park, or until such 
time as another organization agrees to maintain the Park in perpetuity. MRCA shall assist the 
City in seeking an organization to maintain the Park in perpetuity, and agrees to continue its 
Maintenance Responsibility until such organization takes over the Maintenance Responsibility in 
perpetuity as evidenced by an execution of an agreement between the City and the organization. 

1.2 THE CITY'S DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: The City shall provide its full 
cooperation to the MRCA during MRCA's development and construction of the Park. This 
cooperation shall include waiving fees associated with the construction and development of the 
Park. The City agrees to install irrigation and/or potable water service(s) to the Park, and the City 
agrees that no cost for such installation shall be incurred by the MRCA. During the three-year 
period of MRCA's Maintenance Responsibility, the City will provide maintenance in the form of 
street sweeping service to the two (2) circular plazas in the Park identified as placitas. The City 
shall also provide maintenance of the sediment traps located in the Park, up to the piping point 
during this three-year period of MRCA's Maintenance Responsibility. 

1.3 Both parties shall cooperate to find an outside organization to maintain the Park 
as built in perpetuity. The outside organization may be, but is not limited to, a County or State 
Agency. The City shall take the lead ro le in this process, with the MRCA assisting. ff such an 
agreement is not in place by the encl of MRCA's three-year Maintenance Responsib ility period, 
the Maintenance Responsibility will transfer to the City. 

1.4 The date the MRCA files a "Notice of Completion" for the primary construction 
contract shall be considered the opening date of the Park to the public. This date shall be used to 
determine the beginning date of the three-year period of MRCA's Maintenance Responsibility of 
the park as discussed in Section 1.1 of this MOU. 

SECTION 2. FUNDING 

2.1 The MRCA shall have the financial responsibility for the design, development 
and construction of the Park. The MRCA shall also have the financial responsibility for the 
selection, design, development and construction of the park elements, which include such items 
as, but may not be limited to, the benches and receptacles for trash disposal. 

2.2 The MRCA shall have financial responsibility for the maintenance of the Park 
during its three-year Maintenance Responsibi lity period as discussed in Section I, 1.0 of this 
MOU. MRCA's financial responsibility wi ll cease after the three-year Maintenance 
Responsibility period, or at an earlier time upon the execution of an agreement between the City 
and an organization that agrees to take over the Maintenance Responsibility of the Park in 
perpetuity. 

2.3 The development and construction of the Park, including any park elements, their 
type and quantity, will be limited to MRCA's secured funding. 

2 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 145 of 221



2.4 The MRCA reserves the right to alter the Park design for any reason, including 
escalation of costs. Any alterations shall be presented and approved by the City prior to the 
development and construction of the alterations. The City's right of approval of any alterations 
shall not be unreasonably withheld. 

SECTION 3. TERM 

3.1 This Agreement shall commence on the last date signed by either the City or the 
MRCA, and terminates three years after the opening date of the Park to the public, unless 
otherwise terminated or extended by mutual written agreement by the City or the MRCA. 

3.2 Prior to commencement of construction of the Park, the City or the MRCA may 
terminate this Agreement at any time upon written notice to the other party. If construction of 
the Park has commenced, this Agreement shall not be terminated until the development and 
construction of the Park has been completed, unless both parties agree in writing to such earlier 
termination. 

3.3 Failure of either party to perform any provision of this Agreement shall constitute 
a default of this Agreement; provided, however, that if a party in default commences to correct or 
remedy the default within thirty (30) calendar days after receipt of written notice specifying the 
default, and continues to correct or remedy this default, the defaulting party shall not be deemed 
to be in default under this provision. 

3.4 Any default under this section shall be indicated in a written notice to the party in 
default from the non-defaulting party. Delay in providing this notice shall not constitute a 
waiver of any default nor shall it change the elate of default. 

SECTION 4. GENERAL PROVISIONS 

4.1 No provision of this Agreement is intended to give rise to any right by any third 
party or entity not a party to this Agreement. 

4.2 In the event of any litigation arising from or related to this Agreement, or the 
rights or obligations of the MRCA or the City under this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be 
entitled to recover from the non-prevailing party all reasonable costs incurred including court 
costs and attorneys fees. In the event of a non-adjudicative settlement of litigation between the 
parties or a resolution of a dispute by arbitration, that process shall determine the "prevai ling 
party" and that prevailing party shall be entitled to recover from the non-prevailing party all 
reasonable costs incurred including court costs, attorneys fees, and any arbitration fees. 

4.3 The MRCA and the City agree to execute such additional documents as are 
necessary to carry out the provisions of this Agreement. 

4.4 No waiver of any provision of this Agreement shall be deemed to constitute a 
waiver of any other provision. 

4.5 This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed 
an original. 

4.6 The laws of the State of California shall govern this Agreement. 

4.7 Each provision of this Agreement is severable from any and all other provisions 
of this Agreement. Should any provision be deemed unenforceable, the balance of the 
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. 

3 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 146 of 221



4.8 This Agreement contains the full and complete agreement between the MRCA 
and the City. 

SECTION 5. HOLD HARMLESS: INDEMNITY 

5.1 To the fullest extent provided by law, the MRCA undertakes and agrees to hold 
harmless, indemnify, and defend the City, and all officers, employees, and agents of the City, 
through legal counsel reasonably acceptable to the City, from and against any and all claims, 
suits, loss, demands, expense, damages or liability whatsoever for injuries to or death of persons 
or damage to property occurring due to the actions of the MRCA's employees or agents. 
Without affecting the rights of the City under any provision of this MOU, the MRCA shall not be 
required to indemnify and hold harmless the City for liability attributable to the active negligence 
of the City, provided such active negligence is determined by agreement between the parties or 
by the findings of a court of competent jurisdiction. In instances where the City is shown to have 
been actively negligent and where the City's active negligence accounts for only a percentage of 
the liability involved, the obligation of the MRCA will be for that entire portion or percentage of 
liability not attributable to the active negligence of the City. 

5.2 To the fullest extent provided by law, the City undertakes and agrees to hold 
harmless, indemnify, and defend the MRCA and all officers, employees, and agents of the 
MRCA, through legal counsel reasonably acceptable to the MRCA, from and against any and all 
claims, suits, loss, demands, expense, damages or liability whatsoever for injuries to or death of 
persons or damage to property occurring due to the actions of the City's employees or agents. 
Without affecting the rights of the MRCA under any provision of this MOU, the City shall not be 
required to indemnify and hold harmless the MRCA for liability attributable to the active 
negligence of the MRCA, provided such active negligence is determined by agreement between 
the parties or by the findings of a court of competent jurisdiction. In instances where the MRCA 
is shown to have been actively negligent and where the MRCA's active negligence accounts for 
only a percentage of the liability involved, the obligation of the City will be for that entire 
portion or percentage of liability not attributable to the active negligence of the MRCA. 

SECTION 6. COMMUN I CA TIO NS REGARDING THIRD PARTIES 

6.1 The MRCA and the City will jointly review all press releases, signs and other 
public relations materials relating to the Park, to ensure these materials adequately and accurately 
identify both the MRCA and the City with respect to their role in connection with the 
development of this Park. 

SECTION 7. NOTICES 

7 .1 All notices required to be given pursuant to the terms of this Agreement shall 
either be personally hand delivered or delivered by certified mail, return receipt to: 

Mountains Recreation and Conservation Authority at: 
Mountains Recreation and Conservation Authority 
Los Angeles River Center & Gardens 
570 West Avenue 26, Suite 100 
Los Angeles, CA 90065 
Attention: Cara Mclane, Contracts Officer 

4 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 147 of 221



City of San Fernando at: 
City of San Fernando 
117 Macneil Street 
San Fernando, CA 91340 
Attention: Ron Ruiz 

or to any such other address as the parties may in writing, from time to time, direct. All 
mailed notices shall be deemed received three days after being deposited in the U.S. Mail. 

FOR THE MOUNTAINS RECREATION AND CONSERVATION AUTHORITY: 

By: ------------
Cara Mclane 
Contracts Officer 

FOR THE CITY OF SA~FERNANDO: 

Date: - - - - ---

5 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 148 of 221



September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 149 of 221



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 150 of 221



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

ADMINISTRATION DEPARTMENT       117 MACNEIL STREET, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340       (818) 898-1202       WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

REVIEW:      ☒ Finance Director      ☒ Deputy City Manager      ☒ City Manager 
 

To: Mayor Celeste T. Rodriguez and Councilmembers 
  
From:  Nick Kimball, City Manager 
 By: Carlos Hernandez, Assistant to the City Manager 
    
Date:  September 5, 2023 
 
Subject: Update on the Application of the City’s Community Engagement Framework  

RECOMMENDATION: 
  
It is recommended that the City Council:  
 
a. Receive an informational update on the Community Engagement Framework; and 

 
b. Provide direction to staff as appropriate. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 

 
1. On May 15, 2023, the City Council adopted the Community Engagement Framework 

(Resolution No. 8230), and amended the framework to ensure that projects that require 
direct engagement with the public must include a plan for public engagement in the scope of 
work, including Spanish interpretation and translation. City Council directed staff to provide 
an update on the application of the Community Engagement Framework for all department 
projects, programs, and policies within 60 days.  
 

2. On June 20, 2023, the City Council adopted the FY 2023-2024 City Budget including a  
one-time enhancement request for Language Translation Services in the amount of $64,000; 
with the goal of piloting Spanish language interpretation and translation of agendas at City 
Council and Commission meetings for up to six months, concluding with an evaluation of the 
effectiveness of such services.    

 
3. On July 17, 2023, staff prepared City Council Agenda Item No. 10 - Update on the Application 

to the City’s Community Engagement Framework.  Due to the substance and length of other 
discussion items considered during that meeting, City Council tabled discussion of Item No. 
10 to a future City Council meeting.  

 
 

ANill 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 151 of 221



Update on the Application of the City’s Community Engagement Framework  
Page 2 of 4 
 
 
ANALYSIS: 
 
Community engagement empowers residents, strengthens democracy, improves decision-
making, and builds more inclusive and resilient cities. It fosters a collaborative relationship 
between city governments and the community, leading to better outcomes and a higher quality 
of life for all residents.  Effective community engagement can enhance outcomes by: 
 
• Tapping into local knowledge and expertise; 
• Building trust and accountability between citizens and government; 
• Enabling the City to identify and understand community needs and priorities more accurately; 
• Fostering innovation and creativity; 
• Strengthening social cohesion and sense of community; and 
• Increasing likelihood of successful policy implementation. 
 
The City incorporates community engagement into all major projects, policies, and programs to 
ensure that the community’s input plays an important role in making local government both 
effective and responsive to San Fernando residents and businesses.  
 
In April 2023, the City Council updated the 2022-2026 Strategic Goals (originally adopted on April 
19, 2021). The first strategic goal, “Focus on Community First,” emphasizes how vital community 
engagement is to the prosperity of San Fernando.  Resident input on major City decisions 
supports the City Council and City staff in ensuring that community needs are prioritized in both 
the creation and implementation of its projects, policies, and programs.  Consequently, City 
Council directed staff to establish a framework for applying community engagement strategies 
in San Fernando. 
 
The purpose of the Community Engagement Framework (CEF) is to establish a common 
understanding of, and commitment to, community engagement across all departments and to 
the constituents the City serves. It sets clear and specific standards for community engagement 
that all City Departments and hired consultants can follow and contextually apply. Additionally, 
the framework was developed with a Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion lens; reinforcing that 
equitable community engagement can help lead to more inclusive and accessible governance. 
Through this framework, the City can work towards ensuring that every resident’s voice is heard 
and valued, especially those that have been historically disenfranchised. 
 
As part of the 60-day informational update, City staff has included a summary of how the CEF is 
being applied in each department for public-facing projects and programs. The Fiscal Year (FY) 
2023-2024 Engagement Summary (Attachment “A”) is organized by engagement approach as 
outlined in the CEF. Some projects may involve more than one engagement approach and 
applicability should be considered on a case-by-case basis.  
 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 152 of 221



Update on the Application of the City’s Community Engagement Framework  
Page 3 of 4 
 
 
The CEF includes the following engagement approaches: 
 
Inform. 
Provide the public information on a project, program, or policy. This engagement approach is 
typically one-way communication and does not require community feedback, rather, it is 
intended to ensure that customers are aware of the project/program and its related impacts.  
 
Projects include: 

• Coyote Co-Existence Plan 
• “Keep San Fernando Clean and Beautiful” post cards 
• National Night Out 
• Homelessness Town Hall 

 
Consult. 
Receive feedback from the public to help inform the City’s decisions. This engagement approach 
relies on feedback for questions or options that are framed by the City. For example, a project 
may be clearly defined, but the elements within it benefit from additional input.   
 
Projects include: 

• Chat with the Chief 
• Open Streets Event (Move Your Way) 
• MySF / 311 Resident Request System 
• Annual Transaction Tax Town Halls 

 
Collaborate. 
Work directly with the public in order to identify issues, create solutions, and develop future 
strategies. These types of projects have general elements conceptualized but require 
stakeholders to shape many of the elements to ensure the end product is community-driven.  
 
Projects include: 

• Downtown Master Plan 
• Pacoima Wash Phase 2 
• Park Master Plan Update 
• Climate Action and Resilience Plan 

 
Shared Leadership. 
Delegate decision-making authority to the public or give them a formal role in making final 
recommendations. There are no identified projects within FY 2023-2024 that use the Shared 
Leadership approach. One past example includes a local ballot initiative for the Prohibition of 
Sale and Manufacturing of Cannabis. Staff will continue to assess its applicability to projects and 
programs moving forward. 
 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 153 of 221



Update on the Application of the City’s Community Engagement Framework  
Page 4 of 4 
 
 
Tracking and measuring the impact of the CEF on projects and programs is an important 
component to include for any project.  Metrics for success in community engagement can vary 
depending on the goals and objectives of a project or program. Some commonly used metrics 
that can help evaluate the effectiveness of community engagement efforts include tracking 
participation levels, representation and assessment to which different demographic groups are 
engaged and have a voice in the decision-making process, customer or stakeholder satisfaction 
and feedback, the extent to which community input and recommendations have influenced 
decision-making, and measuring the number of returning participants, sustained community 
involvement, and ongoing relationships fostered with community members. 
 
By regularly tracking and analyzing these metrics, the City can assess progress, make 
improvements, and demonstrate the impact of community engagement efforts. 
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
 
There is no direct budget impact associated with this informational update to the adopted 
Community Engagement Framework. Developing a Community Engagement Framework was 
included in the FY 2022-2023 City Manager’s Office Work Plan, with funding specific to language 
translation services incorporated in the FY 2023-2024 Adopted Budget.  Additional Community 
Engagement will be funded on a case-by-case basis and built into each project budget. 
 
 
CONCLUSION: 
 
It is recommended that the City Council receive an informational update on the Community 
Engagement Framework and provide direction to staff as appropriate.  
 
 
ATTACHMENT: 
 
A. FY 2023-2024 Engagement Summary 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 154 of 221



Department FY 23-24 Projects Engagement Approach Engagement Methods Timeframe Metrics for Success

Administration Annual Report and CM Monthly 

Report

Inform - give the public information on a project, 

program, policy. 

Newsletters October 2023 - 

December 2023

• Number of comments received

• Increase in overall engagement with City

Administration City Notifications (infoSF, alertSF) Inform - give the public information on a project, 

program, policy. 

Notifications Ongoing • Number of notifications sent

Administration Social Media Posts Inform - give the public information on a project, 

program, policy. 

Social Media Ongoing • Number of social media posts

City Clerk Spanish Language Translation 

Services during entire City Council & 

Commission Meetings

Inform - give the public information on a project, 

program, policy. 

Website, Newsletters July 2023 - December 

2023

• Number of notifications sent

• Tracking of interpretation use per meeting

• Customer satisfaction

Community 

Development

Homelessness Town Hall Inform - give the public information on a project, 

program, policy. 

Community Meetings, Mailers, Social 

Media, Radio Promotion

September 20, 2023

(annual event)

•Number of participants per meeting

• Long-term impact and connection with 

participant 

• Customer satisfaction 

Police National Night Out Inform - give the public information on a project, 

program, policy. 

Community Event October 2023  •Number of participants per meeting

Police Community Academy Inform - give the public information on a project, 

program, policy. 

Community Meetings 11 Sessions Beginning 

Fall 2023

•Number of participants per meeting

• Customer satisfaction

Police Parent Academy Inform - give the public information on a project, 

program, policy. 

Community Meetings 6 Session Beginning 

September 19

•Number of participants per meeting

• Long-term impact and connection with 

participant 

Public Works Infiltration Project Inform - give the public information on a project, 

program, policy. 

Community Education, Website October 2023  • Customer satisfaction

Public Works Well 3 Infiltration Project Inform - give the public information on a project, 

program, policy. 

Notifications October 2023 • Number of notifications sent

• Customer satisfaction

Administration Citywide Survey Consult - receive feedback from the public to help 

inform the City’s decisions.

Survey December 2023 - 

January 2024

• Number of surveys completed

• Actions completed from survey

• Customer Satisfaction

Administration mySF / 311 Resident Request 

System

Consult - receive feedback from the public to help 

inform the City’s decisions.

Website, Newsletters September 2023 - 

December 2023

• Number of requests

• Number of requests that shift to the mySF 

system

• Customer satisfaction

Finance Transaction Tax Meeting Consult - receive feedback from the public to help 

inform the City’s decisions.

Community Meeting Fall 2023 •Number of participants per meeting

Police Chat with the Chief Consult - receive feedback from the public to help 

inform the City’s decisions.

Community Meeting Ongoing •Number of participants per meeting

• Long-term impact and connection with 

participant 

Public Works Carlisle Green Alley Consult - receive feedback from the public to help 

inform the City’s decisions.

Walk Shop, Community Meetings, 

Resident Education

December 2023 - April 

2024

•Number of participants per meeting

• Long-term impact and connection with 

participant

• Customer satisfaction 

Public Works Urban Forestry Management Plan Consult - receive feedback from the public to help 

inform the City’s decisions.

Community Meetings, Survey, 

Resident Education

March 2023 - August 

2024

•Number of participants per meeting

• Customer satisfaction 

Recreation and 

Community Services

Pioneer Park Playground 

Revitalization Project

Consult - receive feedback from the public to help 

inform the City’s decisions.

Community Meetings, Resident 

Notification, Social Media, Website, 

Newsletters

August 2023 - 

November 2023

•Number of participants per meeting

• Customer satisfaction 

FY 2023-24 Engagement Summary for Projects and Programs 

ATTACHMENT "A"
September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 155 of 221



Recreation and 

Community Services

Open Street Event (Move Your Way) Consult - receive feedback from the public to help 

inform the City’s decisions.

Community Meetings, Resident 

Notification, Business Notification, 

Social Media, Website, Newsletters

June 2023 - 

September 2023

•Number of participants

• Long-term impact and connection with 

participant

• Customer satisfaction 

Recreation and 

Community Services

Layne Park Revitalization Consult - receive feedback from the public to help 

inform the City’s decisions.

Community Meetings, Rsident 

Notifications, Survey, Social Media, 

Website, Newsletter (project 

completed)

April 2021 - June 2, 

2021

•Number of participants per meeting 

• Customer satisfaction 

Community 

Development

Downtown Master Plan Collaborate - work directly with the public in 

order to identify issues, create solutions, and 

develop future strategies.

Door Knocking, Survey, Walk Shop, 

Community Meetings, Pop-ups

July 2023 - June 2024 •Number of participants per meeting 

• Community impact on project 

• Long-term impact and connection with 

participant

• Customer satisfaction 

Community 

Development

Climate Action and Resilience Plan 

(phase 2) 

Collaborate - work directly with the public in 

order to identify issues, create solutions, and 

develop future strategies.

Survey, Walk Shop, Community 

Meetings, Pop-ups, Resident 

Education

October 2023 - 

December 2023

•Number of participants per meeting 

• Community impact on project 

• Long-term impact and connection with 

participant

• Customer satisfaction 

Police Neighborhood Watch Collaborate - work directly with the public in 

order to identify issues, create solutions, and 

develop future strategies.

Community Meetings Ongoing •Number of participants per meeting

• Long-term impact and connection with 

participant 

Police Business Watch Collaborate - work directly with the public in 

order to identify issues, create solutions, and 

develop future strategies.

Community Meetings Ongoing •Number of participants per meeting

• Long-term impact and connection with 

participant 

Public Works Pacoima Wash (phase 2) Collaborate - work directly with the public in 

order to identify issues, create solutions, and 

develop future strategies.

Design Charrette, Community 

Meetings, Resident Education, 

Website, 

December 2023 - 

August 2024

•Number of participants per meeting 

• Community impact on project 

• Long-term impact and connection with 

participant

• Customer satisfaction 

Recreation and 

Community Services

Las Palmas Park Redesign Collaborate - work directly with the public in 

order to identify issues, create solutions, and 

develop future strategies.

Door Knocking, Survey, Community 

Meetings, Pop-ups

October 2022 - August 

2023

•Number of participants per meeting 

• Long-term impact and connection with 

participant

• Customer satisfaction 

Recreation and 

Community Services

Park Master Plan Update Collaborate - work directly with the public in 

order to identify issues, create solutions, and 

develop future strategies.

Community Meetings, Resident 

Notification, Business Notification, 

Social Media, Website, Newsletters

September 2023 - 

February 2024

•Number of participants per meeting 

• Long-term impact and connection with 

participant

• Customer satisfaction 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 156 of 221



September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 157 of 221



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 158 of 221



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

RECREATION AND COMMUNITY SERVICES DEPARTMENT       208 PARK AVENUE, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340       (818) 898-1290       WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

REVIEW:      ☒ Finance Director      ☒ Deputy City Manager      ☒ City Manager 
 

To: Mayor Celeste T. Rodriguez and Councilmembers 
  
From:  Nick Kimball, City Manager 
 By: Julian J. Venegas, Director of Recreation and Community Services  
   
Date:  September 5, 2023 
 
Subject: Consideration to Approve a Conceptual Design for the Las Palmas Park 

Revitalization Project 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the City Council: 
 
a. Approve the conceptual design of the Las Palmas Park Revitalization Project (Attachment “A”) 

and authorize RJM Design Group, Inc. (RJM) to start developing bid documents for the 
construction of the  project;  
 

b. Authorize staff to prepare and release a Notice Inviting Bids (NIB) and Request for Proposals 
(RFP) for the construction of the Las Palmas Revitalization Project; and 

 
c. Provide staff with direction, as appropriate.  
 
 
BACKGROUND: 

1. On February 5, 2018, the City Council adopted the Parks and Recreation Master Plan (PMP) 
as a strategic tool to cultivate a comprehensive vision for enhancing park facilities and 
recreational programming offered to the residents of San Fernando.  The PMP identified 
multiple park sites that needed improvements in order to maintain the continuity of 
recreational services. 
 

2. On June 5, 2018, the voters of California approved Proposition 68, “Parks, Environment, and 
Water Bond Act.”  The measure authorized $4 billion in general obligation bonds dedicated 
to funding state and local parks, environmental protection and restoration, water 
infrastructure, and flood protection projects.  Administered by the California Department of 
Parks and Recreation, Proposition 68 aims to enhance recreational spaces, safeguard the 
environment, ensure water reliability, and strengthen communities against flooding.  
 

ANill 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 159 of 221



Consideration to Approve a Conceptual Design for the Development of the Las Palmas Park 
Revitalization Project 
Page 2 of 6 
 
 
3. On July 10, 2020, the California Department of Parks and Recreation released the Statewide 

Park Development and Community Revitalization Grant Program (SPP) Round 4, for 
revitalizing park projects throughout the state.  SPP allocated $395.3 million in competitive 
grant funding to create, expand or renovate parks in low-income and disadvantaged 
communities. 

 
4. On February 16, 2021, the City Council authorized staff to submit an SPP grant application for 

renovation of Recreation Park, Las Palmas Park, and Pioneer Park. This grant application  
aligned with the priorities identified in the PMP, seeking to enhance recreational 
opportunities for the community. 

 
5. Throughout the application process, Recreation and Community Services (RCS) staff engaged 

in discussions with the Parks, Wellness and Recreation Commission regarding the renovation 
projects for the three parks.   In addition, a series of community meetings conducted both 
through Zoom and in person were conducted to solicit valuable feedback relating to the park 
renovation projects. The final grant application included the community’s feedback on the 
planned renovations.  
 

6. On December 8, 2021, the California Department of Parks and Recreation informed the City 
that the Las Palmas Park Revitalization Project was selected for funding.  The grant award of 
$4.2 million includes pre-construction costs to assist with plan development, design 
specifications, cost estimates, and construction documents.  
 

7. On June 6, 2022, the City Council authorized staff to circulate a Notice Inviting Bids for 
community engagement and for the design of the Las Palmas Park Revitalization Project.  Six 
firms responded to the request and three firms were invited to an interview for a more in-
depth assessment of their capabilities. 

 
8. On September 19, 2022, the City Council temporarily postponed awarding a Professional 

Service Agreement to RJM, until a more robust community engagement effort could be 
defined.  The City Council recommended that a local non-profit non-governmental 
organization (NGO) lead the community engagement effort and that RJM collaborate with 
the selected NGO to develop the Las Palmas Park project design. 

 
9. On January 3, 2023, the City Council approved a Professional Service Agreement (PSA) for 

community engagement services with Pacoima Beautiful to lead the effort to disseminate 
project information and gathering feedback for the residents.  RJM was awarded a PSA to 
develop a conceptual plan for the Las Palmas Park project.  

 
 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 160 of 221



Consideration to Approve a Conceptual Design for the Development of the Las Palmas Park 
Revitalization Project 
Page 3 of 6 
 
 
ANALYSIS: 

The California Department of Parks & Recreation awarded $4.2 million grant to the City for the 
Las Palmas Park Revitalization Project as part of the Statewide Parks Development and 
Community Revitalization Program and the “Outdoors for All” initiative.  The revitalization 
project transforms Las Palmas Park into a prime recreation facility.  Major park amenities such as 
the ball diamonds, playground, picnic shelters, and others amenities are being renovated.  A 
splash pad and new exercise area will also be constructed. 

The proposed Conceptual Design for the park’s transformation is a result of a robust community 
engagement effort that provided residents a platform to contribute their ideas and suggestions 
for these renovations.  The process of gathering input was a collaborative effort between the City 
and its residents using the Consult approach from the City’s Community Framework plan.  In this 
effort, the public played a significant role in shaping the design of the project.   
 
In February 2023, RCS staff partnered with Pacoima Beautiful and RJM to create a strategic plan 
for community engagement for the Las Palmas Park Revitalization Project. The focus was on 
creating an effective approach for collecting feedback from the San Fernando community.  
Discussion centered around the methodology for gathering feedback and the means (printed 
material, websites, social media and in-person interaction) that would be utilized to solicit 
opinions to help shape the development of the Project’s design. 
 
Based on the City Council’s recommendation, a comprehensive plan with a multi-pronged 
approached was employed to gather feedback. The tools used for the community engagement 
included: 
 

• Community Meetings 
• Pop Up tabling  
• Focus Group Meetings   
• Canvassing the Las Palmas Park Neighborhood  
• Interview of Key Stakeholders 
• Community Survey 
• A Project Website   

 
Community Engagement.  
San Fernando residents were invited to several community workshops to learn about the Park 
and Recreation Master Plan and Las Palmas Park Revitalization Project, and to participate in the 
process by offering their thoughts and ideas on what elements should be incorporated into the 
park renovation.  Three separate workshops were held at the Las Palmas Park Community Center 
on March 29, 2023, April 27, 2023, and May 31, 2023 to collect and review responses from the 
community. The feedback provided is detailed in the Cumulative Community Workshop 
Summary (Attachment “B”). 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 161 of 221



Consideration to Approve a Conceptual Design for the Development of the Las Palmas Park 
Revitalization Project 
Page 4 of 6 
 
 
 
Pacoima Beautiful conducted several Pop-Up events to inform residents about the Community 
meetings being held, inform participants about the Project and administer the community 
survey.  Pop Ups were conducted at RCS Special Events, the San Fernando Night Market and Sport 
Opening Days.  Pacoima Beautiful met with focus groups like senior clubs, sports clubs, and park 
patrons, and interviewed key stakeholders (League Managers and City Council) to gather their 
ideas on the Project.  Pacoima Beautiful staff also collected input by canvassing Las Palmas Park 
neighborhood, which was shared with RJM to incorporate into the design.        
 
RJM helped to solicit community feedback by developing a project website 
(https://storymaps.arcgis.com/stories/efd0992a7f334200ad998227a4c0dd77) that shared an 
overview and history of the project, a project timeline, and posted updates on the progress of 
the project, which is also accessible from the City’s website.  Within the website, a link to the 
City’s 10-question survey allowed the design team to gain a better understanding of the 
community’s vision.  In addition to the City’s survey, RJM developed a feedback link allowing 
visitors to provide ideas and comments about the Las Palmas Park Revitalization Project. All 
information collected via the community engagement effort has been incorporated into the 
proposed Conceptual Design for the Project. 
 
Conceptual Design. 
RJM solidified the information gathered from the community engagement effort and presented 
all the options and ideas at the May 31, 2023 community meeting.  The community meeting 
showed the results of the survey, which asked respondents to select up to five park amenities 
that should be prioritized and included in the renovation of Las Palmas Park.  The City survey had 
256 respondents, 226 were in English and 30 in Spanish.  The ranking of the park amenities are 
as follows: 
 
1. Roller Skating Rink    (50%)  13. Basketball Court   (15%) 
2. Park Restrooms   (49%)  14. Baseball Field   (14%) 
3. Field Lighting   (46%)  15. Accessible Patio   (12%) 
4. Walking Path Lighting  (42%)  16. Concession Stand   (12%) 
5. Multipurpose Athletic Field (31%)  17. Synthetic Turf Field   (11%) 
6. Dog Park    (28%)  18. Tennis/Pickleball Courts   (10%) 
7. Parking Lot    (28%)  19. Learning Center    (10%) 
8. Picnic Shelters   (26%)  20. Wading Pool    (9%) 
9. Accessible Playground  (25%)  21. Gym Floor     (8%) 
10. Community Garden  (24%)  22. Irrigation/Landscaping   (6%) 
11. Building Restrooms  (23%)  23. Awning for Gym Entrance  (3%) 
12. Splashpad    (17%)  24. New Windows for Gym   (2%) 
 
Participants at the May 31, 2023 community meeting cast their vote for the type of park amenity 
they wanted by placing dots next to a picture of samples of their preferred amenities.  Each 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 162 of 221

https://storymaps.arcgis.com/stories/efd0992a7f334200ad998227a4c0dd77


Consideration to Approve a Conceptual Design for the Development of the Las Palmas Park 
Revitalization Project 
Page 5 of 6 
 
 
amenity had a different color dot to distinguish between each vote and tally the results.  The 
proposed conceptual design (Attachment “A”) correlates to the final tally of the Dot Exercise on 
May 31, 2023, and the priorities of the community identified in the survey. 
 
The proposed conceptual design includes all of the Grant Scope improvements except a 
Tennis/Pickleball Court that has been replaced with the Roller Rink overlay.  Upon the City 
Council’s approval, RCS staff will notify the State of California, Department of Parks and 
Recreation, of the change in the Grant Scope.  No additional funds are being requested for a 
change; hence, staff expects the State to approve the change. 
 
Notice Inviting Bids. 
Should the City Council approve the Conceptual Design, RJM will produce construction 
documents and specifications for the contractors bidding process.  The construction documents 
are expected to be available the latter part of December 2023.  City staff (Public Works and 
Community Development departments) will conduct a Plan Check review of the documents to 
ensure the documents meet all regulatory standards required by local, state and federal agencies 
overseeing capital improvement projects.  The Plan Check review is expected to take between 
three to four weeks to complete, or by the end of January 2024.   
 
Staff will circulate a Notice Inviting Bids and Request for Proposals in February 2024 to start the 
bidding process.  The proposals will be evaluated and staff will recommend the lowest qualified 
bidder to the City Council in late March or early April 2024.  Construction on the Las Palmas Park 
Revitalization Project is expected to begin May 2024, with a completion date of June 2025.   
 

BUDGET IMPACT: 

The total estimated grant cost for the Las Palmas Park Revitalization Project is $4,234,980.  
Funding was appropriated in the City’s Fiscal Year 2021-2022 budget through the Statewide Park 
Development and Community Revitalization (SPP) Grant and carried forward into current year 
for capital project costs.  There is no match requirement for this grant. 
 
SOURCES 
Fund  Account Number Allocation 
Statewide Park Program (Grant) 010-3692-0156 $ 4,234,980 
 

  
 

Total Sources:  $ 4,234,980 
 
 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 163 of 221



Consideration to Approve a Conceptual Design for the Development of the Las Palmas Park 
Revitalization Project 
Page 6 of 6 
 
 
USES 
Activity Account Number Cost 
Pre-construction Cost  010-422-0156-4600 $ 490,121 
    Plans, Specifications, Cost Estimates, Permits     
    Groundbreaking,      
Community Engagement  010-422-0156-4600 $  40,000 
Construction 010-422-0156-4600 $  3,704,859 
    
Expenditures-to-Date:  $  107,090 
    
Total Available Uses:  $  4,127,890 

 
The grant allows 25% ($705,830) of the grant for pre-construction expenses.   RJM cost is 
$490,121 and the community engagement cost is $40,000 totaling $530,121, which is within the 
allotted amount.   Upon conclusion of the design phase, staff will re-allocate any remaining pre-
construction funds toward construction. 
 
 
CONCLUSION: 

It is recommended that the City Council approve the conceptual design for the Las Palmas 
Revitalization Project, authorize RJM Design Group, Inc. to start developing construction 
documents, authorize a Notice Inviting Bids and Request for Proposals upon completion of the 
construction documents, and provide staff with direction as appropriate 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 

A. Conceptual Plan 
B. Cumulative Community Workshop Summary 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 164 of 221



10

2

14

14

5
4

9

15

11

8

76

6

6

1

16

12

3

10

BALL FIELD (60’, 70’, & 80’ BASES)BALL FIELD (60’, 70’, & 80’ BASES)

EXISTING PARKING AREASEXISTING PARKING AREAS

OBSTACLE COURSE FITNESS AREAOBSTACLE COURSE FITNESS AREA

U10 SOCCER (120’ x 240’)U10 SOCCER (120’ x 240’)

SOFT BALL FIELD (60’ BASES)SOFT BALL FIELD (60’ BASES)

SPORTS LIGHTS, TYP.SPORTS LIGHTS, TYP.

EXISTING STORAGE BUILDINGEXISTING STORAGE BUILDING

EXISTING COMMUNITY CENTEREXISTING COMMUNITY CENTER

SHADE / PICNIC SHELTERSHADE / PICNIC SHELTER

BALL FIELD (50’ & 60’ BASES)BALL FIELD (50’ & 60’ BASES)

BALL CONTAINMENT NETTINGBALL CONTAINMENT NETTING

PLAY AREA (PATRIOTIC THEMED)PLAY AREA (PATRIOTIC THEMED)

PRACTICE BACKSTOPPRACTICE BACKSTOP

FULL COURT BASKETBALL WITH FULL COURT BASKETBALL WITH 
FLAT TRACK ROLLER DERBYFLAT TRACK ROLLER DERBY
RENOVATED RESTROOM / RENOVATED RESTROOM / 
CONCESSION BUILDINGCONCESSION BUILDING

SPLASH PADSPLASH PAD

LEGENDLEGEND

1

11

12

5

6

2

15

14

13

13

137

3

8

104
16

9

S
.H

U
N

TI
N

G
TO

N
 S

T
S

.H
U

N
TI

N
G

TO
N

 S
T

S
.M

E
Y

E
R

 S
T

S
.M

E
Y

E
R

 S
T

S
.H

U
N

TI
N

G
TO

N
 S

T
S

.H
U

N
TI

N
G

TO
N

 S
T

CORONEL STCORONEL ST

E. CANYON CHANNEL

E. CANYON CHANNEL

HOLLISTER STHOLLISTER ST

0       20’      40’          80’

8/1/23 CONCEPTUAL PLAN

LAS PALMAS PARK RENOVATION
CITY OF SAN FERNANDO, CALIFORNIA

ATTACHMENT "A"

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 165 of 221



08/07/2023

LAS PALMAS PARK RENOVATION 
CITY OF SAN FERNANDO, CALIFORNIA

TH
IS

 D
O

C
U

M
EN

T 
IS

 T
H

E 
PR

O
PE

RT
Y 

O
F 

RJ
M

 D
ES

IG
N

 G
RO

U
P,

 IN
C

., 
A

N
D

 N
O

 P
A

RT
 T

H
ER

EO
F 

SH
A

LL
 B

E 
U

SE
D

, R
EU

SE
D

, O
R 

M
O

D
IF

IE
D

 W
IT

H
O

U
T 

TH
E 

W
RI

TT
EN

 C
O

N
SE

N
T 

O
F 

RJ
M

 D
ES

IG
N

 G
RO

U
P,

 IN
C

. ©
 2

02
2 

RJ
M

 D
es

ig
n 

G
ro

up
, I

nc
.  

A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
  

IMAGE BOARDS - PLAYGROUND•• R GROUP MDESIGN 

•• ,,., 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 166 of 221



08/07/2023

LAS PALMAS PARK RENOVATION 
CITY OF SAN FERNANDO, CALIFORNIA

TH
IS

 D
O

C
U

M
EN

T 
IS

 T
H

E 
PR

O
PE

RT
Y 

O
F 

RJ
M

 D
ES

IG
N

 G
RO

U
P,

 IN
C

., 
A

N
D

 N
O

 P
A

RT
 T

H
ER

EO
F 

SH
A

LL
 B

E 
U

SE
D

, R
EU

SE
D

, O
R 

M
O

D
IF

IE
D

 W
IT

H
O

U
T 

TH
E 

W
RI

TT
EN

 C
O

N
SE

N
T 

O
F 

RJ
M

 D
ES

IG
N

 G
RO

U
P,

 IN
C

. ©
 2

02
2 

RJ
M

 D
es

ig
n 

G
ro

up
, I

nc
.  

A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
  

IMAGE BOARDS - SPLASH PAD•• R GROUP MDESIGN 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 167 of 221



RENDERING08/25/2023

LAS PALMAS PARK RENOVATION
CITY OF SAN FERNANDO, CALIFORNIA

TH
IS

 D
O

C
U

M
EN

T 
IS

 T
H

E 
PR

O
PE

RT
Y 

O
F 

RJ
M

 D
ES

IG
N

 G
RO

U
P,

 IN
C

., 
A

N
D

 N
O

 P
A

RT
 T

H
ER

EO
F 

SH
A

LL
 B

E 
U

SE
D

, R
EU

SE
D

, O
R 

M
O

D
IF

IE
D

 W
IT

H
O

U
T 

TH
E 

W
RI

TT
EN

 C
O

N
SE

N
T 

O
F 

RJ
M

 D
ES

IG
N

 G
RO

U
P,

 IN
C

. ©
 2

02
2 

RJ
M

 D
es

ig
n 

G
ro

up
, I

nc
.  

A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
  

PLAYGROUND AREA~ •• R-1 MDESIGN 
~ GROUP 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 168 of 221



08/07/2023

LAS PALMAS PARK RENOVATION 
CITY OF SAN FERNANDO, CALIFORNIA

TH
IS

 D
O

C
U

M
EN

T 
IS

 T
H

E 
PR

O
PE

RT
Y 

O
F 

RJ
M

 D
ES

IG
N

 G
RO

U
P,

 IN
C

., 
A

N
D

 N
O

 P
A

RT
 T

H
ER

EO
F 

SH
A

LL
 B

E 
U

SE
D

, R
EU

SE
D

, O
R 

M
O

D
IF

IE
D

 W
IT

H
O

U
T 

TH
E 

W
RI

TT
EN

 C
O

N
SE

N
T 

O
F 

RJ
M

 D
ES

IG
N

 G
RO

U
P,

 IN
C

. ©
 2

02
2 

RJ
M

 D
es

ig
n 

G
ro

up
, I

nc
.  

A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
  

IMAGE BOARDS - FITNESS EQUIPMENT•• 
GROUP MDESIGN 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 169 of 221



RENDERING08/25/2023

LAS PALMAS PARK RENOVATION
CITY OF SAN FERNANDO, CALIFORNIA

TH
IS

 D
O

C
U

M
EN

T 
IS

 T
H

E 
PR

O
PE

RT
Y 

O
F 

RJ
M

 D
ES

IG
N

 G
RO

U
P,

 IN
C

., 
A

N
D

 N
O

 P
A

RT
 T

H
ER

EO
F 

SH
A

LL
 B

E 
U

SE
D

, R
EU

SE
D

, O
R 

M
O

D
IF

IE
D

 W
IT

H
O

U
T 

TH
E 

W
RI

TT
EN

 C
O

N
SE

N
T 

O
F 

RJ
M

 D
ES

IG
N

 G
RO

U
P,

 IN
C

. ©
 2

02
2 

RJ
M

 D
es

ig
n 

G
ro

up
, I

nc
.  

A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
  

FITNESS STATION AND BASKETBALL ~ •• --------------------------------------------------R J M ~ i ~ 3 ~ 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 170 of 221



08/07/2023

LAS PALMAS PARK RENOVATION 
CITY OF SAN FERNANDO, CALIFORNIA

TH
IS

 D
O

C
U

M
EN

T 
IS

 T
H

E 
PR

O
PE

RT
Y 

O
F 

RJ
M

 D
ES

IG
N

 G
RO

U
P,

 IN
C

., 
A

N
D

 N
O

 P
A

RT
 T

H
ER

EO
F 

SH
A

LL
 B

E 
U

SE
D

, R
EU

SE
D

, O
R 

M
O

D
IF

IE
D

 W
IT

H
O

U
T 

TH
E 

W
RI

TT
EN

 C
O

N
SE

N
T 

O
F 

RJ
M

 D
ES

IG
N

 G
RO

U
P,

 IN
C

. ©
 2

02
2 

RJ
M

 D
es

ig
n 

G
ro

up
, I

nc
.  

A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
  

IMAGE BOARDS - PICNIC / SHADE

- . ( 

•• RM DESIGN 
GROUP 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 171 of 221



08
/0

7/
20

23

LA
S 

PA
LM

A
S 

PA
RK

 R
EN

O
VA

TI
O

N
 

C
IT

Y 
O

F 
SA

N
 F

ER
N

A
N

D
O

, C
A

LI
FO

RN
IA

THIS DOCUMENT IS THE PROPERTY OF RJM DESIGN GROUP, INC., AND NO PART THEREOF SHALL BE USED, REUSED, OR MODIFIED WITHOUT THE WRITTEN CONSENT OF RJM DESIGN GROUP, INC. © 2022 RJM Design Group, Inc.  All rights reserved.  

IM
A

G
E 

BO
A

RD
S 

- B
A

SE
BA

LL
 IM

PR
O

V
EM

EN
TS

S
O

F
T
 T

O
S

S
 B

A
T
T
IN

G
 C

A
G

E
S

O
F
T
 T

O
S

S
 B

A
T
T
IN

G
 C

A
G

E
D

U
G

O
U

T
D

U
G

O
U

T

S
H

A
D

E
D

 B
LE

A
C

H
E
R

S
H

A
D

E
D

 B
LE

A
C

H
E
R

S
C

O
R

E
B

O
A

R
D

 A
N

D
 B

A
LL

 
S

C
O

R
E
B

O
A

R
D

 A
N

D
 B

A
LL

 
C

O
N

TA
IN

M
E
N

T
 N

E
T
T
IN

G
C

O
N

TA
IN

M
E
N

T
 N

E
T
T
IN

G

' ,. 

I I 
l 

' ,t' •,y . .,, 
.... ~·; .. ,,.,. 
) 
7 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 172 of 221



RENDERING08/25/2023

LAS PALMAS PARK RENOVATION
CITY OF SAN FERNANDO, CALIFORNIA

TH
IS

 D
O

C
U

M
EN

T 
IS

 T
H

E 
PR

O
PE

RT
Y 

O
F 

RJ
M

 D
ES

IG
N

 G
RO

U
P,

 IN
C

., 
A

N
D

 N
O

 P
A

RT
 T

H
ER

EO
F 

SH
A

LL
 B

E 
U

SE
D

, R
EU

SE
D

, O
R 

M
O

D
IF

IE
D

 W
IT

H
O

U
T 

TH
E 

W
RI

TT
EN

 C
O

N
SE

N
T 

O
F 

RJ
M

 D
ES

IG
N

 G
RO

U
P,

 IN
C

. ©
 2

02
2 

RJ
M

 D
es

ig
n 

G
ro

up
, I

nc
.  

A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
  

SPORTS FIELDS~ •• R-1 MDESIGN 
~ GROUP 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 173 of 221



951-02 City of San Fernando • Parks and Recreation Master Plan / Workshop Summary Page 1 

CUMULATIVE COMMUNITY 
WORKSHOP SUMMARY

DATE:  June 26, 2023

TO: CITY OF SAN FERNANDO

FROM: RJM Design Group, Inc.

SUBJECT: Las Palmas Park Renovation

The California Department of Parks & Recreation awarded $4.2M to the City for the 
Las Palmas Park Revitalization Project as part of the Statewide Parks Development and 
Community Revitalization Program and “Outdoors for All” initiative. 

The Revitalization Project includes the 
addition of multipurpose athletic field, splash 
pad, tennis/pickleball court, sports field and 
park lighting. It also includes renovations of 
the play area, basketball court, baseball 
fields, walking paths, picnic shelters, 
outdoor exercise equipment, and restroom/
concession building.

With a request from the San Fernando City 
Council, the non-profit organization Pacoima 
Beautiful was engaged to conduct and 
assist with the workshops.  In addition to 
hosting the first two workshops, Pacoima 
Beautiful also canvassed the neighborhood 
surrounding the park speaking to residents, 
handing out informational fliers and inviting 
them to attend and share their ideas on the 
park improvements.  Their team generated 
lists of community responses from each of 
those two workshops of the amenities and 
features requested to be included in the park 
revitalization.

ATTACHMENT  "B"

Community Inspired Spaces 

R~I MDESIGN 
~ GROUP 

Thursday,Apnl27,2023 
Your Park, Your Vision 

Las Palmas Park Revitalization Community Meeting 

You are invited to play an important role in the planning and 
design process to revitalize Las Palmas Park. 

A series of community meetings are being planned to 
gather feedback from the community on the design 
elements of the project. 

Join us for the 2nd community meeting on April 27, 2023, 
at 5:30-7:30pm at Las Palmas Park inside the gym. 

Child Care wil l be provided for participants 

Send a text message with the word "laspalmas" to 
77222 to receive project updates 

For more informat ion call Gisell at (818) 940-8114 or 
visi t the c ity's website. 

505 S. Huntington Street San Fernando, CA 91340 

SAN[Ellt-JANID 

RECREATION AND 
COMMUNITY 

SERVICES 

208 Park Avenue 
San Fernando, CA 91340 

818-898·1290 

SFCITY.ORG/SFRECREATION 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 174 of 221



951-02 City of San Fernando • Parks and Recreation Master Plan / Workshop Summary Page 2 

Part of the outreach efforts involved information sharing. The following exhibits illustrate site 
photos as well as opportunities and constraints used to inform the community of the project. 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 175 of 221



951-02 City of San Fernando • Parks and Recreation Master Plan / Workshop Summary Page 3 

Park Amenities
• Baseball
• Basketball
• Concession Stand
• Dog Park
• Exercise Stations
• Hitting Wall
• Lighting
• Playground
• Picnic/Barbecue Area

• Restrooms
• Roller Rink
• Security
• Skate Park
• Soccer
• Splashpad
• Stage
• Swimming Pool
• Tennis
• Walking Path

March 29th Workshop Responses

As part of the community outreach portion of the project, residents of the City of San 
Fernando were invited to several community workshops to learn about the Master Plan 
process and to participate by offering their thoughts and ideas on what elements should 
be incorporated into the park renovation.  Three separate workshops were held at the Las 
Palmas Community Center on March 29th, April 27th, and the final community event held 
on May 31st to culminate the responses from the community. The following is the information 
collected from Pacoima Beautiful as part of their outreach efforts.

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 176 of 221



951-02 City of San Fernando • Parks and Recreation Master Plan / Workshop Summary Page 4 

City Survey Responses as of April 27th

Park Amenities
1. Roller Skating Rink (50%)
2. Park Restrooms (49%)
3. Field Lighting (46%)
4. Walking Path Lighting (42%)
5. Multipurpose Athletic Field (31%)
6. Dog Park (28%)
7. Parking Lot (28%)
8. Picnic Shelters (26%)
9. Accessible Playground (25%)
10. Community Garden (24%)
11. Building Restrooms (23%)
12. Splashpad (17%)

13. Basketball Court (15%)
14. Baseball Field (14%)
15. Accessible Patio (12%)
16. Concession Stand (12%)
17. Synthetic Turf Field (11%)
18. Tennis/Pickleball Courts (10%)
19. Learning Center (10%)
20. Wading Pool (9%)
21. Gym Floor (8%)
22. Irrigation/Landscaping (6%)
23. Awning for Gym Entrance (3%)
24. New Windows for Gym (2%)

To help solicit community feedback, RJM developed a project website that shared 
an overview of the history, the intended timeline, and project updates as the project 
progressed.  Within the website, a link to a ten question survey generated by the City 
of San Fernando allowed the design team to gain a better understanding of the 
community’s wishes. In addition to Pacoima Beautiful’s efforts, the City also hosted an 
online survey available from January until the end of the community outreach phase. 
The following are the results from the survey. 

April 27th Workshop Responses

April 27th Workshop Responses

Park Amenities
• Baseball
• Basketball
• Concession Stand
• Dog Park
• Drinking Fountains
• Exercise Stations
• Hitting Wall
• Lighting
• Playground
• Picnic/Barbecue Area

• Restrooms
• Roller Rink
• Running Track
• Security
• Skate Park
• Soccer
• Splashpad
• Stage
• Swimming Pool
• Vehicular Circulation Signage
• Volleyball

Building Improvements
• Activity Room
• Air Conditioning
• Computer Room
• Concession Stand
• Dance Room
• Handicap Access / ADA Door Openers
• Gym Ceiling
• Security Cameras in Building
• Workout Room

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 177 of 221



951-02 City of San Fernando • Parks and Recreation Master Plan / Workshop Summary Page 5 

The final workshop consisted of an individual “dot” exercise where participants received 
five (5) blue dots to place next to their top 5 amenities. Participants also were given one (1) 
yellow dot for their favorite playground theme, green dot for water play amenity, purple 
dot for exercise equipment, red dot for shade structure, and orange dot for baseball field 
amenities. Sixty (60) attendees participated in the final workshop. 

Pre-Survey Question 1: Where do you 
live? 

Survey participants were distributed 
throughout the City of San Fernando 
with a majority being located in the 
surrounding neighborhoods next to 
the park. 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 178 of 221



951-02 City of San Fernando • Parks and Recreation Master Plan / Workshop Summary Page 6 

Individual “dot” Exercise (blue dots)
Recreation Programs:
• Baseball Field Improvements: 22
• Add Safety/Security Lighting: 27
• Install Roller Derby/Skating Rink: 11
• Restroom/Concession Improvements: 28
• Basketball Court Improvements: 8
• Play Area Improvements: 13
• Add Walking Path/Running Track: 11
• Exercise Area Improvements: 7
• Replace Site Furnishings (Benches, Picnic

Tables, Drinking Fountains, etc.): 17
• Add Splashpad Water Play Area: 15
• Add Pickleball/Tennis Courts:
• Add Skate Spot: 4
• Add Hitting/Play Wall: 1
• Add Off-Leash Dog Area: 10
• Add Volleyball Court: 8

Las Palmas Park 
Spriori,;l;loNprir'lcipa. 

llEOtf.A T10N l'ROGMNS 

lbseb.tll Fiefd lmprowmcnu 
{me,o,NOIICM'4)0deb6isbol) 

Add S..ffly /S«urity Ughting 
{M'ladir~de~) 

Add WalkillJ Path/RunningTndl 
~un.-ideroll)ista.-.oo,,...) 

Replxe Site Fumishinp 
{Bend1n. Pirnie Tab~. Drinkinc 
fount.iins,~.J c..........,__,__, ____ , 

Add Splash~ WateT" Pl.1)' Area 
~ZOR11dej,J91109~) 

Add PidlebilU/Tmnls Couru 
<•1'18<11rainct1Ndepict:Jlb,III/-..,) 

AddSbttSpot 
{ll'lldir~dllpalinljll) 

Add Hitting/Pl.l)'Wall 
(#ld'WU'OO.~/jl-s,o) 

Add Off· l..t.uh Dog Arn 
, ....... __ ~ptl'Kll;lll'lotmle) 

Add Volleyb;oll Court 
( ....... eancfll<lt'IOllibol) 

• • 
••• 

• •• • • 
••••• 
• 
• 

• •• • 

BLUE DOTS 

WARM-UP BULLPENS 
(toriles de calerltamienlo) 

EQUIPMENT STORAGE 
(amacenamiento de equipos) 

SCOREBOARDS SOFT-TOSS BATTING CAGE 
(marcadores) (jallladllbaleo. ~.......,.l 

DUGOUTS (PLAYER BENCHES, BAT RACKS, SHADE COVER) 
(banoos para jugadofes, soportes para bates, cubierta de sombfa) 

BLEACHERS/SHADE 
(gradas I sombl'a) 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 179 of 221



951-02 City of San Fernando • Parks and Recreation Master Plan / Workshop Summary Page 7 

22 99

11 44

1212 44

00 22

Individual “dot” Exercise (yellow dots)

LAS PALMAS PARK 

NATURAL SPORTS 

AGRICULTURE ROCK CLIMBING 

FUTURISTIC 

SENSORY DINOSAURS 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 180 of 221



951-02 City of San Fernando • Parks and Recreation Master Plan / Workshop Summary Page 8 

22 22

00

1919 44

1010

TOTAL: 4TOTAL: 4

TOTAL: 43TOTAL: 43

Individual “dot” Exercise (green dots)

LAS PALMAS PARK. 

PLAYABLE FOUNTAINS 
GROUND SPRAYS ONLY 

STANDARD SPLASH PAD 
ERECTEDSTEELSPRAYPLAY 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 181 of 221



951-02 City of San Fernando • Parks and Recreation Master Plan / Workshop Summary Page 9 

0000 00

1100 55

121288 00

77 44 00

TOTAL: 0TOTAL: 0

TOTAL: 6TOTAL: 6

TOTAL: 30TOTAL: 30

TOTAL: 11TOTAL: 11

Individual “dot” Exercise (purple dots)

STATIC FITNESS EQUIPMENT 

STATIC FITNESS RIG STRUCTURES 

OBSTACLE COURSE ELEMENTS 

DYNAMIC FITNESS EQUIPMENT 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 182 of 221



951-02 City of San Fernando • Parks and Recreation Master Plan / Workshop Summary Page 10 

66 33

2020 11

22 00

55 22

TOTAL: 9TOTAL: 9

TOTAL: 21TOTAL: 21

TOTAL: 2TOTAL: 2

TOTAL: 7TOTAL: 7

Individual “dot” Exercise (red dots)

PRE-FABRICATED SHADE STRUCTURES 

~ 
CUSTOMIZED PRE-FABRICATED SHADE STRUCTURES 

OPEN PICNIC TRELLIS SHADE STRUCTURES 

FABRIC SAIL SHADE STRUCTURES 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 183 of 221



951-02 City of San Fernando • Parks and Recreation Master Plan / Workshop Summary Page 11 

1111 55

2424 2323

1414 44
TOTAL: 18TOTAL: 18

TOTAL: 37TOTAL: 37

66 3131

Individual “dot” Exercise (orange dots)

LAS PALMAS PARK 

WARM-UP BULLPENS EQUIPMENT STORAGE 

,. 
SCOREBOARDS SOFT-TOSS BATTING CAGE 

~ 
DUGOUTS (PLAYER BENCHES, BAT RACKS, SHADE COVER) 

BLEACHERS/SHADE 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 184 of 221



951-02 City of San Fernando • Parks and Recreation Master Plan / Workshop Summary Page 12 

Next Steps

Construction 
Begins on Park 
Revitalization!

City Council to 
Award Lowest 

Qualified 
Bidder

Present 
Conceptual 
Plan to City 
Council for 
Approval 
(August)

Contractor Bid 
Period

Prepare 
Conceptual 
Las Palmas 

Park 
Revitalization 

Plan (3 Weeks)

Issue Request 
for Proposal 

from Potential 
Contractors

Summarize 
Community 
Feedback 
(1 Week)

Current 
Step

Produce 
Construction 
Drawings for 
Contractor 

Bidding

Review Final 
Workshop 

Results
1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

With City Council Approval

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 185 of 221



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 186 of 221



September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 187 of 221



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 188 of 221



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT       117 MACNEIL STREET, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340       (818) 898-1227       WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

REVIEW:      ☒ Finance Director      ☒ Deputy City Manager      ☒ City Manager 
 

To: Mayor Celeste T. Rodriguez and Councilmembers 
  
From:  Nick Kimball, City Manager 
 By: Erika Ramirez, Director of Community Development  
  Kenya Marquez, Housing Coordinator 
 
Date:  September 5, 2023 
 
Subject: Consideration and Discussion Regarding Implementation of the Homeless Action 

Plan and the Proposed Homelessness Town Hall 

RECOMMENDATION: 
  
It is recommended that the City Council:  

a. Receive an update regarding implementation of the Homeless Action Plan;   

b. Discuss the proposed Homelessness Town Hall; and 

c. Provide direction to staff, as applicable. 

 
BACKGROUND: 
 
1. On October 5, 2020, the City Council received and filed an update on homeless outreach in 

San Fernando by City staff. This update initiated a discussion of homelessness in San Fernando 
and the City’s comprehensive approach to assist people experiencing homelessness through 
the development of an action plan. 
  

2. On February 16, 2021, the City Council established a Homeless Committee Ad Hoc 
(Councilmembers Montañez and Rodriguez) to work with a City Homeless Task Force (HTF) 
comprised of department staff from Administration, Community Development, Police, Public 
Works and Recreation and Community Services to develop policy recommendations in 
addressing homelessness in San Fernando, including but not limited to, the review of 
consultants that would prepare a Homelessness Action Plan. 

 
3. On February 22, 2022, the City participated in a one-day, citywide homeless point-in-time 

count as part of the Los Angeles Homeless Services Authority’s (LAHSA) 2022 Count.  
 
4. On April 18, 2022, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 8138 approving a Housing 

Coordinator position to re-establish and administer the City’s low-income assistance home 

' ItN~ANm~----

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 189 of 221



Consideration and Discussion Regarding Implementation of the Homeless Action Plan and the Proposed 
Homelessness Town Hall  
Page 2 of 5 
 
 

loan programs, establish and administer other loan and grant programs, implement the 
Homelessness Action Plan and develop policies to support individuals and families 
experiencing homelessness. 
 

5. On June 6, 2022, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 8153 approving the sixth cycle 2021- 
2029 Housing Element, which contains policies focused on people experiencing homelessness 
and people at-risk of experiencing homelessness as a special needs population in San 
Fernando. 

 
6. On September 6, 2022, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 8164 approving the City of 

San Fernando Homelessness Action Plan, a comprehensive strategy to address homelessness 
over the next five years.  
 

7. On January 24, 2023, the City participated in a one-day, citywide homeless point-in-time 
count as part of the LAHSA 2023 Count.  
 

8. On April 17, 2023, the City Council approved a Contract Services Agreement with North Valley 
Caring Services in an amount not-to-exceed $175,000 for street outreach for individuals 
experiencing homelessness. 
 

9. On August 9, 2023, the Homeless Committee Ad Hoc gathered to discuss outreach efforts 
concerning homelessness and the Homeless Action Plan. 

 
 

ANALYSIS: 
 
The City of San Fernando Homelessness Action Plan (Plan) was adopted on September 6, 2022, 
as a comprehensive strategy to address the needs of City residents experiencing or at-risk of 
homelessness over the next five years.  The plan focuses on three guiding priorities, supported 
by proactive strategies that will work to address three key goals in San Fernando (further 
information may be found in Attachment “A”).  The priorities and goals are as follows:  
 

Priority Goal 

1. Develop City’s Capacity to Better Prevent 
and End Homelessness 

Establish a Homelessness Response Center led 
by identified departmental lead and 
supported by established homelessness-
dedicated staff positions. 

2. Address the Service Needs of People 
Experiencing Unsheltered Homelessness 

Strive to eliminate unsheltered homelessness 
in San Fernando. 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 190 of 221



Consideration and Discussion Regarding Implementation of the Homeless Action Plan and the Proposed 
Homelessness Town Hall  
Page 3 of 5 
 
 

Priority Goal 

3. Focus on Root Causes to Prevent 
Homelessness 

Seek to increase the number of individuals 
diverted from the homelessness response 
system by leveraging strategic partnerships 
with upstream services and building in 
mechanisms to measure success. 

 
Since the adoption of the Homelessness Action Plan in 2022, several efforts have been 
accomplished to achieve Priority 1. These efforts include hiring a Housing Coordinator to oversee 
and spearhead homelessness services and refining and developing procedures. Additionally, 
several engagement efforts have also been undertaken, including a dedicated session on 
homelessness within the Police Department’s Community Academy. Information regarding 
requesting outreach for individuals experiencing homelessness is provided on the City Manager’s 
Monthly Report and on the City website, which also offers a housing and community resources 
page (SFCITY.ORG/Housing-Community-Resources). 
 
On January 24, 2023, the City participated in the LAHSA’s 2023 Count, conducting a one-day 
citywide homeless point-in-time count. The initial raw data from the count indicated 26 
individuals and 30 improvised dwellings (i.e., cars, vans, recreational vehicles, tents, and 
makeshift shelters). Following LAHSA’s methodology, this estimate was adjusted to 72 
individuals, marking the highest recorded estimate to date for the City. However, LAHSA 
concedes that the methodology used for the homeless count estimates works best with large 
data sets, such as the Service Planning Area 2, or SPA2, which encompasses most of the San 
Fernando Valley.  Since the estimates do not portray a true representation of smaller areas below 
the SPA level (such as San Fernando), LAHSA has decided not to publish the estimated counts for 
specific jurisdictions on its website. 
 
In June 2023, the contract with North Valley Caring Services was signed to provide street 
outreach for individuals experiencing homelessness for one year. The outreach team from North 
Valley Caring Services is dedicated to actively engage with the unhoused population in the City, 
fostering meaningful connections, and cultivating supportive relationships.  This strategic effort 
seeks to provide pathways to temporary and permanent housing solutions, with the ultimate 
goal of increasing the rates at which the unhoused community accepts shelter. 
 
Purpose of the Town Hall. 
Priority 1, Strategy 5 of the Plan involves enhanced engagement, communication, and education 
on homelessness. This strategy includes updating residents on the progress of the Homelessness 
Action Plan, developing public facing materials, and offering trainings and education around best 
practices.  
 
 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 191 of 221

https://ci.san-fernando.ca.us/housing-community-resources/


Consideration and Discussion Regarding Implementation of the Homeless Action Plan and the Proposed 
Homelessness Town Hall  
Page 4 of 5 
 
 
In an effort to further the goals of the Homelessness Action Plan, staff worked with the Homeless 
Ad Hoc to discuss an outreach event to inform residents and businesses on the City’s progress. 
Taking into consideration the input and suggestions of the Homeless Ad Hoc, staff created a plan 
for a Homelessness Town Hall proposed to take place on Wednesday, September 20, 2023.  
 
The primary objectives of the Town Hall are twofold: 
 

1. To inform residents about the collaborative efforts undertaken by the City of San 
Fernando, the County of Los Angeles, and North Valley Caring Services in response to 
homelessness; and 
 

2. To provide residents with the necessary knowledge and tools to facilitate outreach for 
individuals experiencing homelessness, promoting transparency, addressing concerns, 
and fostering an empowered and engaged community. 

 
The Town Hall will present the City's Plan progress, introduce the North Valley Caring Services' 
street outreach team, explain law enforcement parameters, and discuss Los Angeles County 
initiatives, as well as dedicate time for question and answer sessions. 
 
Community Engagement Framework Implementation. 
To ensure broad participation and awareness, the Town Hall planning follows the adopted 
Community Engagement Framework. Engagement methods include distributing flyers through 
local community-based organizations (CBOs), schools, and local businesses, leveraging social 
media, and directly inviting active community groups such as the Neighborhood Watch, Business 
Watch, Downtown San Fernando Mall Association, and the Chamber of Commerce.  
 
Below are the costs associated with each option. The staff recommendation is to solely print 
postcards without mailing them. As noted earlier, the postcards can be distributed through 
schools, CBOs (Community-Based Organizations), and local businesses. This approach will result 
in cost savings for the City by eliminating postage expenses. 
 

Advertisement Method Cost 
Postcard 

• Printing  
• Postage 

 
$1,600.00 
$1,700.00 

Radio Announcements $350 ( 7-13 days of on-air announcements) 
Sun Newspaper $800 per ¼ page ad 
Social Media No cost 
Informational Text No cost 

 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 192 of 221



Consideration and Discussion Regarding Implementation of the Homeless Action Plan and the Proposed 
Homelessness Town Hall  
Page 5 of 5 
 
 
Efforts to make the Town Hall accessible include:  
 

• Language: Interpreters at the Town Hall and translated materials (English and Spanish). 
• Preferred Times: Evening scheduling and live-streaming for flexible attendance. 
• Activities for children: A Recreation Leader will oversee activities for children of adults 

attending the Town Hall, ensuring a family-friendly environment during the event. 
• Food/Refreshments: Providing light snacks and refreshments to attendees. 
• Digital Divide: Employing various engagement methods to bridge digital gaps. 

 
The 2023 Homelessness Town Hall aligns with the City’s commitment to transparency, 
engagement, and community empowerment. The Town Hall will also be a significant step 
towards cultivating fostering deeper understanding of homelessness and forge a path toward 
meaningful solutions through a collaboration among residents and businesses within the 
community. 
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
 
The Homelessness Town Hall would serve as the first Citywide outreach event.  The Fiscal Year 
2023-2024 Adopted Budget included an enhancement of $3,500 for Housing Division supplies 
and materials (001-140-0000-4300), of which staff recommends using up to 50% towards 
advertisement and food/refreshments. Sufficient funding is further included in the budget for 
language translation (001-101-0000-4270) and childcare services (001-423-0000-4105). 
 
 
CONCLUSION: 
 
It is recommended that the City Council receive an update for implementation of the Homeless 
Action Plan, discuss the proposed Homelessness Town Hall and provide direction to staff, as 
applicable. 
 
 
ATTACHMENT: 
 
A. Homelessness Action Plan – Simplified Metrics 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 193 of 221



ATTACHMENT “A” 
 

Homelessness Action Plan - Simplified Metrics 
Priority 1: Develop City’s Capacity to Better Prevent and End Homelessness 

Goal: Establish a Homelessness Response Center led by identified departmental lead and 
supported by established homelessness-dedicated staff positions. 

Strategies Metrics 
Leadership and 
Departmental 
Capacity 

• Established Homelessness Command Center 
• Identified Departmental Lead 
• Developed or identified staff positions related to homeless 

services 
Data • Developed By-Name List/ total active people experiencing 

homelessness each month  
• Number of people entering homelessness each month 
• Total number of people exiting to housing each month 
• Developed data and reporting tools to understand 

homelessness and housing instability  
• Number of Strategies advancing each month and reflected in 

reporting and public dashboards  
• Number of data and reporting tools with disaggregated 

demographic data 
• Number of City of San Fernando programs and contracts 

engaging with CES and HMIS  
• Number of LAHSA and County reports obtained 

Regional 
Coordination, 
Partnerships, and 
Linkages  

• Number of regional coordination groups attended 
• Number of partners attending NESFV Interagency TaskForce 

Service Provider 
Capacity and System 
Infrastructure 

• Number of capacity building opportunities provided to local 
nonprofits and service providers 

• Developed internal prevention and outreach programs 
• Number of funding opportunities pursued 

Communication and 
Education  

• Developed public facing material for individuals and families 
searching for homelessness, homelessness prevention, or 
housing assistance 

Training • Number of trainings, like person-centered care, trauma-
informed care, racial equity, nonviolent crisis intervention, etc. 

 

 

 

 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 194 of 221



Priority 2: Address the Service Needs of People Experiencing Unsheltered Homelessness 
Goal: Strive to eliminate unsheltered homelessness in San Fernando 

Strategies Metrics 
Homeless Street 
Outreach  

• Number of homeless street outreach staff/ contracted staff 
serving City of San Fernando Number of people experiencing 
unsheltered homelessness, including key subpopulations 
reflected on By-Name list 

• Length of time a person remains homeless 
• Successful placement from street outreach to housing 
• Number of encampments, including vehicular  
• Number of individuals offered services (e.g. medical support) 
• Number of individuals accepting offered services (e.g. mental 

health support) 
Safe Parking and Safe 
Storage 

• Number of people experiencing vehicular homelessness  
• Number of connections to coordinated entry/ access sites 
• Number of encampments, including vehicular 

Crisis Housing Beds • Number of crisis housing beds available for referrals (including 
emergency shelter, interim housing, medical respite, domestic 
violence shelter, faith-based shelter, family shelter, 
transitional housing, motel vouchers, winter shelters, detox 
beds, etc.) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 195 of 221



Priority 3: Focus on Root Causes to Prevent Homelessness 
Goal: Seek to increase the number of individuals diverted from the homelessness response 

system by leveraging strategic partnerships with upstream services and building in 
mechanisms to measure success.  

Strategies Metrics 
Homelessness 
Prevention Services 

• Number of connections to homelessness prevention programs 
• Number of successful outcomes for homelessness prevention 

programs 
• Number of individuals diverted from homelessness response 

system 
• Developed By-Name List/ total active people experiencing 

homelessness each month Number of people entering 
homelessness each month 

• Total number of people exiting to housing each month 
• Number of successful housing placements 

Cross-Sector 
Collaboration, 
Discharge Planning, 
and Early 
Identification 

• Number of providers, nonprofits, and cross-sector partners that 
utilize housing problem solving strategies Number of 
individuals diverted from homelessness response system 

• Number of early identification tools utilized by the City and 
regional partners 

• Number of cross-sector partners that conduct homelessness 
prevention, housing problem solving, early identification, and 
discharge planning 

• Developed By-Name List/ total active people experiencing 
homelessness each month 

• Number of people entering homelessness each month 
• Total number of people exiting to housing each month 
• Number of people experiencing unsheltered homelessness 

discharged from mainstream institutions or re-entering from 
homelessness response system 

Subpopulations • Number of key subpopulations reflected in data 
• Number of unique services targeted at key subpopulations 

Racial Equity • Demographic breakdown across all components of 
homelessness response data Number of programs/ projects 
that address racial equity 

• Number of staff hired with lived experience 
• Number of staff engaged in race equity training 

Stabilization • Number of successful referrals to physical health, mental 
health, behavioral health, substance use disorder treatment, 
employment & income support partners 

• Number of clients that successfully exit housing programs 
 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 196 of 221



September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 197 of 221



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 198 of 221



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT           117 MACNEIL STREET, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340           (818) 898-1227           WWW.SFCITY.ORG 
 

REVIEW:      ☒ Finance Director        ☒ Deputy City Manager       ☒ City Manager 
 

To: Mayor Celeste T. Rodriguez and Councilmembers 
  
From:  Nick Kimball, City Manager 
 By: Kanika Kith, Deputy City Manager/Economic Development 
   
Date:  September 5, 2023 
 
Subject: Consideration and Discussion Regarding the City’s Community Preservation 

Efforts  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the City Council: 
 
a. Discuss the City’s Community Preservation efforts; and  

b. Provide direction to staff, as applicable.  

 
BACKGROUND: 

 
1. On March 22, 2022, the Beautification Ad Hoc Committee (Councilmembers Rodriguez and 

Montañez) recommended providing educational resources to inform the community of 
typical violations for property maintenance.   
 

2. In July 2022, an illustrative and informative postcard promoting “Help Keep San Fernando 
Beautiful & Safe” was sent to all properties to inform the community of conditions that are 
violations of the San Fernando Municipal Code (Attachment “A”).  
 

3. On February 6, 2023, during City Council communication, Mayor Rodriguez expressed 
interested in receiving a presentation of the Community Preservation process.  

 
4. On May 30, 2023, during discussion of the budget proposal for Community Development 

Department, Councilmember Fajardo requested a discussion of the Community Preservation 
efforts and the Residential Property Pre-inspection and Report Program.  
 
 

ANill 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 199 of 221



Consideration and Discussion Regarding the City’s Community Preservation Efforts  
Page 2 of 6 
 
 
ANALYSIS: 
 
The Community Preservation Division is responsible for enforcing compliance with City 
ordinances, zoning regulations, and building codes. The Community Preservation Officers (CPOs) 
are responsible for conducting inspections, responding to complaints, and working closely with 
residents, property owners, and businesses to address issues related to property maintenance, 
land use, signage, and other code-related matters. The Community Preservation team plays a 
crucial role in maintaining the City's quality of life, safety standards, and aesthetic appeal by 
promoting adherence to City codes and regulations, and by collaborating with participants to 
resolve violations and promote responsible development and use of properties in the City. 
 
For Fiscal Year (FY) 2022-2023, the Community Preservation Division had a staff allocation of 
three full-time and two part-time positions.  One of the full-time CPOs was approved as an 
enhancement for FY 2022-2023 and remained vacant while the City recruited to fill the position.  
During this time, there were two full-time and two part-time positions.   On June 12, 2023, the 
two full-time positions became vacant due to one resignation and one retirement. To temporarily 
fill the gap, a Community Services Officer in the Police Department was transferred to Community 
Development to train as an Interim CPO and assist the team with Voluntary Compliance Orders.  
 
To supplement staff efforts and maintain the Community Preservation activity while the City 
recruits to fill the open positions, the City has engaged 4LEAF to provide contract Community 
Preservation services.  4LEAF has assigned an Interim Code Enforcement Supervisor who works 
part-time for three days per week. The Code Enforcement Supervisor helps to prioritize urgent 
cases, train City staff, and deliver a customer-friendly enforcement program.  
 
Code Violation Process.  
Initial Community Preservation enforcement efforts are focused on obtaining voluntary 
compliance, followed by notices, then by citations, and finally by referral of the case to the City 
Attorney’s Office.  Some examples of the process are as follows: 

• Graffiti – Contact is made with the property owner and/or responsible person. A Graffiti 
Removal Notice is hand delivered, emailed, or posted on the property in violation. This 
allows the responsible person time to remove the graffiti within 72 hours. Failure to 
comply results in the issuance of a Final Notice of Violation (a one to two weeks deadline 
to comply).  If there is no compliance as of the date provided in the Notice of Violation, 
then citations are issued.  The first citation is $250, followed by $500 for the second 
citation and finally $1,000 for the third citation for failure to remove the graffiti. Graffiti 
cases may be forwarded to the City Attorney’s Office for further legal action if failure to 
comply is observed after the issuance of the third citation.  

• Dead and Unmaintained Vegetation – A voluntary compliance notice (one to two weeks 
deadline to comply) is sent via first class mail to the property owner and/or responsible 
person.  Similar to graffiti, failure to comply results in the issuance of a Final Notice of 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 200 of 221



Consideration and Discussion Regarding the City’s Community Preservation Efforts  
Page 3 of 6 
 
 

Violation (a one to two weeks deadline to comply).  If there is no compliance as of the 
date provided in the Notice of Violation, then citations are issued. The first citation is 
$250, followed by $500 for the second citation and finally $1,000 for the third citation for 
failure to abate the violations. All property maintenance cases may be forwarded to the 
City Attorney’s Office for further legal action if failure to comply is observed after the 
issuance of the third citation.  

• Building Code Violation - The process for a Building Code violation is different due to the 
possible dangerous conditions. When staff observes building without permits, a Stop 
Work Order is issued advising the violators to cease all work and obtain the required 
permits immediately from the Community Development Department. Failure to obtain 
the required permits results in the issuance of a first Notice of Violation (one to two weeks 
deadline to comply) and a Final Notice of Violation (one to two weeks deadline to comply).  
If the owner fails to comply after the deadline provided on the Final Notice of Violation, 
cases may be forwarded to the City Attorney’s Office for further legal action. 

Community Preservation Caseload. 
As seen in the Case by Category Type chart below, the main violations identified by Community 
Preservation staff consist of Property Maintenance violations (34%), followed by Business License 
violations (25%), and Building Code violations (17%). Property Maintenance violations include 
cases such as graffiti, dead and unmaintained vegetation, dilapidated buildings, junk, trash, and 
debris. Business License violations include cases of expired business licenses or operating without 
a business license. Building Code violations include cases such as building without permits and 
inspection upon resale violations. All other violations include violations of garage conversions, 
mechanical, electrical, walls, fences, noise, collection agreements, etc. 
 

 
 

34%

17%
25%

6%

2%

3%

13%

Case by Category Type

■ Property Maintenance (graffiti included) - 271 

■ Building Code (Inspection Upon Resale induded) - 133 

□ Business License/ Occupancv - :wo 

■ Illega l Signage - 46 

■ Prohibited Use - M 

□ Genera l Requirements - 24 

■ Other (garage c,on1w1ersion:s:J mechanica l, 

electrical, wal ls, fences, peddlers, noise, etc.) -109 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 201 of 221



Consideration and Discussion Regarding the City’s Community Preservation Efforts  
Page 4 of 6 
 
 
Community Preservation Citation Activity. 
Once Community Preservation staff confirms violations have not been abated despite voluntary 
compliance requests and notices to the owner, citations are issued. The Citation Activity chart 
below identifies citation activity during FY 2022-2023, totaling 714 citations amounting to 
$134,407.  Those citations are issued to cases related to the following: Property Maintenance 
violations, Business License violations, Building Code violations, Illegal signage, Graffiti, and other 
violations. 
 

 
 
Proactive Approach and Education. 
Community Preservation efforts are primarily initiated in two ways: 1) a complaint is received 
from the public (reactive), or 2) staff observes a possible violation (proactive).  Currently, most 
of the efforts are done through proactive inspections.  Current proactive and reactive processes 
need to be studied due to limited staffing. Effective proactive approach involves ongoing 
education of the City Codes to the community. A proactive stance enables the anticipation and 
prevention of violations, ultimately saving valuable resources over time. 
 
Over the past year, the Community Preservation Division has made significant progress in 
enhancing proactive code enforcement approach through educational initiative. This involves 
distribution of informative postcards promoting “Help Keep San Fernando Beautiful & Safe,” 
notification of an annual overgrown vegetation abatement program, and community 
engagement at the Community Academy.  These combined efforts demonstrate the City’s 
commitment to raising awareness, ensuring compliance, and fostering a well-informed and 
responsible community. Staff will continue to actively engage in public education to strengthen 

30%

23%

27%

5%

3%

2%
1% 1% 1%

7%

Citation Activity 

■ Property Maintenance (graffiti included) - 218 

■ Building Code (Inspection Upon Iles ale indudecl) - 166 

□ Business License/ Occupancv - 195 

■ llleg. l Signage - 34 

Prohibited Use - 19 

□ Collection Agreements - 12 

■ Com mercial/ lnoperable Vehicles - 8 

■ Unlawfu I De posits - 6 

■ Graffiti - 6 

■ Other (garage conYe.rsions, mechanical, 

electrical, walls, fences, peddlers, no·se, etc.) - 52 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 202 of 221



Consideration and Discussion Regarding the City’s Community Preservation Efforts  
Page 5 of 6 
 
 
the proactive approach for addressing building violations, property maintenance, and nuisance 
concerns.  
 
Residential Property Pre-Sale Inspection and Report Program. 
In late 2011, the City established a Residential Property Pre-Sale Inspection and Report Program 
to help homebuyers know if the property has any problems or violations.  This program mandates 
sellers to submit an inspection application and obtain a pre-sale inspection report from the City 
before selling any residential property, excluding hotels, motels, mobile homes, and parks.  The 
report shows the City’s records and findings about the property’s condition and safety. The 
Program strives to enhance the safety and quality of residential buildings and neighborhoods by 
enforcing regulations that prevent the sale of substandard or hazardous properties.  A copy of 
the program pamphlet and pre-sale inspection checklist is included as Attachment “B.” 
 

Residential Property Pre-Sale Inspection and Report Program  

 
 
The program requires a certified building inspector to perform the inspection and write the 
report. The application fee for this service is $275, which covers part of the program costs. In FY 
2022-2023, the Building Inspector completed 124 inspections and reports, resulting in a total 
revenue of approximately $28,000.  
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
 
There is no impact to the FY 2023-2024 Adopted Budget, as resources have been designated for 
three full-time Community Preservation Officers. In FY 2022-2023, Community Preservation 
Division issued 714 citation amounting to approximately $134,000 to help recover the cost for 
the Division.  
 
Currently, two positions are vacant.  The cost savings from these vacant positions are being 
proposed for use in continuing an on-call community preservation service through 4LEAF. This 

• Seller or authorized agent 
Submits application to the City. 

• Seller or authorized agent pays 
fees. 

• Inspection is scheduled within 
10 business days. 

Owner or Buyer to 
bring property into 

compliance 

• Seller has 60 days to make 
corrections if issues were 
identified. 

• Seller may sell property "As Is" 

• If property is sold "as is 11 buyer 
has to acknolege they will make 
all correction. 

Buyer must comply 
within 6 months 

after close of 
escrow 

• Buyer signs Receipt of Pre-Sale 
Report 

• Extension may be granted by 
the " Building Officia l" for Good 
Cause 

• Seller, authorized agent, or 
buyer meets inspector on the 
property 

• Inspection is conducted of the 
interior and exterior of the 
property. If all corrections are 
completed, Building Official to 
finalize the permit and issue a 
certificate 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 203 of 221



Consideration and Discussion Regarding the City’s Community Preservation Efforts  
Page 6 of 6 
 
 
collaboration aims to support and enhance continuous community preservation initiatives and 
enhancements. 
 
 
CONCLUSION: 
 
It is recommended that the City Council discuss the Community Preservation efforts and provide 
any direction to staff, as necessary.  
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
A. Help Keep San Fernando Beautiful & Safe Postcard 
B. Residential Inspection Upon Resale, Brochure, Application and Checklist  

 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 204 of 221



ATTACHMENT "A"

fANfE~ANID 
rlJ 

Clothes lines or 
drying of clothes 

visible to the 
public 

I 
If any of these conditions exist on your property, please remove them immediately. 

If you see these conditions in your neighborhood or before beginning 
construction on your property, contact: 

Schedule bulky item pick-up (2 free pick-ups per year) : 

CommunltyDevelopment@sfclty.org or (818) 898-1227 
Republic Services (800) 299-4898 

SFCITY.ORG/Community-Development I (818) 898-1227 I CommunityDevelopment@sfcity.org I 8 9 0 0 

3ANf ERNANID 

muertos 

Si algunas de estas condiciones existen en su propiedad, por favor de 
removerlas inmediatamente. Si ve estas condiciones en su vecindario o 

antes de comenzar construcci6n en su propiedad, contacte: 
CommunltyDevelopment@sfclty.org or (818) 898-1227 

I 

LOCAL POSTAL CUSTOMER 

Programe recogida de artfculos grandes 

(2 viajes al ano gratuitos): 

Republic Services (800) 299-4898 

PRSRTSTD 
ECRWSS 

U.S. POSTAGE 
PAID 

EDDM RETAIL 

SFCITY.ORG/Community-Development I (818) 898-1227 I CommunityDevelopment@sfcity.org I 8 9 0 0 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 205 of 221



ATTACHM
EN

T "B"
(continued) and after paying a re-inspection, 

and after paying a re-inspection, shall issue a 
certificate of compliance if he or she deter
mines that previously identified un-permitted 
construction, violations of the housing and 
property maintenance standards have been 
corrected and the required equipment, mate
rials, devices, safety measures and/or main
tenance have installed or provided as re
quired by the city regulations. 

Certificate of compliance required 
A certificate of compliance shall be obtained 
by an owner of a residential property for sale 
no sooner than six (6) months prior to sale of 
the residential property, or no late, than six 
(6) months after the sale of the 
residential property, unless the I ( i". ~ -~\ 
period to obtain such certificate W ;·f 
is extended for good cause by 1 , fl · I 
the building official. i ::-z:: 

Residential Property Pre-Sale Inspection and 
Report Program fees are as follows: 

Violation and city code enforcement 

Failure to comply with the program as it re
lates to violations of the city code is a misde
meanor and shall be punishable as set forth 
in San Fernando City Code Section 1-30. 

Disclosure 
The preparation and delivery of a pre-sale 
report or the certificate of compliance shall 
not impose any liability upon the city for any 
errors or emissions contained in the pre-sale 
report or certificate of compliance, nor shall 
the city bear any liability not otherwise im
posed by law. 

Housing & Inspection Services 

City of San Fernando 
Building & Safety Division 
(818) 898-1227 
fvi llalva@sfcity.org 

City of San Fernando Water Division 
New Account 
I 17 Macneil Street 
San Fernando, CA 91340 
(818) 898-1213 

City Of San Fernando License Division 
Residential Rental License 
(818) 898-121 I 

Public Works 
Emergency 24 Hours Water Shut-Off 
(818) 898-1293 

Southern California Gas Company 
New Account 
(800) 228-7377 
www .socalgas.com 

Edison Company 
New Account: (800) 655-4555 
Meter Spot: (66 I) 257-8207 
Report a Power Outage (800) 61 1-19 11 
www.sce.com 

Los Angeles County Tax Assessor 
13800 Balboa Blvd 
Sylmar, CA 91342 
(818) 833-6000 
www.assessor.lacounty.gov 

Contractors State License Board 
I (800) 321-2752 
www.cslb.ca.gov 

sANfE~NANID 

Residential Property 
Pre-Sale Inspection 

And Report Program 

Community Development Department 
117 Macneil Street 

San Fernando, CA 91340-2993 

(818) 898-1227 
(818) 898-7329 Fax 

www.sfcity.org 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 206 of 221



Pre-Sale Inspection 
The City of San Fernando has adopted the 
residential Property Pre-sale Inspection and 
Report Program (:the Program") in order to 
protect purchasers of residential real property 
within the city that may be unaware ~ 
of any un-permitted construction or ~",,J 
other unlawful conditions at the prop- ,,.,.. 
erty they are considering buying. ~ 

Pre-sale report required 
Prior to the sale or exchange of any residential 
property, the owner, or his or her authorized 
agent, shall apply for and obtain a pre-sale re
port on the residential property from the city 's 
building official. 
The building official shall review city records for 
the residential property and conduct an inspec
tion of the exterior and interior of the residential 
property for compliance with city housing and 
property maintenance standards. 
The owner, or his or her authorized agent shall 
provide the building official with access to the 
residential structure or dwelling units within (10) 
working days of the building official's written 
request. The owner or his authorized agent 
shall also provide notice of the inspection to all 
tenants in accordance with state law. The build
ing official shall provide written notification to the 
property owner or his or her authorized agent if 
additional inspections are required by other city 
departments and/or other agencies exercising 
jurisdiction in the city for compliance with hous
ing and property maintenance standards. 

Preparation and Content of 
Pre-sale Report 
Within (20) business days of the inspection , the 
building official issue a written pre-sale report to 
the owner or the owner's authorized agent. The 
report shall contain the following information, 
and shall be valid for six (6) months from the 
date of issuance: 
• The property address and legal description 

of the property; 

• The zone classification of the property; 
• The number of permitted dwelling units on 

the property; 
• The number of permitted bedrooms in each 

dwelling unit or guesthouse on the property; 
• A summary of all building and technical per

mits issued, the date of issuance, and the 
date of final approval for each permit; 

• A summary of variances, use permits, or 
other pertinent legislative acts of record 
concern ing the property ; 

• Identification of any un-permitted construc
tion ; 

• A list of violations of the housing and prop
erty maintenance standards observed at the 
residential property during the inspection; 
and 

• Identification of any mainte
nance issues and equipment, 
materials , devices , safety 
measures that are not installed 
or provided as required by city «n 1 ... -

regu lations. :::a: 

Delivery of pre-sale report 
After receiving the pre-sale report and prior to 
the sale or exchange of the residential property, 
the owner, or his or her authorized agent, shall 
deliver the pre-sale report to the buyer or trans
feree, or to his or her real estate agent, escrow 
company, or other authorized agent. Without 
exception , the buyer, or his or her authorized 
agent, shall execute a "receipt of pre-sale re
port" on a fo rm approved by the city, and said 
receipt shall be delivered to the building official 
within ten (10) business days from the date of 
execution of the receipt. 

Certificate of Compliance 
A Certificate of Compliance shall be issued with 
the pre-sale report if the building official has de
termined based upon his or her review of the 
city records for the residential property and the 
findings of the inspection of the residential prop
erty that: 
(1) No un-permitted construction is present on 

the property; 

(2) No violations of the housing and property main
tenance standards were observed at the prop
erty; and 

(3) The following equipment, materials, devices, 
safety measures and/or maintenance are in
stalled or provided for at the residential property 
subject to approval by the building official : 

• Smoke and carbon monoxide alarms. Smoke 
alarms are mounted on the ceiling or wall of 
each existing room used for sleeping purposes 
and at a point centrally located on the wall or 
ceiling of the existing corridor or area giving ac
cess to such room. Where a dwelling unit has 
more than one story or where a dwelling unit has 
a basement, a smoke alarm is ~ 
installed on each story or base-~ 
ment, all in a manner consistent ~ 
with the California Health and 
Safety Code and Building Code. 

• Earthquake safety. Earthquake-actuated gas 
shut-off valves are installed in dwellings contain
ing fuel gas piping and water heater tanks are 
secured with seismic safety restraints, all in a 
manner consistent with the plumbing code. 

• Ground-fault circuit-interrupter (G.F. C. I.). All 
ground fault circuit receptacles have been in
spected , repaired as needed , and /or installed in 
place of non-G.F.C.I. receptacles located in 
rooms with sinks or tubs or showers, all in a 
manner consistent with the electrical code. 

• Pool safety. Swimming pools and spas are fully 
enclosed by a fence of at least five feet (5 ') in 
height with self-closing and self-latching gates, 
and every pool and spa drain inlet is equipped 
with a drain inlet safety cover. 

• Impact safety glazing. Panes of glazing are re
sistant to breaking or shattering upon impact 
where installed in hazardous locations as speci
fied in the b;.iilding code, including but not limited 
to glass in swinging doors and in sliding-door 
assemblies and glass enclosure of tubs and 
showers. 

If a certificate of compliance is not issued with the 
pre-sale report , the owner or his authorized agent, 
after correcting any un-permitted construction or 
other code violations and instal ling or providing the 
equipment, materials, devices, safety measures 
and/or maintenance noted above, 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 207 of 221



FEE:   $276   

Community Development Department  |  117 Macneil Street  |  San Fernando, CA 91340  |  (818) 898-1227  |  Form # CDD-44.2 (08/2023) |  Page 1 of 1 

RESIDENTIAL INSPECTION UPON RESALE APPLICATION 

APPLICANT AND PROPERTY INFORMATION 
DATE SUBMITTED REAL ESTATE AGENT TYPE OF PROPERTY 
 

 YES           NO 
 SINGLE FAMILY 

 DUPLEX 

 MULTI-FAMILY UNITS 

 MIX USE 

PROPERTY OWNER NAME PHONE NO. 

PROPERTY OWNER ADDRESS CITY ZIP CODE 

PROPERTY FOR SALE ADDRESS 

EXISTING HOUSE SQ. FT. NO. OF BEDROOMS NO. OF BATHS NO. OF STORIES 

OCCUPANCY ZONING USE 

AGENT INFORMATION 
AGENT NAME PHONE NO. 

AGENT ADDRESS CITY  ZIP CODE 

AGENT EMAIL ADDRESS LICENSE NO. 

CONTRACTOR INFORMATION 
CONTRACTOR NAME PHONE NO. 

COMPANY NAME STATE LICENSE NO. CLASS 

COMPANY ADDRESS CITY ZIP CODE 

INSPECTION RESULTS TRANSMISSION Check One 

 MAIL 

ADDRESS CITY ZIP CODE 
 

 EMAIL 
EMAIL ADDRESS 

COMMENTS 

 

 

 

 

 

UH! CIT'I' O f 

~ERNANID SAN 

I 

' 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 208 of 221



 

Community Development Department  |  117 Macneil Street  |  San Fernando, CA 91340  |  (818) 898-1227  |  Form # CDD-050.1 (08/2023) |  Page 1 of 1 

RESIDENTIAL INSPECTION UPON RESALE CHECKLIST 

SUBMIT PRE-INSPECTION APPLICATION DATE(S) 

Fee paid  

Within ten (10) days, conduct pre-inspection  

Date of inspection  

Copy of all permits on file  

Copy of variances, use permits, other legislative acts of record  

Copy of code enforcement violations or pending cases  

PRE-INSPECTION DATE(S) 

Pre-inspection conducted on  

Property photographed on  

Copy of pre-inspection report filed  

Copy of pre-inspection report mailed to owner or agent  

Receipt of pre-inspection report issued to owner or agent  

PRE-INSPECTION REPORT DATE(S) 

Code violations exist  Yes  No  

Garage converted to habitable space (building code definition)  Yes  No  

Addition to dwelling without permits  Yes  No  

Dwelling remodel or new construction without permits  Yes  No  

Return of signed receipt pre-inspection report and filed  

SECOND INSPECTION DATE(S) 

All code violations removed  Yes  No  

All equipment, materials, devices, safety measures and maintenance installed  Yes  No  

CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE DATE(S) 

Copy of certificate of compliance filed  

Copy of certificate of compliance mailed to owner or agent  

Expiration date  

FILE COMPLETE  
 

'ilH11t 1 1!:Ul' o , 

~ERNA.Nill SAN -

s 

r 
- - -

-

r a 

\ 

,. 

< 

~ 

-

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 209 of 221



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 210 of 221



September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 211 of 221



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 212 of 221



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL                 117 MACNEIL STREET, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340                 (818) 898-1201                 WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

REVIEW:      ☒ Finance Director      ☒ Deputy City Manager      ☒ City Manager 
 

To: Mayor Celeste T. Rodriguez and Councilmembers 
 
From: Councilmember Mary Solorio 
 
Date: September 5, 2023 
 
Subject: Consideration to Appoint a Transportation and Public Safety Commissioner 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
I have requested to place on the agenda (Attachment “A”) for the City Council to approve Zoe 
Rodriguez (Exhibit “A” of Attachment “A”) be appointed as my representative to the 
Transportation and Public Safety Commission. 
  
 
BACKGROUND/ANALYSIS: 
 
1. Pursuant to the City’s Code (Attachment “B”), each Councilmember may appoint one 

Commissioner to each Commission (i.e., Planning and Preservation Commission; Parks, 
Wellness, and Recreation Commission; Transportation and Public Safety Commission; and 
Education Commission), with such appointment to be ratified by the full City Council.  For 
appointment consideration, interested residents must submit an application to the 
nominating City Councilmember, at which time the proposed appointment considered by the 
City Council to approve and ratify.   
 

2. On July 5, 2023, the Public Works Department received notice that Commissioner Ivan 
Gonzalez resigned from the Transportation and Public Safety Commission (“Commission”), 
which resulted in an unscheduled vacancy. Commissioner Gonzalez served on the 
Commission since February 1, 2023. 

 
3. On July 12, 2023, the City Clerk posted an Unscheduled Vacancy Notice (Attachment “C”), 

pursuant to Government Code Section 54974 that states: “Final appointment to the board 
commission or committee shall not be made by the legislative body for at least 10 working 
days after the posting of the notice in the clerk’s office.” 

 
4. On July 15, 2023, Zoe Rodriguez submitted an application (Exhibit “A” of Attachment “A”) 

seeking consideration as my representative to be appointed to the Transportation and Public 
Safety Commission to fill the unscheduled vacancy. 
 

  

ANill 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 213 of 221



Consideration to Appoint a Transportation and Public Safety Commissioner 
Page 2 of 2 
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
 
The City pays each Commissioner $100 for attendance at up to one (1) meeting per month.  A 
total of $1,200 per commissioner is appropriated in each responsible Department’s budget.  
Sufficient funds are included in the Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Adopted Budget. 
 
 
CONCLUSION: 
 
I recommend that Zoe Rodriguez be appointed as my representative to the Transportation and 
Public Safety Commission to fill the unscheduled vacancy due to the resignation of Commissioner 
Ivan Gonzalez on July 5, 2023. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
A. Request to Agendize an Item for City Council Discussion/Consideration, including: 
 Exhibit A: Commissioner Application  
B. City Code 
C. Unscheduled Vacancy Notice 
 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 214 of 221



ATTACHMENT "A"
T H I C ITY Of r--,' 

SAN hERNANID 
REQUEST TO AGENDIZE AN ITEM FOR CITY COUNCIL 

DISCUSSION/CONSIDERATION 
CITY COUNCILMEMBER INFORMATION 
NAME 

Mary Solorio 

ITEM INFORMATION 
SUBJECT Tit le of the item you are requesting to be agendized. 

TITLE 

Councilmember 

Consideration to Appoint a Transportation and Public Safety Commissioner 

PRIORITIES BUDGET FISCAL IMPACT 
Is this included in the current FY priorities? ls this a budgeted item? ls there a fiscal impact? ff yes, indicate amount 

Iii Yes □ No Iii Yes □ No Iii Yes □ No 
BACKGROUND/ANALYSIS Provide the reason you are requesting this item be agendized. 

-:fvCW""' E:1on~LQ_2 '\fC\CC\¼:'C\pos\~cY" .ju\'-' 2D2~ . 
A~n,nY\ ~el.0 (_py-n<YliS,0'0Q/L L-Dt~""'q\.XL AS D~ 

f¾.>~\>S< 7-o7-3 · 

ATTACHMENTS Do you have any attachments to include? 

Iii Yes □ No 
RECOMMENDATION Indicate the direction you are recommending. 

-:f Q.o.c..~O ~o, ---tY\JL \--\P'--\DlZ.. t.-c.A~ c_o~_ L 

09-00 , n--r --Z.Of QceAn g ue. 2 --n::> --tvu2- -,-'2..AS~~Dr\ 

ulf"O <;:'Ate--r--\ L'Dff'\m~•D<1· 

\, 't' .. .. ... ' " , ... , 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 215 of 221



City Council  |  117 Macneil Street  |  San Fernando, CA 91340  |  (818) 898-1201  |  Form # CC-004.1 (11/2018) |  Page 1 of 2

APPLICATION TO SERVE ON A CITY COMMISSION 
This is a public document. To assist the City Council in evaluating each applicant in the selection 

of Commission Members, please provide as complete of a response as possible to all questions.
APPLICANT INFORMATION
NAME PHONE NO.

RESIDENCE ADDRESS CITY & STATE ZIP CODE

MAILING ADDRESS If different than above CITY & STATE ZIP CODE

EMAIL ADDRESS Business or personal to be used for Commission activity

EMPLOYER POSITION

BUSINESS ADDRESS CITY & STATE ZIP CODE

BUSINESS PHONE

ARE YOU A REGISTERED VOTER OF THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO?

  YES           NO
DO YOU OWN PROPERTY IN THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO? If yes, please list the address(es)

  YES           NO

DO YOU OWN OR OPERATE A BUSINESS IN SAN FERNANDO? If yes, please state the name and nature of the business

  YES           NO

MEMBER COMMITMENT

I am willing to fulfill all requirements of a City Commissioner, including but not limited to:

As Planning and Preservation Commissioner, I am willing to file financial disclosure statements (Form 700), a 
public record, as required by the State and the City’s Conflict of Interest Code.

I understand that absence from three consecutive regular meetings shall be deemed to constitute my 
retirement.

I am willing to attend/complete the required two hours of State mandated AB1234 Ethics Training every two 
years.

Please also attach and submit a brief bio statement to this application.

I agree to all requirements mentioned above and have provided all correct and truthful information in this 
application.

APPLICANT SIGNATURE DATE

RECOMMENDED BY CITY COUNCILMEMBER:
____________________________________

Zoe Rodriguez

San Fernando, CA 91340

San Fernando, CA 91340

Arup Transportation Planning Intern

✔

✔

✔

EXHIBIT "A" TO ATTACHMENT"A"
THE CITY OF ... --, 

SAN ~ERNANID -

- - -
~~/ 1/15/23 

f / 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 216 of 221



APPLICATION TO SERVE ON A CITY COMMISSION

City Council | 117 Macneil Street | San Fernando, CA 91340 | (818) 898-1201 | Form # CC-004.1 (11/2018) | Page 2 of 2

COMMISSION APPLICATION CHOICE(S) Please indicate which Commission you are interested in

  EDUCATION COMMISSION Must be at least 18 years old and a registered voter of the City of San Fernando

What is your understanding of the duties as a member of the Education Commission?

  PARKS, WELLNESS, AND RECREATION COMMISSION Must be at least 18 years old and a registered voter of the City of San Fernando        

What is your understanding of the duties as a member of the Parks, Wellness, and Recreation Commission?

  PLANNING AND PRESERVATION COMMISSION Must be at least 18 years old and a registered voter of the City of San Fernando         

What is your understanding of the duties as a member of the Planning and Preservation Commission?

  TRANSPORTATION AND SAFETY COMMISSION Must be at least 18 years old and a registered voter of the City of San Fernando         

What is your understanding of the duties as a member of the Transportation and Safety Commission?

PLEASE ATTACH AND SUBMIT A BRIEF BIO STATEMENT TO THIS APPLICATION

✔

A member of the Transportation and Safety Comminsion should bring personal expertise, whether 
that be expertise in the Transportation field or expertise as a resident of San Fernando to present 
and work to solve Transportation-related issues in the city. For me, that would mean my expertise 
from my schooling in civil engineering, professional expertise in transportation planning, and 
personal experience as a life-long San Fernando resident. 

SAN f ER_NANID September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 217 of 221



Zoe Rodriguez Bio 

 

Currently pursuing a Master’s degree in Transportation Engineering at USC, Zoe Rodriguez is 
a life-long San Fernando resident. Having just graduated with a degree in civil engineering 
from USC, she has explored areas of study from seismic design to water system engineering. 
In her work experiences in the City of San Fernando’s own Planning Department and the 
Transportation Planning team at Arup, she has been able to specify and develop her 
understanding of city planning, transportation policy, and, her particular interest, equitable 
access to transit.  

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 218 of 221



- CODE
Chapter 90 - TRAFFIC AND VEHICLES 

ARTICLE II. - ADMINISTRATION AND ENFORCEMENT 
DIVISION 2. TRANSPORTATION AND PUBLIC SAFETY COMMISSION 

San Fernando, California, Code of Ordinances    Created: 2023-06-05 09:52:48 [EST]

(Supp. No. 37) 

Page 1 of 2 

DIVISION 2. TRANSPORTATION AND PUBLIC SAFETY COMMISSION1 

Sec. 90-71. Established; composition; appointment and compensation of members; officers. 

(a) There is established a transportation and public safety commission of five members to be appointed by a
different appointing councilperson, with such appointment to be ratified by the city council. Each member
shall have full participation and voting rights. Each member shall also be a registered voter and city resident.
Such members so appointed shall be persons who do not hold any office or position with the city. The terms
of office of each member shall be one year.

(b) The members shall organize the transportation and public safety commission and shall elect a chair and vice-
chair. In the absence of the chair and vice-chair, any other member shall call the commission to order,
whereupon a chair shall be elected from the members present to preside for that meeting.

(Code 1957, § 13.25; Ord. No. 1586, § 6, 3-16-2009; Ord. No. 1709 , § 2, 4-18-2022) 

Sec. 90-72. Duties generally. 

It shall be the duty of the transportation and public safety commission to: 

(1) Suggest the most practicable means for coordinating the activities of all city officers and agencies
having authority with respect to the administration or enforcement of traffic regulations;

(2) Stimulate and assist in the preparation and publication of transportation safety and traffic reports;

(3) Receive complaints having to do with traffic matters; and

(4) Recommend to the city council, the chief of the traffic division and other city officials ways and means
for improving traffic conditions and the administration and enforcement of transportation safety and
traffic regulations.

(5) The transportation and public safety commission shall act solely as an advisory board to the city council
and an advocate for public safety and traffic services with respect to matters relating to public safety,
including understanding police and fire operations, crime prevention, emergency preparedness, traffic
and transportation, and any other matters which may be assigned to it from time to time by the city
council, and shall study and make recommendations as to such matters directly to the city council in an
advisory capacity. Unless expressly authorized by the city council, the commission shall not represent
itself to be acting for or on behalf of the city council, nor shall it commit the officers, employees, or
staff of the city in any manner or to any course of action. To the contrary, the commission shall act as a
study center and clearinghouse for advisory action to the city council. The commission shall have no
authority or jurisdiction to make, recommend, or approve any action with regard to public safety
personnel actions or investigations.

1Editor's note(s)—Ord. No. 1709 , § 3, adopted April 18, 2022, amended the title of Div. 2 from "Transportation and 
Safety Commission" to "Transportation and Public Safety Commission," as set out herein. 

Cross reference(s)—Boards, commissions, committees, agencies and authorities, § 2-401 et seq. 

ATTACHMENT "B"September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 219 of 221



 
 

 
    Created: 2023-06-05 09:52:48 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 37) 

 
Page 2 of 2 

(Code 1957, § 13.26; Ord. No. 1709 , §§ 2, 4, 4-18-2022) 

Sec. 90-73. Meetings generally. 

The members of the transportation and public safety commission shall meet at such time and place as may 
be fixed by resolution and may hold such other meetings as from time to time may be called in the form and 
manner required by law.  

(Code 1957, § 13.26.1; Ord. No. 1709 , § 2, 4-18-2022) 

Sec. 90-74. Absences from meetings. 

(a) Absence from three consecutive regular meetings of the transportation and public safety commission by a 
member with or without consent of the commission shall be deemed to constitute a retirement of such 
member, and the office shall become vacant. The vacancy thus created shall thereafter be filled by 
appointment by the city councilmember so assigned of a successor to fill the unexpired term of office.  

(b) Absence from three regular meetings of the commission in a 12-month period by a member without consent 
of the commission or absence from four regular meetings of the commission within a 12-month period by a 
member with the consent of the commission shall be deemed to constitute a retirement of such member, 
and the office shall become vacant. The vacancy thus created shall thereafter be filled by appointment by the 
city councilmember so assigned of a successor to fill the unexpired term of office.  

(Code 1957, § 13.26.2; Ord. No. 1709 , § 2, 4-18-2022) 

Sec. 90-75. Compensation. 

Each of the members of the transportation and public safety commission shall receive compensation as the 
city council shall, from time to time, determine and fix by resolution.  

(Code 1957, § 13.26.3; Ord. No. 1709 , § 2, 4-18-2022) 

Sec. 90-76. Removal of members. 

Members of the transportation and public safety commission shall be removed from office as provided in 
sections 2-35 and 90-74 of this Code.  

(Code 1957, § 13.26.4; Ord. No. 1709 , § 2, 4-18-2022) 

Secs. 90-77—90-100. Reserved. 

 

September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 220 of 221



CITY COUNCIL 

MAYOR 
CELESTE T. RODRIGUEZ 

VICE MAYOR 
MARY MENDOZA 

COUNCILMEMBER 
JOEL FAJARDO 

COUNCILMEMBER 
CINDY MONTAÑEZ 

COUNCILMEMBER 
MARY SOLORIO 

CITY CLERK 
DEPARTMENT 

117 MACNEIL STREET 
SAN FERNANDO 
CALIFORNIA 
91340 

(818) 898-1204

WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

UNSCHEDULED VACANCY NOTICE 

City of San Fernando 
Transportation and Public Safety Commission 

The San Fernando City Council is now accepting applications for appointment to 
the San Fernando Transportation and Public Safety Commission (“Commission”) 
to fill one (1) unscheduled vacancy for the term of office from the date of 
appointment through December 2023 and shall continue in the position beyond 
one year until replaced by the appointing City Councilmember or until the member 
resigns.   

Applicants must be at least 18 years old, a registered voter and reside within the 
City jurisdiction.  It is encouraged that applicants be involved or employed in the 
field of Transportation and Public Safety and culture or related subjects. 
Commissioners receive a monthly meeting attendance stipend of $100.00. 

The Transportation and Public Safety Commission consists of five Commission 
members. During the Commissions annual reorganization, Commissioners must 
choose members to serve as Chair and as Vice Chair; and the terms of office shall 
be for one year or until successors chosen.   

City Hall Council Chambers, 117 Macneil Street 
Monthly Meetings held on the First Wednesday - Starts at 6:00 p.m. 

Applications will be accepted from July 12, 2023 until the unscheduled vacancy is 
filled. For additional information, please contact Julia Fritz, City Clerk at 
(818) 898-1204 or via email at cityclerk@sfcity.org.

Dated this 12th day of July 2023 
City of San Fernando, California 
/s/Julia Fritz, CMC 
City Clerk 
cc:  Councilmember Mary Solorio 

Carlos Hernandez, Assistant to the City Manager 
Kenneth Jones, Management Analyst 

ATTACHMENT "C"

SAN F ER_NANm 
September 5, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 221 of 221

http://www.sfcity.org/
https://ci.san-fernando.ca.us/wp-content/uploads/2018/11/CC-004.1-Form-Application-to-Serve-on-a-City-Commission-11-2018.pdf
https://ci.san-fernando.ca.us/commissions-boards/#transportation-public-safety
mailto:cityclerk@sfcity.org

	09-05-23 CC Agenda
	1 - CC Cover & 1
	1a
	1-08-21-23 CC Minutes
	2
	2 - FIN_City Warrant (9-5-23) COMBINED
	FIN_City Warrant (9-5-23) AR & ATT A
	FIN_City Warrant (9-5-23) ATT A_EXH A

	3
	3 - CLK_Designate Voting Member for League Conference (9-5-23) COMBINED
	CLK_Designate Voting Member for League Conference (9-5-23) AR
	CLK_Designate Voting Member for League Conference (9-5-23) ATT A
	CLK_Designate Voting Member for League Conference (9-5-23) ATT A EXH A

	4
	4 - RCS_Consideration to Approve PSA for Catering Services_(09-05-23) COMBINED
	RCS_Consideration to Approve PSA for Catering Services_(09-05-23) AR
	RCS_Consideration to Approve PSA for Catering Services_(09-05-23) ATT A, EXH A & B
	NOTICE INVITING BIDS
	GENERAL INFORMATION

	The City of San Fernando is interested in contracting with an experienced and specialized caterer to provide on-site catering through the remainder of Fiscal Year 2023-2024 (September 5, 2023 – June 30, 2024) with the option of extending the agreement...
	BACKGROUND
	INSTRUCTIONS TO SUBMITTING CATERERS
	SCOPE OF WORK
	Description of on-site catering needs:
	Order Placement Process
	 Catering orders will be placed at least one month in advance.
	 Menu selection will be made at least one month in advance.
	 Meals for 300 people will be ordered for each dance, with Mother’s Day and Father’s Day having potentially up to 320 meals per dance.
	 Menu must be approved by City staff.
	Staffing
	 The caterer shall not take direction with any non-authorized personnel, and the City will not be financially responsible for orders the caterer accepts by non-authorized personnel.
	 The caterer shall provide enough staffing to cook meals on time and replenish food as it runs out. Normally this includes but not limited to: A head chef, 2 cooks, 2 runners, 2 dessert/salad, and 2 meat cutters
	 The caterer will communicate with the City when they will be arriving, cooking/prepping meals, and must be ready to serve no later than 5 p.m. and finish serving all meals by 6:40 p.m.
	 The City will work the selected caterer’s staff so they understand the meal distribution plan.
	On-site cooking, Set-up and clean up
	 200 feet of street parking will be reserved for the food truck(s) and staff parking in front of the gym doors on Huntington Street.
	 The caterer will arrive with enough time needed to prepare and cook the dinner.
	 All meals must be fully prepared and ready to serve no later than 5 p.m.
	 Side dishes shall be delivered by aluminum trays and on chafing dishes.
	 Meats shall be delivered to the gym and be hand cut and placed on people’s plates.
	 The caterer shall provide all of the plates, utensils, napkins, serving utensils, condiments, and other items needed dependent on the menu.
	 The caterer will ensure that all chafing dishes, serving utensils, and other belongings are cleared out no later than 7:00 p.m.
	 The caterer will be responsible for removal of all trash generated by the meal preparation.
	 The City will provide tables and tablecloths.
	Problem Resolution
	 The City requires direct access to the caterer’s management representative in order to have direct and accurate information regarding a problem.
	 The caterer will ensure prompt problem resolution, with appropriate and concise follow-up to the City’s RCS Supervisor within 7 business days of receiving the request for problem resolution.
	SCHEDULE FOR SELECTION
	METHOD OF SELECTION AND NOTICES
	INFORMATION TO BE SUBMITTED
	2. Include a Proposal Summary Section
	In this section, present a well-conceived service plan. This section of the proposal shall establish the Caterer’s understanding of the City’s objectives and work requirements and the Caterer’s ability to satisfy those objectives and requirements. Des...



	5
	5 - PW_NOC Reservoir 2A-5 Site Improvement (9-5-23) COMBINED
	PW_NOC Reservoir 2A-5 Site Improvement (9-5-23) AR
	PW_NOC Reservoir 2A-5 Site Improvement (9-5-23) ATT A
	PW_NOC Reservoir 2A-5 Site Improvement (9-5-23) ATT B

	6
	6 - ADM_Adopt Resolution Rename Pacoima Wash to Cindy Montañez Natural Park (9-5-23) COMBINED
	ADM_Adopt Resolution Rename Pacoima Wash to Cindy Montañez Natural Park (9-5-23) AR
	ADM_Adopt Resolution Rename Pacoima Wash to Cindy Montañez Natural Park (9-5-23) ATT A
	ADM_Adopt Resolution Rename Pacoima Wash to Cindy Montañez Natural Park (9-5-23) ATT B
	ADM_Adopt Resolution Rename Pacoima Wash to Cindy Montañez Natural Park (9-5-23) ATT C
	ADM_Adopt Resolution Rename Pacoima Wash to Cindy Montañez Natural Park (9-5-23) ATT D
	ADM_Adopt Resolution Rename Pacoima Wash to Cindy Montañez Natural Park (9-5-23) ATT E

	7
	7 - ADM_Update on the Community Engagement Framework (9-5-23) COMBINED
	ADM_Update on the Community Engagement Framework (9-5-23) AR
	ADM_Update on the Community Engagement Framework (9-5-23) ATT A

	8
	8 - RCS_Approval of Conceptual Design for the Las Palmas Park Revitalization Project_(09-05-23) COMBINED
	RCS_Approval of Conceptual Design for the Las Palmas Park Revitalization Project_(09-05-23) AR
	RCS_Approval of Conceptual Design for the Las Palmas Park Revitalization Project_(09-05-23) ATT A
	RCS_Approval of Conceptual Design for the Las Palmas Park Revitalization Project_(09-05-23) ATT B

	9
	9  - CD_2023 Homelessness Town Hall (9-5-23) COMBINED
	CD_2023 Homelessness Town Hall (9-5-23) AR
	CD_2023 Homelessness Town Hall (9-5-23) ATT A

	10
	10 - CD_Comm Preservation Discussion (9-5-23) COMBINED
	CD_Comm Preservation Discussion (9-5-23) AR
	CD_Comm Preservation Discussion (9-5-23) ATT A
	CD_Comm Preservation Discussion (9-5-23) ATT B

	11
	11 - SOLORIO_Appt to TPS Commission (Z. Rodriguez) (9-5-2023) COMBINED
	SOLORIO_Appt to TPS Commission (Z. Rodriguez) (9-5-2023) AR
	SOLORIO_Appt to TPS Commission (Z. Rodriguez) (9-5-2023) ATT A
	SOLORIO_Appt to TPS Commission (Z. Rodriguez) (9-5-2023) ATT A EXH A
	SOLORIO_Appt to TPS Commission (Z. Rodriguez) (9-5-2023) ATT B
	DIVISION 2. TRANSPORTATION AND PUBLIC SAFETY COMMISSION0F
	Sec. 90-71. Established; composition; appointment and compensation of members; officers.
	Sec. 90-72. Duties generally.
	Sec. 90-73. Meetings generally.
	Sec. 90-74. Absences from meetings.
	Sec. 90-75. Compensation.
	Sec. 90-76. Removal of members.
	Secs. 90-77—90-100. Reserved.


	SOLORIO_Appt to TPS Commission (Z. Rodriguez) (9-5-2023) ATT C




